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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B 7558 2

HK$ Million, except otherwise stated
BEABT  BRRBEEBEEN

2021
—E-—F
(Re-presented)
(&=E:5))
Revenue WA 529.3 675.5
Loss for the year FEEIE (52.0) 4770
Loss attributable to owners of the Company KRBER AEILEE (54.0) (46.4)
Loss per share (HK cents) SRR EE (B (4.996) (7.794)
Average inventory turnover day (days) FHFEESBRE(K) 75.0 72.8
Average trade receivable turnover day (days) FHEWE ZEREERXE(X) 95.7 88.5
Average trade payable turnover day (days) FHEME SR EERH(CR) 42.2 50.2
Total assets BERE 659.2 678.0
Total liabilities B85 297.2 312.0
Financial position Revenue
B AR R LN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT ER-
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TREMES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”), |
hereby present the audited consolidated financial results of Link-Asia
International MedTech Group Limited. (the “"Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2022 (the “Year”).

Year 2022 was an extraordinary year, in the face of repeated
epidemics, volatile political situations and complex and changeable
economic development, the Group has risen to the challenge, adhered
to the strategy of steady pace, sought progress in a stable manner,
and led the Group to move forward along high-quality development.
In terms of epidemic prevention and control, the Group followed the
prevention and control supervision of the China government, and the
Group has revised and customized and gradually improved the
epidemic prevention and control plans and guidelines according to
their own conditions, to minimize the impact of the epidemic on
production and operation.

In order to improve the management efficiency, the Group has
strengthened the synergy between the financial department and
technical team in business management, so that it can better play a
role in guiding, serving and supervising production and operation
activities.

Considering the need to work from home and improve office efficiency
during the epidemic, the Group has also flexibly implemented a
working system to improve its information management system. To
achieve a win-win outcome in prevention and control measures and
work efficiency.

Unfortunately, the war in which Russia invaded Ukraine (the “War”)
has brought unpredictable variables to the Group, widening the divide
between Europe and China and also increasing the cost of
transportation of raw materials and finished products. As a result, the
Group’s revenue generated from the European countries of EMS and
Distribution business segment has decreased by approximately
HK$120.5 million or 34.6% for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TREMES

In the face of challenges, the Group expanded the diversity of the
Board to leverage their operational experience in different areas to
lead the Group towards a more high-tech field in the coming years.

At the same time, the Group commenced the money lending business
during the year 2022 which generated approximately HK$89,000
revenue of the Group.

The Group are very excited to hear that the three-year-long pandemic
era is finally coming to an end, and we look forward to having more
business activities to revitalize Hong Kong’s economy. The Group
remains confident of its ability to ride out the crisis with skill and
resilience, while being ready to seize any possibilities for growth and
enhancement of shareholder value.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to our staff for their diligence and dedication during the
year. | would also thank all our shareholders, stakeholders, customers
and business partners for their unfailing supporting and trust for the
Group.

Lin Dailian
Chairman

31March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E W DT

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

During the year 2022, the global economy still being affected by the
outbreak of COVID-19 and also affected by high inflation, monetary
policy has tightened rapidly, and economic growth has slowed down.
The pandemic and geopolitics among each country hampered the
supply chain of raw materials and affected confidence of the investor.
Therefore, the logistic cost and the cost of operating capital increased.

On the other hand, the war in which Russia invaded Ukraine (the “War
Crisis”) has been more than a year which widen the divide between
the Europe and China. The revenue generated from the European
countries of EMS and Distribution business segment has been
decreased by approximately HK$120.5 million or 34.6% for the year
ended 31 December 2022 due to our major customers of EMS and
Distribution business segment are western countries.

The real estate industry is facing unprecedented challenges, with the
depth of adjustment and the construction time exceeding market
expectations. The National Bureau of Statistics of China announced
that the annual sales of commercial housing fell by 26.7% to RMB13.0
trillion. In order to save the real estate industry, the China government
regulatory departments continuously optimized the real estate
regulation and control policies and have taken multiple measures to
boost the confidence of the real estate market. The Group has get
benefit from the policy and as a result, the revenue of the Real Estate
Supply Chain Services increased by approximately HK$2.8 million or
60.5% for the year ended 31 December 2022.

During the year 2022, the Group commenced a Money Lending
business which generated approximately HK$89,000 revenue of the
Group.

Combined the aforesaid reasons, the Group generates total revenue of
approximately HK$529.3 million, decreased by approximately
HK$146.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had bank and cash balances
totalling approximately HK$252.2 million (2021: HK$145.6 million) with
efforts made to maintain a healthy financial position.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E W LT

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
The EMS and Distribution of Communications Products Businesses

The EMS and Distribution of Communication Products businesses
contributed revenue of approximately HK$502.6 million (2021:
HK$630.0 million) and HK$18.5 million (2021: HK$40.3 million),
respectively, to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The revenue of EMS decreased due to the worldwide logistic
breakdown caused by COVID-19 as well as the War Crisis also leads to
the shortage of the raw material supplies and also affected the
delivery timetable to the customers. The logistic issues also triggered
the rise of cost of raw material in addition to the shortage of supplies
which in turn leading to the decrease of the gross profit margin.

The Distribution of Communication Products businesses revenue
decreased due to the change of working mode from office to work-
from-home also decreases the general demand of the business
communication product since the outbreak of COVID-19 in 2020.

Real Estate Supply Chain Services

Revenue from the Real Estate Supply Chain Services operation
provides two types of services, comprising the real estate advisory
service and real estate purchase service related to investment
opportunities in Southeast Asia and Pan Asia markets on behalf of
customers. Revenue is recognised at a point in time upon completion
of each service. This segment has contributed approximately HK$7.4
million (2021: HK$4.6 million) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Real Estate Supply Chain Services business is heavily and
adversely affected by the border control and quarantine measures due
to COVID-19. Normal business travelling has resumed between the
PRC and Southeast Asian and Pan Asian countries, and the Board
expected that this business sector will improve.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E W DT

Securities and Other Assets Investment and Others

The Securities and Other Assets Investment and Others business
contributed revenue of approximately HK$0.7 million (2021: HK$0.7
million) to the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Money Lending

The money lending operations of the Group was commenced during
the year, and are managed through our wholly-owned subsidiary — Be
Smart Finance Limited with money lenders licenses issued under the
Money Lenders Ordnance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
The Group’s money lending business is broadly classified into four loan
categories, including: ()property mortgage loans; (ii) other secured
loans; (iii) guaranteed loans; and (iv) unsecured loans. During the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s money lending business was
focused on unsecured loans. The Group plans to explore further
potential money lending business opportunities and the Group’s
assessment of achieving reasonable risk and returns. There is no
specific target customer group. The source of customers of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022 were mainly through the
referrals of past and existing customers of the Group. The source of
funds for the money lending business is generally funded by the
internal resources of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s money lending
segment generated revenue of approximately HK$89,000, accounting
for approximately 0.02% of overall revenue. Money lending business is
a newly commenced segment of the Group. Operating loss from this
business segment amounted to approximately HK$0.8 million. As at 31
December 2022, we had 4 active loan accounts, all of them are
individual customers. As at 31 December 2022, the percentage of the
amount of loans and interest receivables from these four customers to
the total loans and interest receivables are ranging approximately
20.5% to 33.4%.

The management remains alert and will prudently maintain effective
controls and procedures for loan approvals, credit monitoring as well
as recovery and compliance matters applicable to all aspects of the
money lending business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E W LT

Internal Control

The Group has established strict credit policies and controls to reduce
all associated credit risks. Various approval criteria are carefully
considered during the credit assessment stage, including verification
of identity, repayment ability, and relevant investigative results after
carrying out due diligence during the application procedure. The
Group’s management are responsible for assessing and approving
loans within predetermined credit limits. They also regularly oversee
the Group’s credit policies and credit quality of the Group’s loan
portfolio. Increasing effort has also been put in the recovery
procedures for loans receivables. Legal actions will be taken on a case-
by-case basis, having considered the normal market practice as well
as the actual circumstances during the Group’s credit collection
processes and negotiations with relevant customers in order to
minimise any possible credit losses.

Interest rates and loan impairment

For the Group’s existing loan portfolio as at 31 December 2022, the
effective interest rates were matched and charged to customers of
differing risk levels, at 10% per annum. The major terms of loans
granted include loans receivable, interest rate and maturity date. For
the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded an impairment
loss on loans and interest receivable of approximately HK$53,000. The
Group’s impairment losses relate primarily to the expected credit loss
(“ECL”) allowance for loans and interest receivables. Generally
speaking, ECL assessments are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience adjusted for factors that are specific to
particular debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions as at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions. The ECL on loans receivables are
assessed individually for those debtors with significant balances and/
or those collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings. Each grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure that each of its constituents continues to share similar credit
risk characteristics.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E W DT

Geographical Analysis

Revenue from the major European countries (the United Kingdom,
Switzerland, Poland, Belgium and France) totalled approximately
HK$228.3 million (2021 HK$348.8 million), and accounted for
approximately 43.1% (2021: 51.6%) of the Group’s revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2022. The U.S.A. market contributed
approximately HK$102.6 million (2021: HK$81.8 million) in revenue and
accounted for approximately 19.4% (2021: 12.1%) of the Group’s
revenue. The PRC (including Hong Kong) and other countries
accounted for approximately HK$57.2 million (2021: HK$78.0 million)
and HK$141.2 million (2021: HK$166.9 million), respectively,
representing approximately 10.8% (2021: 11.6%) and 26.7% (2021:
24.7%) of the Group’s revenue.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded total
revenue of HK$529.3 million (2021: HK$675.5 million).

The Group’s reporting segments are strategic business units that offer
different products and services. There are two broad groups of
business units for segment accounting purpose, EMS and Distribution
whereas the latter representing the distribution of communication
products. In EMS segment, there are two main groups of products,
namely communication and non-communications products whereas
non-communication products mainly included appliances and
appliances control products and multimedia products.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue from EMS
decreased by 20.2% to HK$502.6 million (2021: HK$630.0 million),
whereas the revenue from Distribution segment decreased by 54.1% to
HK$18.5 million (2021: HK$40.3 million).

The decrease in the revenue of EMS segment was resulting mainly
from the decrease in the business of appliance & appliances control
product of HK$121.0 million in European market under the War Crisis.

The significant decrease in the revenue of Distribution segment was
mainly caused by worldwide tight supply of key components.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E W LT

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales decreased by 19.4% from HK$530.6 million in 2021 to
HK$427.9 million in 2022 is mainly caused by the decrease in the level
of sales for the year 2022 and the wide range of increase in material
cost.

Gross Profit

Gross profit decreased by 30.0% from HK$144.9 million to HK$101.4
million, while the gross profit margin decreased by 2.2% which was
mainly affected by the wide range of material price level increase and
decrease in level of sales for the year 2022.

Impairment losses

The Group made overall impairment losses of approximately HK$12.5
million on certain assets for the year ended 31 December 2022,
representing a decrease by approximately HK$0.1 million (2021:
HK$12.6 million). It was mainly comprised of impairment losses on
loans to other parties (net of reversal) of approximately HK$4.1 million,
impairment losses on intangible assets of approximately HK$3.6
million, impairment losses on other receivables (net of reversal) of
approximately HK$4.2 million and impairment losses on trade
receivables of approximately HK$0.6 million.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses of HK$30.0 million (2021: HK$29.2
million) accounted for approximately 5.7% in 2022 and 4.3% in 2021 of
the Group’s revenue respectively which is maintained at a stable level
when comparing with last year.

Administration expenses

Administration expenses of HK$105.0 million (2021: HK$154.2 million)
accounted for approximately 19.8% in 2022 and 22.8% in 2021 of the
Group’s revenue respectively. The decreases are mainly caused by
decreased in the staff cost of and testing & inspection fee.
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Research and development expenditure

Research and development expenditure slightly decreased by
approximately HK$0.5 million from approximately HK$15.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately HK$14.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs were approximately HK$4.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022 and HK$4.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2021,
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
respectively. The finance costs was remained stable during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

represented approximately 0.8% and 0.6% of the

Income tax expense

Income tax expense during the year ended 31 December 2022 included
approximately HK$3.6 million of current tax charge (2021: HK$3.4
million). The tax charges mainly represented the income tax provision
at the applicable tax rate in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations in Hong Kong, the PRC and the U.S.A..

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

The loss attributed to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$54.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$46.4
million). The Group’s net loss margin attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
10.2% (2021: 6.9%).

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to non-controlling interests

Profit for the year attributable to non-controlling interests amounted
to approximately HK$2.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
(2021: loss of approximately HK$0.8 million).
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations and capital expenditure by
internally generated cashflows.

As at 31 December 2022, the bank and cash balances amounted to
approximately HK$252.2 million (2021: HK$145.6 million), representing
an increase of approximately HK$106.6 million from 2021. Respective
sum of approximately 18.0%, 73.2% and 8.8% of the bank and cash
balances was denominated in RMB, USD and HKD, respectively.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s current ratio remains in a healthy
position at 1.9 times (2021: 2.0 times).

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of the borrowings and
bond payable were approximately HK$13.6 million and HK$nil,
respectively. The borrowings represented the loans from financial
institutions and loan from an independent third party of approximately
HK$13.0 million (2021: HK$nil) and HK$0.6 million (2021: HK$0.6
million), respectively.
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Exchange risk exposure

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise
from the business operations in the PRC and Hong Kong denominated
in RMB and USD, respectively. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had
minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most of its business
transactions, assets and liabilities were principally denominated in the
respective functional currencies, i.e. RMB and USD, used by the
respective group entities, or in USD for the respective group entities
with HKD being the functional currency. As HKD is pegged to USD, the
Group considers the risk of movements in exchange rates between
HKD and USD to be insignificant for transactions denominated in USD.
The RMB is not freely convertible into other foreign currencies and
conversion of the RMB into foreign currencies is subject to rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government. As at 31 December 2022, the Group does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of its foreign currency
assets and liabilities. The Group had no investment in any financial
derivatives, foreign exchange contracts, interest or currency swaps,
hedging or other financial arrangements for hedging purposes to
reduce any currency risk nor made any over-the-counter contingent
forward transactions. The Group will closely monitor its foreign
currency exposure and will consider using hedging instruments in
respect of significant foreign currency exposure as and when
appropriate.

Capital commitments

Capital commitments as at 31 December 2022 amounted to
approximately HK$0.6 million (2021: HK$0.4 million).

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had no pledged assets.
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Financial guarantee contract

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had an outstanding
guarantee (the “Guarantee”) to one of the suppliers of an overseas
subsidiary (the “Disposed Subsidiary”), which was disposed on 7
October 2015, for payment in relation to a sum of US$2.6 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$20.3 million), representing a trade
balance under dispute between the Disposed Subsidiary and the
supplier. The supplier subsequently sold the trade balance to a third
party.

During 2017, the Disposed Subsidiary had agreed with the third party
for a final settlement by instalment of US$650,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$5.1 million). In this regards, as at 31 December 2022
and 2021, the Group had an outstanding guarantee of the sum limited
to US$650,000, subject to the full payment of the final settlement
effected by the Disposed Subsidiary.

The Disposed Subsidiary had issued counter guarantee to the
Company to indemnify the Company for any loss in relation to the
Guarantee.

Contingent liabilities

The Group and the Company did not have any significant contingent
liabilities.

Significant investments

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held listed equity investments of
approximately HK$nil (2021: HK$1.2 million). No dividend income was
received during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 in
respect of these investments.

Apart from the aforesaid transactions, there were no other material
investment by the Group that should be notified to the Shareholders
of the Company.
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Human resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had approximately 1,025
employees in various operating units located in Hong Kong, U.S.A. and
the PRC. In order to attract and retain high quality talents to ensure
smooth operation and cater for the Group’s constant expansion, it
offers competitive remuneration packages, with reference to market
conditions, individual qualifications and experience.

Share option scheme

On 17 February 2020, the Company proposed to the shareholders of
the Company at the extraordinary general meeting to be held on 10
March 2020 (the “EGM”) to terminate the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 31 December 2010 (the “2010 Share
Option Scheme”) and to approve and adopt a new share option
scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”). Details of the New Share
Option Scheme are set out in the circular of the Company dated 17
February 2020.

On 10 March 2020, at the EGM, the proposed adoption of the New
Share Option Scheme and the termination of the 2010 Share Option
Scheme were duly passed by the Shareholders by way of poll.

On 28 January 2021, 35,671,850 share options to subscribe for the
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in the share capital of the Company
were granted to certain Directors and employees of the Group (the
“Grantees”), subject to acceptance of the Grantees, under the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 10 March 2020. The share
options granted shall vest in the Grantees in accordance with their
respective the timetable.

Details of the grant of share options are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 28 January 2021.

On 14 June 2022, 53,328,000 share options to subscribe for the
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in the share capital of the Company
were granted to certain employees of the Group, subject to
acceptance of the employees, under the share option scheme adopted
by the Company on 10 March 2020.
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Details of the grant of share options are set out in the announcement BEFEBRENFEHNAATNAHA-Z
of the Company dated 14 June 2022. ZZHERNATNABMAE -

Details of the share option movements during the period from1 EHERZE-_—_F#—A—B&2_ZT-__F+_=
January 2022 to 31 December 2022 under the New Share Option A =-+— B M ERET 2B TR B E

Scheme are as follows: BT
Number of share options
BREHE

Lapsed/

Grant Exercised cancelled
Outstanding during the during duringthe  Outstanding
Exercise price asat  yearended theyearended  yearended asat
Holder of Date of per share 1January 31December 31December 31December 31 December
share options grant Exercise period (note 3) 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022

BE BE
BE C-B-fF  ZB-cfF R

B ZBIZE e TR ZBCZE
g% —g-ck +Zh =1-H =1-H =

fRiE e -A-H =1-H LEE I:3:5 =1-H
BEA RHAH TEER (Fsx3) HATE  LEERY EOHE  KN/EE MR
(HK$)
(B1)

Executive Directors
Hi7Es
Lin Dailian 28-Jan-21 2021.7.28-2026.1.27 0.546 5,533,092 - - - 5,533,092
Mt ——45-A-tN\B  ZEZ-FrAZtNBEZ

ZEZRE-AZTtA
Xia Xiaobing 28-Jan-21 2021.7.28-2026.1.27 0.346 5,333,092 - - (5,333,092 -
8 ——f-AZtN\B ZE_-FtA-f/\RZ

“E5E-A-tA
Wang Guozhen 28-Jan-21 2021.7.28-2026.1.27 0.346 5,333,092 - - - 5,333,092
IHE ——45-A-t\B  ZE--ErA-tN\RZ

ZECE-AZttA
Employees 28-Jan-21 2022.1.28-2026.1.27 0.546 20,316,607 - - - 20,316,607
B8 —-¥-Azt\B  ZEZZ§-A-f/\R%

ZEZRE-AZttA
Employees 14-Jun-22 2022.6.14-2024.6.13 0.106 - 53,328,000 (53,328,000) - -
& ZZERATEA Sy 1 =

“E-WERATER

3315883 53328000 (533280000  (5333092) 30,982,791
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Notes:

M

@)

(©))

The closing price of the Company’s share immediately before the date (28 January
2021) on which the share options were granted was HK$0.35.

The closing price of the Company’s share immediately before the date (14 June 2022)
on which the share options were granted was HK$0.106.

The exercise price per share of share options has reflected the adjustment in relation to
the Right Issues which completed on 23 November 2021.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2022

M

Discloseable transaction in relation to the assignment of agency
agreement involving the issue of consideration shares under
specific mandate (the “Discloseable Transaction”)

On 18 January 2022, the Link-Asia International Assisted
Reproductive Technology Group Limited, an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Assignee”), the
Company and the Mr. Sy Ming Yiu (the “Assignor”) entered into
a deed of assignment dated 18 January 2022 (the “Deed of
Assignment”), pursuant to which the Assignee agreed to accept
and the Assignor agreed to assign all its rights, obligations, title,
interest, and benefit in and to the agency distribution agreement
entered into between Shanghai Metash Instruments Co., Ltd. (_E
BT ESR AR A A)), a corporation established under the laws
of the PRC (the “Metash”) and the Assignor (the “Agency
Agreement”) to the Assignee at the consideration of
HK$37,800,000, which shall be settled by the allotment and
issue of 230,000,000 consideration shares by the Company to
the Assignor (or its nominee) upon completion.

All conditions precedent in respect of the Dee of Assignment as
set out in the sub-section headed “THE DEED OF ASSIGNMENT
— Conditions precedent” on page 15 of the circular which dated
on 13 May 2022 have been fulfilled and the Completion took
place on 10 June 2022.
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Details of the Discloseable Transaction are set out in (i) the
announcements of the Company dated 18 January 2022, 9
February 2022, 4 March 2022, 25 March 2022, 19 April 2022 and
5 May 2022; (ii) the circular of the Company on 13 May 2022 and
(iii) the completion announcement on 10 June 2022.

Subscription of new shares under specific mandate and
application for whitewash waiver (the “Subscription of New
Shares”)

On 13 September 2022, the Company entered into the
subscription agreement with China New Retail Holding Group
Limited (the “Subscriber”), pursuant to which the Subscriber has
conditionally agreed to subscribe for and the Company has
conditionally agreed to allot and issue 517,600,000 new shares
at the subscription price of HK$0.1855 per subscription share,
with an aggregate consideration of HK$96,014,800. The
subscription shares shall be allotted and issued pursuant to the
specific mandate to be obtained from the independent
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”).

The subscription shares represent (i) approximately 42.9% of the
existing issued share capital of the Company; and (ii) 30.0% of
the issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the
allotment and issue of the subscription shares.

(i
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Under Rule 26.1 of the Takeovers Code, the Subscriber would be
obliged to make a mandatory general offer to the shareholders
for all the issued shares and other securities of the Company not
already owned or agreed to be acquired by it or parties acting in
concert with it unless the whitewash waiver is obtained from the
executive director of the Corporate Finance Division of the
Securities and Futures Commission or any delegate of the
executive director (the “Executive”). In this regard, an
application will be made by the Subscriber to the Executive for
the granting of the whitewash waiver pursuant to Note 1 on
Dispensations from Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code in respect of
the allotment and issue of the subscription shares.

All conditions precedent under the subscription agreement have
been fulfilled, and the completion took place on 6 February 2023.
Upon completion, 517,600,000 subscription shares were duly
allotted and issued as fully paid by the Company to the
Subscriber at the subscription price of approximately HK$0.1855
per subscription share for the total consideration of
HK$96,014,800 pursuant to the specific mandate obtained at the
EGM held on 10 January 2023.

Details of the Subscription of New Shares are set out in (i) the
announcements of the Company dated 13 September 2022, 14
September 2022, 5 October 2022, 26 October 2022, 25
November 2022 and 2 December 2022; (ii) the circular of the
Company on 15 December 2022 and (iii) the completion
announcement on 6 February 2023.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FrS3HAiA
Fund Raising Activity of the Company in the Past Twelve Months ARAFI@ET—_EANEETRE

Set out below is the summary of equity fund raising activity of the  TX&EHF|AQA TR BEAREHERBETZ
Company during the past twelve months immediately preceding the & A HIIRIEE B RENHE -
date of this report:

Net proceeds Actual use of net proceeds as
Date of announcement Fund raising activity ~ (approximately) Intended use of net proceeds 31 December 2022
FRERERE R-B--f+-A=t-H
AERH KEED (8E4) REREAFERE AR RERBEREER AR
29 January 2020, Placing of new shares ~ HK$41.4 million 1) approximately HK$18.0 ) approximately HK$4.8
3 February 2020, and under general million for the Group’s million was used for the
19 February 2020 mandate 41,400,000/ 7T existing electronic products Group’s existing electronic
and the related supply products and the related
—T-TF RIE— I chain service business; supply chain service
—A=ZthBE: BREHRM business;
“Z-ZF-AZAR ) #918,000,000 8 TR
“TZT5-ATANR AEEREEFEME ) #4800000FTAR
AR EERGER AEERBEEFERK

AT EEREES
i approximately HK$17.0
million for the Group’s real i) approximately HK$6.5

estate sale supply chain million was used for the
service business; Group’s real estate sale
supply chain service
i) #917,000,000 87T AR business; and
AEENFEHERE
HIEERIGER i) #96,500,000FTAR
AEERFEMEHE
i) approximately HK$6.4 HEBRBES &
million for general working
capital of the Group. i) approximately HK$30.1
million was used for
iy #76,400,000 8 T AEAR general working capital of
SEH-—REEES - the Group. (Notes I and
2)

AEEH—HEE
a4 o (W31 %2)
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Net proceeds Actual use of net proceeds as
Date of announcement Fund raising activity ~ (approximately) Intended use of net proceeds 31 December 2022
FRERERE R-B--f+-A=+-H
AEBRH 5EED (BE4) FEREFEREAR FEREFEERAR
30 December 2020, and Placing of new Shares  HK$29.2 million ~ General working capital Approximately HK$29.2 million
11 January 2021 under refreshed of the Group was used for general working
general mandate 29,200,000/% 7T capital of the Group
—T-TF FEEN-KREEES
+ZA=tBK RIREE 3 — IR #729,200,000 B T AEAEE K
- —%—-R+—H [=Filli <) —ReEESR
15 June 2021 and Placing of new shares  HK$22.21 million i) approximately HK$10 Approximately HK$5.9 million
30 June 2021 under general million for developing the was used for developing
mandate 22,210,000 7T Group’s assisted the Group’s assisted
—T-—F reproduction medical reproduction medical
NATEAR BB —RIRERSH technology business, and technology business
ZE—FRA=1H &

D} £710,000,000 & AR
FRASENHE L
BEMBES R

i approximately HK$12.21

million for general working

capital of the Group.

iy 4912210000 A TTAE
FEEN—REEET -
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Approximately HK$12.2 million
was used for general

working capital
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Net proceeds Actual use of net proceeds as
Date of announcement Fund raising activity ~ (approximately) Intended use of net proceeds 31 December 2022
RERAFE AZBZZ%+=A=+-H
AEBRH 5EED (8E) SREFERERE FEREFEERAR
15 October 2021, Rights issue on the basis HK$58.7 million  Approximately (i) HK$34.2 million  Approximately (i) HK$34.2 million
1 November 2021 and of one (1) rights share for the expansion of the Group’s  was utilized for the expansion
22 November 2021 for every two (2) 58,700,000/ 7T product range under the EMS of the Group’s product range
existing shares held on and Distribution Products under the EMS and Distribution
“Z-—%+H+HB" the record date Businesses; (i) HK$17.1 million Products Businesses; (ii) the
—Z—%+—-A-Bk for the funding of potential remaining net proceeds of
—E--F+-A=-+-H RRIGBEHEEEM merger and acquisition HK$17.1 million for the funding
QBERBRMOEE— opportunities of assisted of potential merger and
() AR AL AR A 1 o B2 reproductive services-licensed ~ acquisition opportunities of
HEITHERR providers located in regions in assisted reproductive services-
the PRC; and (iii) HK$7.4 million  licensed providers located in
for general corporate and regions in the PRC has not
working capital purposes. been utilized as at the date of
this report; and (iii) HK$7.4
#(1) 34,200,000 B TTAREREA  million was utilised for general
SEESFEUERBRDIEE  corporate and working capital
MEBTZERZRY (i) PUIPOSES.
17100,000 BTLARRHE S
NEFASEEFEEYE  4() 34200000 FTARERR
TERRI TR E 2 B O SEEEFRERE RO HE
ﬁ-&mﬂ4mow%ﬁﬁ¢ REBTZERZS]: (i) BR
RrEREEESRE REZSNETEZ AR
REB R R BT
PHEHIB BT PTG TURFHE
17100000 7T # s B i
REDA ¢ K(iii) 7,400,000 7T
RE—REEREEEG AR -
Notes: fifat
1 On 30 December 2020, the Board has resolved to assign the unutilised net proceeds of 1) RIT-ZF+-_A=+H E2LHRERDAME

approximately HK$10.5 million from the development of real estate sale supply chain
service business in Southeast Asia and Pan Asia to the general working capital of the
Group. Details can be found in the announcement published on 30 December 2020.

2) On 15 June 2021, the Board resolved to further change the unutilised Original Net 2)
Proceeds of HK$13.2 million, which was originally allocated for the Group's electronic
manufacturing services business, to the general working capital of the Group. Details
can be found in the announcement published on 15 June 2021.

The remaining unutilised net proceeds as at 31 December 2022 of  #

=]

approximately HK$21.2 million is estimated to be fully utilised 5

N
Sl ||

according to the intentions in the year 2023. EETET%E

FRIEFHFA10,500,0008 TR B RN REE MZ R
MEEHESHERREEBELAREARE —REE
B - FBE2HR T EF+ _A=THETENAE

REZE-—FXATHR  EFSHRE—TERLRY
F 89 IR 36 PR 1S AR IR E R 4913,200,000 8 7T - EIRE 5 B
RARAEENE FRIERBEY  REUAEREE—
REEES - HBE2HEN B —FXATHAATHEN

/&ﬁt

;::¢+—H:+—HW%T$@%%

’721 200,000/8 L st R =
BRAEEHA -

X IR 3 R
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PROSPECTS

The three-year epidemic is finally over, and the frigid global economy
has ushered in spring. In October 2022, Hong Kong cancelled the
quarantine measures for people coming to Hong Kong. After the
measures are cancelled, Hong Kong immediately integrated with the
world economy. Many activities gradually return to normal such as
retail business, project investment, stock market and business
meetings and restart the social economy.

In January 2023, the PRC re-opened including removal of strict border
controls and lockdowns in cities with rising COVID-19 infections. This
good news like bringing a ray of warmth to the frigid global economy.
The management of the Group immediately dispatched a business
team to visit surrounding areas in Southeast Asia to visit customers
and looking for business opportunities. It is hoped that customers’
confidence in the Group can be regained, especially the investment
projects and cooperation projects that have been suspended from the
year 2020 to 2022.

The Group is full of hope for a renewed global economy and looking
forward to the second half of 2023, the Group’s national anthem
business can meet the expectations of the management the Group
and investors in the market.

In the future, the Group will continuously focus on the business of EMS
and Distribution of Communication Products segment to get steady
cash flow. The Group will adopt a sound business strategy that
combines a diversified approach to business to drive the growth in
profits.

Al =

Eiﬁﬂ Fiﬁ ER 2D E DR E
Ke ZEBE-—F+F - HEETUHEGFAEALH
B ja*ﬁ o ZERIEEUHE - BB LA A

ﬁ%@°%%%%‘ﬁﬁ&ﬁ‘%ﬁ~ﬁ%@
REZEARSHESMELE  ERHLSEHE -

:%::i—ﬂ'$li%ﬁm'a%m%§
& HYBIRE B R HUE F E COVID-19 R 2 & F

ERERIN T H o tarE B4 %émi
Iﬂ“‘fi.ﬁ’r“éx—i%/ﬁﬁﬁ NEEEREREEIRE
(BB GRREEAENE  FHEPRE
Kk FERFRERASAEENGEL L
HECZ T T - _FHEMNREEHR
REEEE -

AEEHEHEEEHR ML URE-F
“ZFTHF ARENBEATEXBEERE
AEEERERTSREENRE

KR AEBBEBEEINETRIERB LD
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE TEER
The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of ARAFH BT KENDEE AR URER

corporate governance to protect the interests of the shareholders of
the Company.

The new Corporate Governance Code (the “New CG Code”) as set out
in existing Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules has come into effect on 1
January 2022, their requirements are applicable to the financial year
commencing on 1 January 2022. Currently, the Company has adopted
the code provisions on Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “Previous CG Code”) as set out in the
previous Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules before the New CG Code
came into effect.

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company has complied with
the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code”) under Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31
December 2021, except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of
the Code as described below.

Code Provision A.2.1

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be performed by
the same individual. The Company does not have any officer with the
title of “chief executive officer” and this is deviated from the code
provision A.2.1 of the Code.

Mr. Lin Dailian, who acts as the Chairman and an executive Director of
the Company since 12 July 2019, is also responsible for overseeing the
general operations of the Group. The Board will meet regularly to
consider major matters affecting the operations of the Group. The
Board considers that this structure will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management of the
Group. The roles of the respective executive directors and senior
management, who are in charge of different functions complement
the role of the chairman and chief executive officer. The Board
believes that this structure is conducive to strong and consistent
leadership enabling the Group to operate efficiently.

NEBRA RIS

HRIBRAE LRSI R R EEE<T A
([FeEERITNNER=_ZE-__F—A—H
A HRCEAR S —_F—H— B8/
WEITREE < BE - RARIEHEMBEESR
SFRIAERRAT S AT LT AR BIPT S PO pr i (b 228
ATRIREEERRE ([RAEEERTA])
P&t <P RIMESC -

E=2RR ARARBE_ZT_—F1+=A
=t—BUEFERA-BEETESF LR L
WA M+ TR EERTAD ([
B 1) FREEY ST RIMERSC - M N Pt 54 <7 B9 57
AR A2 MEB FTIRBER T SLRRS)

SF RIS A2, 16k

RIRT IR ST RIMGRSCER A6 - 8 RITHAR
ZnAatEIRE T EHR - ALEE - AR
BN ARSI [T ] W= ARBLE
I 1 B T R 9 T RIMER SR A2 5

MREEER —T-NFELATZBRRAR
ﬁif%%ﬂﬁ%% CMEREEREEERRE
E-EZgrHoMexsE R ELAEEEE
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REBERE HNENGENER - ST
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f&?ﬁﬁﬁlﬁ@ﬁﬂ’]%@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁz - BEERE
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The Company understands the importance to comply with the code
provision A.2.1 and will continue to consider the feasibility to comply
with the said code provision. If compliance with the said provision is
determined, appropriate persons will be nominated to assume the
different roles of chairman and chief executive officer.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as the required standard for securities
transactions by the directors. The Company has made specific
enquiries of all Directors and all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code and
its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises five executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The three independent non-
executive Directors account for more than one-third of the Board. The
composition of the Board is set out as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Guozhen

Mr. Duan Chuanhong (resigned on 13 July 2022)
Ms. Lin Xiaoshan (appointed on 4 March 2022)
Mr. Liu Zhiwei (appointed on 1 November 2022)
Mr. Li Yinxiang (appointed on 3 March 2023)
Mr. Xia Xiaobing (resigned on 4 March 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Li Huiwu

Mr. Yang Weidong

Mr. Chak Chi Shing

ARBHBETTANRXEA2MGNERE
W AR E B8 T L st RIEX A RT{TIE - 10
IREBST LRI  ARFRRHERBBAED
EEEERITRER 2B -

EITRFR HIEEST A

RAREFHN LR AKT S+ ArE _ E T E T A
ERRTEFRHORESTR ([EESFR ) 1E
BHEEFETHELFRIAMBOIRE - RQFILE
MEREEEENERE  MEESFHBRRK
ERBE-_T-_—F+-_A=+—HILEFEED
BTIRETRIERINAMTBIRERARESET
BHEZHMITHSFR
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The biographical details of the Directors are disclosed in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors” on pages 39 to 42 in this
annual report. The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills
and experiences appropriate to the requirements of the businesses of
the Group and to exercise of independence and is well balanced. Each
of the Directors has relevant expertise and extensive corporate and
strategic planning experiences that may contribute to the business of
the Group. The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other. All independent
non-executive Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of
their independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Functions of the Board

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Board’s primary duty is to ensure the viability of the
Company and to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of the
shareholders as a whole while taking into account the interests of
other stakeholders. The Group has adopted internal guidelines in
setting forth matters that require the Board’s approval. Apart from its
statutory responsibilities, the Board approves the Group’s strategic
plans, key operational initiatives, major investments and funding
decisions. It also reviews the Group’s financial performance, identifies
principal risks of the Group’s business and ensures implementation of
appropriate systems to manage these risks. Daily business operations
and administrative functions of the Group are delegated to the
management.

Board Meetings, Annual General Meeting and Procedures

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and timely
information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. In compliance
with code provision A.1.3 of the Code, at least 14 days’ notice has been
given for a regular Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity
to attend. Notice, agenda and board papers of regular Board meetings
are sent to all Directors within reasonable time and at least 3 days
prior to the meetings. Directors are free to contribute and share their
views at meetings and major decisions will only be taken after
deliberation at Board meetings. Directors who are considered having
conflict of interests or material interests in the proposed transactions
or issues to be discussed will not be counted in the quorum of meeting
and will abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions. Full minutes
are prepared after the meetings and the draft minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comment on the final version of which are endorsed
in the subsequent Board meeting.

EENREEFBERENAFMEINEENE
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2
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JINBEEZGHENEE - RAEERESN
EREMENRENRETSE  EXHEER
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All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a
fixed term. Every Director is subject to re-election on retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company. The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and still considers the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent as at the date

of this annual report.

ERBUFMTESENEGHEREEES - R
BEAQRWAMERRAN  BREFHARE
TRIBEEEF - NARERERBULIFNIT
EERBEITRAUBEIBKEINFEER
£ EREBYM - ARFRAFRABINR

BIUIFMITERRBIUIE

Number of
meetings attended/held
HESEIE BHERAH

Shareholder Board
meeting meeting
Name of member REHE BRRXE EEEER
Executive Directors: BITEE
Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman) WREE A () 1/2 12/12
Mr. Wang Guozhen TEELE 2/2 11/12
Mr. Duan Chuanhong * BT oA 2/2 6/6
Ms. Lin Xiaoshan? PREEIR 22 £2 2/2 10/10
Mr. Liu Zhiwei® BIERISE A N/A i@ 1/1
Mr. Li Yinxiang* IR S E N/A 7~ A N/A N3
Mr. Xia Xiaobing® BE/NESEAS N/A N5 A 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUIHITESE -
Mr. Chak Chi Shing BEBEA 2/2 7/12
Mr. Li Huiwu TERLE 1/2 11/12
Mr. Yang Weidong BREREE 1/2 11/12
Resigned on 13 July 2022 ! RZTBZZF+A+=HET
Appointed on 4 March 2022 2 RZZ-Z—F=ANAEERT
Appointed on 1 November 2022 E i

L N N

Appointed on 3 March 2023
Resigned on 4 March 2022

RIZEZZF+—A—BEEE
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Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Newly appointed Directors are provided with necessary induction and
information to ensure that they have a proper understanding of the
Company’s business and operations, as well as awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the Code, the Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills, so as to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Directors committed to participating in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by way of attending training or
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business or to the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Directors have been provided with regular
updates on the Company’s performance, position and prospects to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties. The Directors are also briefed on the latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory
requirements from time to time. All directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development programs to
develop and refresh their professional knowledge and skills. All the
existing Directors confirmed that they have had suitable directors’
training through attendance of training courses or reading materials to
refresh their knowledge and skills during the Year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends
to the shareholders of the Company to allow shareholders of the
Company to share the Company’s profits and for the Company to
retain adequate reserves for future growth.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the
right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors of the Company are appointed for a
specific term of three years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting, at least one third of the
Directors are required to retire from office by rotation. Each Director
shall retire from office at least once every three years and shall include
those who have been longest in office since their last election or re-
election.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, new Directors appointed by the Board during the year shall
retire and submit themselves for re-election at the annual general
meeting immediately following their appointments.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established specific committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
with written terms of reference to assist them in the efficient
implementation of their functions. Specific responsibilities have been
delegated to the above committees.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses.

The Board shall establish other committees for specific purposes from
time to time to facilitate the Company’s operations.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 31 December 2010.
As at 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee had three members
comprising three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Chak Chi Shing (Chairman), Mr. Li Huiwu and Mr. Yang Weidong.

EXZE FENE

RATBEARITEREMR=F -
REFAS LHESERNEER -

HER AR B

RIBARBEBKERAAFE1080) 5 BEF

BRAFAGLEHEIBARE=ZNZ EEZHWFER
T -BREFARSVEBE=FRE—R BEHA

BREELABRZAREEZRESTHHZRNE
%0

RIBARRAKBRAAENNGE  NFER
BEFESZ I HMEFTARTUYNRBERRE
BZBERBFRASLREZEE

E%x%8%
EFeCKAEARERENKERZES
(AEZZREE - %Mé;ﬁ&k%yﬁm)
DB E BB ETHRAE - LR B0 KE

BREERE -

E% g

ZESRREHENNERABITERY
é%ﬁé@x*% ARESENERT
BUERRZ

T VA - B AAREEE

o

EEeN TR ARERNKIEMZES @

HENARRRMEEIEE -

EZEE®
ARABRER-_Z—ZF+-_A=+—HKT
&éé%o%:%::¢+:ﬁz+—a'%
REEBEM-RKEMAK  BE BB IIEH
TEREEBLAE(EFE)  TERELANBGE

REHE -

Annual Report 3k 2022 31



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

_LLL/\—/-r\

1FE 3= /D#&m

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control system
of the Group. The written terms of reference which describes the
authority and duties of the Audit Committee have been revised by the
Board on 24 February 2016 to conform to the provisions of the
Revised Code, a copy of which is posted to the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The works performed by the Audit Committee in 2022 included the
following:

. to review the financial results and reports of the Company;

. to review the reports from external auditor, management letters
and management response;

. to review the matters in relation to internal audit and the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management

system;

. to review the Group’s compliance with statutory and regulatory
requirements;

. to review corporate governance matters; and
. to review the re-appointment of the external auditor.
Three meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year

ended 31 December 2022 and the individual attendance of each
member is set out below:
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Number of meetings

attended/held
Name of member REHR HESBAE SBITEBRH
Mr. Li Huiwu =EBRELE 3/3
Mr. Yang Weidong HIERLAE 3/3
Mr. Chak Chi Shing (Chairman) BEBIE(EE) 3/3

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2022
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

ARAHE—E-_—_F+_A=1+—HIFE
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 31 December 2010.
The Remuneration Committee had three members comprising two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yang Weidong
(Chairman), Mr. Li Huiwu and one executive Director, namely Mr. Lin
Dailian.

The Remuneration Committee is governed by its terms of reference,
which have been revised by the Board on 30 March 2012 and further
revised on 31 March 2023 pursuant to the Revised Code. The terms of
reference are currently available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to
review and determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses
and other compensation payable to the Directors and senior
management and to make recommendation to the Board on the
Group’s policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management. No Director shall participate in any discussion
about his or her own remuneration. The remuneration of the Directors
was determined with reference to their respective experience,
responsibilities with the Group and general market conditions.

Three meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held during the
year ended 31 December 2022 to review the remuneration package of
the Directors and senior management. The individual attendance of
each member is set out below.
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Number of meetings
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Name of member REHSE HESBRE BITEBRH
Mr. Yang Weidong (Chairman) BEELE(ZE) 3/3
Mr. Lin Dailian MBS A& 3/3
Mr. Li Huiwu FEREE 3/3
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 31 December
2010 with written terms of reference which are in compliance with the
code provision of the Code. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee include the making of recommendations to the Board on
appointment of Directors and succession planning for the Directors.
The specific terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
currently available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The following is a summary of the work of the Nomination Committee
during the year ended 31 December 2022:

. review the structure, size and composition (including but without
limitation, the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

. review the retirement of Directors by rotation and the re-
appointment of the retiring Directors at the 2022 Annual General
Meeting;

. review the re-appointment of Directors during the year; and

. assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors.

The Nomination Committee consisted of three members, comprising
one executive Director, namely Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman) and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Huiwu and Mr.
Yang Weidong.

Three meetings of the Nomination Committee were held during the
year ended 31 December 2022 and the individual attendance of each
member is set out below.
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Board diversity policy

The Company recognises that the Board with a reasonable balance of
skills and experience and sufficient diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the business and operation of the Group would be
beneficial to the Company and its shareholders as a whole and
enhance the quality of its performance.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity
on the Board.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Company seeks to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, educational background,
professional experience and qualifications, relevant industry
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be made according to the merits of candidates and their
contribution to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven Directors.
Three of them are independent non-executive Directors, thereby
promoting critical review and control of the management process. The
Board is also characterised by significant diversity, whether considered
in terms of age, educational background, professional experience,
skills, and knowledge.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period.

The statement by the auditor of the Company about its responsibilities
for the financial statements is set out in the independent auditor’s
report contained in the Annual Report. There are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company engaged McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited as
its external auditor for the Year. Analysis of the remuneration in
respect of audit services provided by the external auditor is included
in note 14 to the financial statements in the Annual Report. For the
Year, the total fee paid in respect of the non-audit services is
approximately HK$372,000. The non-audit services was paid for
review capital forecast and statements.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tam Mei Chu (“Ms. Tam”) is the company secretary of the
Company, with effective from 31 August 2021. For the year ended 31
December 2022, Ms. Tam had complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
Ms. Tam is @ member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of system of internal controls and risk management
within the Group. The system is set up to address key business risks of
failure to meet corporate objectives and to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. The
purpose of such system is to manage and control risks properly, but
not eliminate it.

The Board has through the Audit Committee reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls, internal audit
and risk management, including financial, operational and compliance
controls on annual basis. The Board considered the system is effective
and adequate. The review has also considered the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff in respect of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget. The Board ensures the existing
resources, qualifications and experience of staff and their training
programmes and budget should be adequate in respect of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function.
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In view of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the Group,
the Board has appointed external independent professionals to
perform internal control review. As approved by the Audit Committee,
the external independent professionals made assessment on various
business and operation risks of the Group. Internal control review of
business and operation cycles is conducted under rotation basis every
year. The Audit Committee reviewed the findings from the external
independent professionals periodically and discussed the
recommended actions needed to be taken to develop and improve the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system. The Board will
continue to improve the Group’s internal control and risk management
systems through periodic reviews and recommendations from the
external auditors during their audit and external independent
professionals during their internal control review.

Regarding the procedures and internal control for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of its
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“Inside Information Provisions”),
and any information required to be disclosed under Rule 13.09 of the
Listing Rules or any inside information required to be disclosed under
the Inside Information Provisions should be announced immediately.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year. Each
general meeting, other than an annual general meeting is referred to
as an extraordinary general meeting.

According to article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary
general meeting. Extraordinary general meetings shall also be
convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.
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Shareholders who wish to move a resolution at general meetings may
follow the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Board recognised that effective communication to shareholders
and potential investors is very important to gain their confidence and
attract new investors.

The Group has taken following measures to enhance the
communication with shareholders and investors of the Group:

(1) Annual and interim reports are prepared and issued to all
shareholders within the prescribed period stipulated by the
Stock Exchange. All results announcements and reports are
posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website www.link-asia.com.hk.

(2) The Group releases business update through voluntary
announcement posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website to keep all shareholders updated about the
business development of the Group.

(3) The Group has provided enquiry mailbox (enquiry@1143.com.hk)
and phone number on the Company’s website. Shareholders,
investors and interested parties are welcome to make their
enquiries through email and phone and the management will
provide their timely response.

Constitutional Documents

During the Year, the Company has amended its Articles of Association
to among other things, confirm with the amendments to the Listing
Rules and applicable laws of the Cayman Islands. The current version
of the Articles of Association is available on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Lin Dailian (“Mr. Lin), aged 42, joined the Group in July 2019. Mr.
Lin graduated from Anhui University of Finance and Economics and
later studied at Fudan University. He is a well-known venture capitalist
in China. Mr. Lin has over 17 years of experience in entrepreneurship
and investment, successfully led or participated in the equity
investment and listing of nearly 30 projects. Mr. Lin has been adhering
to the concept of value investment, real estate finance, corporate
strategic planning and business model shaping. He has extensive
practical experience and professional knowledge in business
management, mergers and acquisitions, and restructuring of
companies. With rich entrepreneurial experience and value investment
philosophy, Mr. Lin has been recognized in the financial industry. He
has won the Top 100 Best Venture Capitalists of Hurun 2016 and the
Top 30 Outstanding Innovative People of China’s Equity Investment in
China.

Mr. Wang Guozhen (“Mr. Wang”), aged 64, was appointed as
independent non-executive Director in November 2019 and was re-
designated as executive Director and vice president of the Company
in April 2020. Mr. Wang holds an executive master’s degree in
business administration with Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business. He joined the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of
China in 1982 and has served as heads of various departments. He was
also officer of General Office and Bureaucratic Service Center of
National Council for Social Security Fund, the standing member of
council of Beijing Charity Association and the member of 11th and 12th
Beijing Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference.

Mr. Wang acted as the executive director and vice chairman of Hsin
Chong Group Holdings Limited (¥7 & %&£ B 1= & & R 2 &) (“Hsin
Chong”) from September 2018 to November 2019. Hsin Chong is a
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and the
securities of which were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited until 31 December 2019. Hsin Chong
was principally engaged in engineering and property businesses. Hsin
Chong was wound up by an order of the Supreme Court of Bermuda
dated 20 January 2020, following a winding-up petition being filed by
a creditor and shareholder of Hsin Chong in January 2019. Mr. Wang
confirmed that (i) the winding up had not resulted in any liability or
obligation imposed against him; (ii) there was no wrongful act on his
part leading to the winding up process of Hsin Chong; and (iii) he was
not aware of any actual or potential claim that had been or would be
made against him as a result of the winding up.
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Ms. Lin Xiaoshan (“Ms. Lin”), aged 33, holds a Bachelor of
Communication and Information System Management* (i1 B2{5 &
ZEEIR) from Chinese People’s Liberation Army National University
of Defense Technology, School of Information Communication* (&
ARBIERG R AREEBBIEEF). She has over 10 years of
experience in operation management and medical business
management. Before joining the Group, she was a general manager of
oversea projects of Shenzhen Jinjiayuan Import and Export Limited*
(Y4 =REEOAR AT, the managing director of Chaoshang
Investment (Shenzhen) Holdings Limited* ( 8 & #& & 42 i & 3II)
BFRAF]), and executive director of Qianhai Aesthetics and Plastics
Surgery Medical Group (Shenzhen) Holdings Limited* (R /28328
SEORYDERBRAGTD).

Mr. Li Yinxiang (“Mr. Li”), aged 55, has over 30 years of working
experience in agricultural by products, electronic equipment sales,
trading and production industries. Before joining the Group, Mr. Li
worked as the general manager of a company mainly engaged in
network technology development and household appliances in
Jiangsu Province, the PRC, mainly responsible to manage the
company’s daily operations, including but not limited to technology
development, product sales and review of the company’s financial
statements. He has extensive experience in sales planning, production
management and corporate management and has extensive personal
networks in different industries.

Mr. Liu Zhiwei (“Mr. Liu”), aged 53, obtained a Specialist Certificate
of General Higher Education in Clinical Medicine from Sun Yat-sen
University of Medical Sciences in 1992, a Bachelor’s Degree in Clinical
Medicine in Chinese and Western Medicine from Hunan University of
Chinese Medicine in 2015 and an EMBA degree from Jilin University in
2017. In addition, Mr. Liu is currently an executive vice president of the
Meixian Chamber of Commerce in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group,
he was the chairman of Shenzhen Xinxin Medical Technology
Development Co., Ltd.* ORI #TEZEEFERI B ZER AR A F)) and the
chairman of Yuanta Chinese Medicine Chain (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. Mr.
Liu has over 30 years of experience in Chinese medical business and
over 20 years of experience in the operation and management of
Chinese medicine healthcare institutions. He also has solid theoretical
knowledge in the field of Chinese medicine technology and health
preservation by food.
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Mr. Yang Weidong (“Mr. Yang”), aged 49, was appointed in April
2020. Mr. Yang graduated from Hefei Institute of Economics and
Technology with a bachelor’'s degree in economics and management
in 1995. He has more than 15 years of experience in business
management and sales management. Mr. Yang served as the regional
sales director of Hangzhou Sunyard System Engineering Co., Ltd from
2001 to 2005. Since August 2005, he has been serving as the deputy
general manager of Hangzhou Teamax Technology Group Co., Ltd (the
“Teamax Technology”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Teamax Smart
City Technology Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: SZ00662, “Teamax Smart”)
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and he is responsible for sales
management and pre-sale supporting. Mr. Yang has held the
supervisor position served as the chairman of the board of supervisors
of Teamax Smart since June 2016 and since June 2019, respectively.

Mr. Yang was previously a director of Teamax Technology, a limited
liability company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China, and
its principal activities include technology development, technical
services and consulting. Neither Teamax Technology nor any of its
subsidiaries is related to the Company or any of its subsidiaries. Mr.
Yang ceased to act as a director of Teamax Technology with effect
from 25 October 2019. According to the notice dated 14 January 2020
published by Hangzhou Binjiang District People’s Court (Fi M &L
& A RJERL), a bankruptcy and liquidation application filed by Bank of
Jiangsu Co., Ltd., Hangzhou Branch GT &/ ERTTIXA B R A BN 21T
against Teamax Technology (the “Proceedings”) was accepted on 27
November 2019 pursuant to a default in repayment of principal of
RMB48 million and related interests by Teamax Technology. As at the
date of this annual report , the liquidation is in progress.

Mr. Yang confirmed that he is not a party of such Proceedings and is
not aware of any actual or potential claim that has been or will be
made against him as a result of the above.
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Mr. Chak Chi Shing (“Mr. Chak”), aged 42, holds a bachelor’s degree
of commerce in Accounting and Finance from Curtin University of
Technology. He is a certified public accountant of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and Certified Public Accountant
Australia. Mr. Chak has more than 15 years of experience in auditing,
accounting, corporate finance and financial management and five
years of experience in company secretarial matter and corporate
governance in listed companies. Mr. Chak has been the independent
non-executive director of SDM Group Holdings Limited (“SDM”) (stock
code: 8363), a company listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since May 2019. Mr. Chak
has been appointed as the chief financial officer and company
secretary of Tokyo Chuo Auction Holdings Limited (stock code: 1939),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since
September 2019. Mr. Chak was the executive director of China
Shenghai Food Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 1676), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from
December 2018 to September 2019, the company secretary of Bolina
Holding Co., Limited (stock code: 1190), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange until its delisting on 10 March 2021, from
March 2017 to August 2018, and the chief financial officer and company
secretary of SDM from March 2016 to July 2016.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group is pleased to present this Environmental, Social and
Governance Report 2022 (the “Report”) to provide an overview of the
Group’s management of significant issues affecting the operation,
including environmental, social and governance issues. This Report is
prepared by the Group with the professional assistance of APAC
Compliance Consultancy and Internal Control Services Limited.

PREPARATION BASIS AND SCOPE

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) —
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” and has
complied with the “comply or explain” provision in the Listing Rules.

This Report summarises the performance of the Group in respect of
corporate environmental and social responsibility, covering its
operating activities which are considered as material by the Group —
(i) electronic manufacturing services (“EMS”) for consumer electronic
products with the manufacturing plant located in Guangzhou
(“Guangzhou Factory”) through offering one-stop solutions to a
number of international brand owners (the “EMS” business); (ii)
securities and other assets investments in Hong Kong; and (iii)
provision of real estate advisory service and real estate purchase
service in Southeast Asia; (the “Investments and real estate supply
chain services” business) The Group’s headquarter office is located in
Hong Kong and its operation location in PRC with its diversified
customer base covering Japan, Asia-Pacific region, America and
Europe.

REPORTING PERIOD

This Report demonstrates our sustainability initiatives during the
reporting period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022.

CONTACT INFORMATION

The Group welcomes your feedback on this Report for our
sustainability initiatives. Please give your suggestions or share your
views with the Group via the Group’s social media platforms or email
at enquiry@1143.com.hk.
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INTRODUCTION

The Group is achieving and benchmarking with well-recognized
International Guidelines and protocols of Sustainable development. As
a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining the
highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. The Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in relation to its business including health and
safety, workplace conditions, employment and the environment. The
Group understands a better future depends on everyone’s
participation and contribution. It has encouraged employees,
customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate in
environmental and social activities which benefit the community as a
whole. The Group maintains strong relationships with its employees,
has enhanced cooperation with its suppliers and has provided high
quality products and services to its customers so as to ensure
sustainable development.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, who (a) have invested or will
invest in the Group; (b) have the ability to influence the outcomes
within the Group; and (c) are interested in or affected by or have the
potential to be affected by the impact of the Group’s activities,
products, services and relationships. It allows the Group to understand
risks and opportunities. The Group will continue to ensure effective
communication and maintain good relationship with each of its key
stakeholders.

Stakeholders are prioritised from time to time in view of the Group’s
roles and duties, strategic plan and business initiatives. The Group
engages with its stakeholders to develop mutually beneficial
relationships and to seek their views on its business proposals and
initiatives as well as to promote sustainability in the marketplace,
workplace, community and environment.

The Group acknowledges the importance of intelligence gained from
the stakeholders’ insights, inquiries and continuous interest in the
Group’s business activities. The Group has identified key stakeholders
that are important to our business and established various channels
for communication. The following table provides an overview of the
Group’s key stakeholders, and various platforms and methods of
communication are used to reach, listen and respond.
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Stakeholders Expectations Engagement channels
BHE FEH SHRE
Government Compliance with the applicable laws Annual reports, interim reports and
BUF and regulations announcements
BPERERNOER FRERE  PHRERAE
Proper tax payment Company website
BOERTR NSIEED
Shareholders and investors Low risk Annual general meetings and other
BRERREBESE KRB shareholder meetings
Return on the investment REBEFREREMKRRAE
& & Bl 7R Annual reports, interim reports
Information disclosure and and announcements
transparency FERE - PHRERASE
EERBERERE Company website
Protection of interests and fair NGIFER
treatment of shareholders Meetings with investors and
REERE#ED KA FEFE analysts

BEEERDITENEZ

Employees Safeguard the rights and interests Trainings, seminars, briefing
== of employees sessions
HIREERDNTENGE wal - A RENE
Working environment Newsletters
TYEIRIR FrE T
Career development opportunities Intranet and emails
ERERMKS PRI B 48 70 25 P
Health and safety
fERRER 2
Customers Safe and high-quality products Annual reports, interim reports
EF ZrRIBEEEM and announcements
Stable relationship FEHE  PHRERAE
BE#EER Company website
Information transparency NGIE
EEEAE Email and customer service hotline
Integrity BN B RIS
= Regular meetings
Business ethics EHE
[HESEEE
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Stakeholders Expectations Engagement channels
BHE FEH SHRE
Suppliers and partners * Long-term partnership *  Business meetings and phone calls
HPER R B+ REARBHAR XBEERES
* Honest cooperation ¢ Regular meetings
B EE EHEeE
» Fairness and openness * Reviews and assessments
NSNS @t Kt ih
* Information resources sharing
EEBERLE
* Risk reduction
2 ligEN
Financial institutions » Compliance with the applicable »  Consulting
SRS laws and regulations B
B TERERRER + Information disclosure
+  Disclosure of information EEHTE
ERIFE « Annual reports, interim reports
and announcements
FERSE  PHRERRE
Media + Information transparency *  Company website
iHee ERERE FEEERAE
* Interviews
[ 57
Public and communities «  Community involvement * Annual reports, interim reports
ABRRHE MtELm and announcements
. Social responsibilities FERE - PHRERLSE
Sn--b-gus

Through general communication with stakeholders, the Group
understands the expectations and concerns from stakeholders. The
feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more informed decisions,
and to better assess and manage the resulting impact.

The Group has adopted the principle of materiality in the ESG
reporting by understanding the key ESG issues that are important to
the business of the Group. All the key ESG issues and key performance
indicators (KPIs) are reported in the Report according to
recommendations of the ESG Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules) and the Global Reporting Initiative Guidelines. The
Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG aspects
through the following steps:
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Step 1: Identification — Industry Benchmarking

. Relevant ESG areas were identified through the review of
relevant ESG reports of the local and international industry
peers.

. The materiality of each ESG area was determined based on the
importance of each ESG area to the Group through internal
discussion of the management and the recommendation of ESG
Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules).

Step 2: Prioritisation — Stakeholder Engagement

. The Group discussed with key stakeholders on key ESG areas
identified above to ensure all the key aspects were covered.

Step 3: Validation — Determining Material Issues

. Based on the discussion with key stakeholders and internal
discussion among the management, the Group’s management
ensured that all the key and material ESG areas, which were
important to the business development, were reported and in
compliance with ESG Reporting Guide.

As a result of this process carried out in 2022, those important ESG
areas to the Group were discussed in this Report.

ESG GOVERNANCE
Board’s oversight of ESG issues

Board’s overall vision and strategy in managing ESG issues

The board of directors (“Board”) has a primary role in overseeing the
management of the Group’s sustainability issues. During the year, the
Board and the ESG Sustainability Working Group spent significant
time in evaluating the impact of ESG-related risks on our operation
and formulating relevant policy in dealing with the risks. The oversight
of the Board is to ensure the management to have all the right tools
and resources to oversee the ESG issues in the context of strategy and
long-term value creation.
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ESG Working Group

To demonstrate our commitment to transparency and accountability,
our Group has established an ESG Working Group, which has clear
terms of reference that set out the powers delegated to it by the
Board. We highly value opinions of each stakeholder and treat them as
the cornerstone for the development of the Group.

The ESG Working Group is primarily responsible for reviewing and
supervising the ESG process, and risk management of the Group.
Different ESG issues were reviewed by the ESG Working Group at the
meetings. During the reporting period, the ESG Working Group and
the management reviewed the ESG governance and different ESG
issues.

Board’s ESG management approach and strategy for material ESG-
related issues

In order to better understand the opinions and expectations of
different stakeholders on our ESG issues, materiality assessment is
conducted each year. We ensure various platforms and channels of
communication are used to reach, listen and respond to our key
stakeholders. Through general communication with stakeholders, the
Group is to understand the expectations and concerns from
stakeholders. The feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more
informed decisions, and to better assess and manage the resulting
impact.

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG
aspects through the steps: (1) material ESG area identification by
industry benchmarking; (2) key ESG area prioritization with
stakeholder engagement; and (3) validation and determining material
ESG issues based on results of communication among stakeholders
and the management. Hence, this can enhance understanding of their
degree and change of attention to each significant ESG issue, and can
enable us to more comprehensively plan our sustainable development
work in the future. Those important and material ESG areas identified
during our material assessment were discussed in this Report.
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Board review progress against ESG-related goals and targets

The progress of target implementation and the performance of the
goals and targets should be closely reviewed from time to time.
Rectification may be needed if the progress falls short of expectation.
Effective communication about the goals and target process with key
stakeholders such as employees is essential, as this enables them to be
engaged in the implementation process, and to feel they are part of
the change that the company aspires to achieve.

Setting strategic goals for the coming three to five years enables the
company to develop a realistic roadmap and focus on results in
achieving the visions.

Setting targets requires the ESG Working Group to carefully examine
the attainability of the targets which should be weighed against the
company’s ambitions and goals. The ESG Working Group specifies
whether the target is to be set on an absolute basis or intensity basis is
essential for target setting.

A, ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

To demonstrate the Group’s commitments to sustainable
development and compliance with applicable Regional Laws and
Regulations relating to environmental protection, we endeavor
to maintain green manufacturing processes and office
operational practices in order to minimize the adverse
environmental impacts of our business activities.

Achieving the balance among another two pillars of society and
economy of the sustainable development, the Group is dedicated
to contributing to the environmental, the third pillar of the
sustainability and following these principles to minimize our
adverse impacts on the environment:

. Complying with all the applicable Regional Laws and
Regulations from all levels and functions of the
organization

. Assuring needs, expectations and/or applicable legal
requirements (if any) of the relevant interested parties; the
person or organization that can affect, be affected by, like
shareholders and/or stakeholders including customers,
suppliers, communities, regulators, non-governmental
organizations, investors and employees relating to
environmental protection being communicated and
understood
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Employing ISO-14001 Environmental Management System
to adopt systematic approach to effectively protect the
environment and respond to changing environmental
conditions in balance with socio-economic needs

Ensuring sufficient investments and resources for the
environmental-friendly facilities, equipment and
instruments that are operating safely, effectively and more
efficient

Reinforcing promotion of conservation commitments,
educational training, and enhancing staff’s environmental
protection awareness

Incorporating environmental targets and objectives into
our business strategic visions and competitive implication
by aligning them with business priorities and decision
making

EMISSIONS

The Group acknowledges its responsibility to the
environment and has ethical duties to reduce emissions.
Given the nature of our business, the impacts on the
environment and nature resources are not significant. In
spite of this, we are committed to minimizing our
environmental impacts by responsibly managing our
business operations, reducing our carbon footprint and
using resources effectively.

In the meantime, we have full complied with all of the
relevant environmental laws and regulations where we
operated such as the Atmospheric Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China (2015) in
the PRC, the Motor Vehicle Idling (Fixed Penalty)
Ordinance (Cap. 611), and the Road Traffic Ordinance (Cap.
374) in Hong Kong. Besides, no concluded case (2020: nil).
regarding emissions was brought against us or our
employees during the year.
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A1l.1 Air Pollutant Emissions ALl KRRESFEMEER

The Group attaches great importance to mitigate the
possible adverse impact of its EMS business on the
environmental and considers environmental
protection mindset an important obligation during its
production and operating activities. The Group’s
major environmental aspects mainly include energy
consumption and wastes generation. Nevertheless,
the impact on natural resources is minimal due to our
business nature.

During our operation, the PRC factory’s canteen used
Liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) as the cooking fuel
and the factory generated electricity itself by nine
power generators for one hour bimonthly with the
use of diesel. The electricity generated would be
consumed during staggered power consumption.
Moreover, the petrol consumption came from vehicle
use for business transportation purpose. The burning
of LPG, the consumptions of diesel and petrol
generated nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulphur dioxides
(S02) and particulate matter (PM) to the environment
nearby. For the stationary sources, the air pollutant
emissions from LPG remained stable for cooking use
in PRC factory canteen during the year. The decrease
in the air pollutant emissions from diesel was mainly
attributable to the increased use in 2021 of diesel-
consuming power generators for staggered power
consumption to tackle with the electricity usage
temporary constraint measure adopted by the
Guangdong Government and the drop in production
volume of the EMS segment in 2022. Owing to the
persistent COVID-19 outbreak in 2022, the reduced
vehicle use frequency by the management and staff
led to a drop in air pollutant emissions by mobile
combustion during the year. Furthermore, the Group
targets to reduce the emission of air pollutants by 2%
by 2025.
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The details of air pollutant emissions during the
reporting period were as follows:

Investment and
real estate supply
chain services

Air Pollutions Unit EMS REREHE
EREEY By EFRERE HEMEERE
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) kg 86.88 -
A&y T
— Stationary combustion kg 86.31 -
— REEEMER Tr
— Mobile combustion kg 0.57 -
~ REBFRER T
Sulfur oxides (SOx) kg 5,991.30 -
k177 TR
— Stationary combustion kg 5,991.16 -
— REEEMER Tr
— Mobile combustion kg 0.14 -
~ REBFRER T
Particulate matter (PM) kg 9.06 -
Sk T
— Stationary combustion kg 8.95 -
— REEEMER Tr
— Mobile combustion kg 0.11 -
~ REBFRER T

Emissions from production

Volatile organic compounds (VOCs) are the major
organic waste produced during the paint spraying
process for our products. Therefore, the governance
of industrial waste gases containing VOCs is the focus
and control area for our product fabrication
processes. Besides VOCs discharges, benzene,
toluene, xylene, total non-methane hydrocarbons,
lead and tin are also the air pollutant being produced
during our production process. During the year, a
licensed party was outsourced by the Group to carry
out an inspection assessment regarding to the
average density and speed of waste gases emissions
from our factory on a specific date.

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 1820 B 22 R £ B AR A 7

2021

Total
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74717

746.43

0.74

5,991.30 6,086.36

5,991.16 6,086.18

0.14 0.18

9.06 93.19

8.95 93.08

0.11 0.11
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The assessment results provided by the licensed FEAFREHENTHAEREBT
party showed that our waste gases emission has met HMIMERERSE P A
the standard discharge limit of the relevant FARIBEZRIZESRREE -
environmental regulations in the PRC, the assessment BERBERO T E RREA T
results of the density and speed of waste gases HERETIN T X

emissions are shown in the following tables:

Average density EHEE
Year 2022 —=E_—

Lead and its Tin and its
Waste gases of emissions Unit compounds compounds
BERBE B thRELED HRELEY
Old factory production unit mg/m? Not-Detected (ND) 3.7X10*
EETMmEESN 25,/ HK R
New factory production unit mg/mé Not-Detected (ND) 3.6X10
M IMAEESN 257,/ IHK R
Standard Discharge limit mg/mé <0.7 <85
PR EE 25,/ HK
Results - Pass Pass
#ER mia miA

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ22051102
AHEREHSR - SGT-HJ2205102

Sampling Collection Date: 18 May 2022
BxBE: —E-__FHA+N\H
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Volatile organic
compounds
(voc)
Waste gases of emissions Unit Benzene Toluene Xylene B
BRER Bfy x b S ;i3 BHLEN
Organic waste gas emission from mg/m’ Not-Detected 0.04 0.08 112
old factory production unit ER/ Uk (ND)
REEBIHEEEMMERERN Rt
Waste gas emission from new mg/m? Not-Detected 0.07 0.4 204
factory production unit ER/Uhk (ND)
REMIHEEELNERER Rt
Waste gas emission exhaust port mg/m’ Not-Detected Not-Detected 0.07 0.77
from plastic injection after waste En/IHk (ND) (ND)
gas treatment R R
BRESGRIBHEENERIERD
Waste gas emission exhaust port mg/m? Not-Detected 358 0.23 18.3
from assembly pad printing and spray &%,/ K (\D)
painting after waste gas treatment N
BREERARBIRBEREEN
BEREERA
Standard Discharge limit mg/m? <2 <40 <70 Not-Applicable
(N/A)
BEBEIREE 27,/ HK TaA
Results - Pass Pass Pass -

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ22051102, SGT-HJ22051103
SHERERS - SGT-HI2205102 ~ SGT-HI2205103

Sampling Collection Date: 18 May 2022
REES: —2-FRATNH
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Year 2021 —E-—-F

Lead and its Tin and its
Waste gases of emissions Unit compounds compounds
BERBE By WRELEY BRELCEY
Old factory production unit mg/m? 0.01 6.56X10°
EFTIHMAEERENM =25,/ K
New factory production unit mg/m?3 Not-Detected (ND)  Not-Detected (ND)
TImEESAM =25,/ K R Rig
Standard Discharge limit mg/m?3 <0.7 <8.5
IR RRE =25,/ K
Results - Pass Pass
& PR i

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ21051302a
FHERERSE - SGT-HJ21051302a

Sampling Collection Date: 14 May 2021
BERE: —E-—FHA+HA
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Volatile organic

compounds
(vocC)
Waste gases of emissions Unit Benzene Toluene Xylene BEa
BRER Bfy x Bx —RR B#{EN
Organic waste gas emission from mg/m? Not-Detected 0.07 0.04 152
old factory production unit ER/Uh% (ND)
REEETIHEEENR R
BRERHR
Waste gas emission from new mg/m?’ Not-Detected 0.02 0.07 2.45
factory production unit ER/THk (ND)
REHMIREEEMMNERIN At
Waste gas emission exhaust port mg/m? Not-Detected 0.0081 Not-Detected Not-Applicable
from plastic injection after waste ~ Z3,/3 A3k (ND) (ND) (N/A)
gas treatment Rt RRit TNaRA
BREREIBHEENEREND
Waste gas emission exhaust port mg/m? Not-Detected 141 0.42 7.59
from assembly pad printing after ~ Z8, /35K (ND)
waste gas treatment Kigit
BRERGAEBINERERD
Waste gas emission exhaust port mg/m’ Not-Detected 3.88 0.12 14
from spray painting after waste 2%,/ K (ND)
gas treatment R
BRERREREENERERD
Standard Discharge limit mag/m? <12 <40 <70 Not-Applicable
BEHNBRE Bn/UHk (N/A)
TNEA
Results - Pass Pass Pass -
& BE ko) #E

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ21051302a, SGT-HJ21051303
HERE RS SGT-HJ21051302a + SGT-HJ21051303

Sampling Collection Date: 14 May 2021

DERS: —F--FRATMEA
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Average speed FEE
Year 2022 —E_-—

Lead and its Tin and its
Waste gases of emissions Unit compounds compounds
BRI B HRA{LAD BRALED
Old factory production unit ka/h 6.8X107 4.5X10°
EFIRMEEEN NIV
New factory production unit ka/h 6.7X10° 4.5X10°¢
IMREEEN NN
Standard Discharge limit ka/h <7.0X10° <0.48
EEHRRE NN
Results - Pass Pass
ER piihic) i

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ22051102
FEIREREE © SGT-HJ22051102

Sampling Collection Date: 18 May 2022

Volatile organic

compounds
(voc)
Waste gases of emissions Unit Benzene Toluene Xylene Ba
BRER By & BE —RE EHLEN
Waste gas emission exhaust port ko/h 1.1X10* 1.1X10* 1.5X10° 1.6X107
from plastic injection factory NN
RE S THREENERND
Waste gas emission exhaust port ko/h 4.1X10° 3.0X107 19X10° 015
from pad printing and spray painting AT //)E
REBOREREENERERD
Standard Discharge limit ko/h <0.35 .2 <0.70 Not-Applicable
BEBNRE NN (NA)
TER
Results - Pass Pass Pass N/A
g2 B jikd ik TEm

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ22051103
FEREES « S6T-HI205103

Sampling Collection Date; 18 May 2022
BEAS: —S--4#1AT)\B
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Average speed FEE
Year 2021 —E-—fF
Lead and its Tinand its
Waste gases of emissions Unit compounds compounds
BRRER By tHhRELED BRECEY
Old factory production unit ka/h 1.4X10* 9.1X10°
EFTHREEEN YNIWLNS
New factory production unit ka/h 5.5X10° 1.7X10°
M TR EEEN NN
Standard Discharge limit ka/h <7.0X10% <0.48
BREHHMRE NIV
Results - Pass Pass
ER B ik o)
Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ21051302a
AHEREHS - SGT-HI21051302a
Sampling Collection Date: 14 May 2021
BERM: —E-_—€7A+WmA
Volatile organic
compounds
(voc)
Waste gases of emissions Unit Benzene Toluene Xylene B
BRER Bl 3 RE —RE BRILEY
Waste gas emission exhaust port ko/h 1.8X10° 1.9X10* 1.8X10° N/A
from plastic injection factory INIAIN: TEf
REAS THAENERERD
Waste gas emission exhaust port ka/h 8.6X10° 2.4X107 7.2¢10° 0.13
from pad printing NN
REGHOERHEND
Standard Discharge limit ko/h <0.35 Q2 <0.70 Not-Applicable
BEHHRE DF /1N (NA)
TER
Results - Pass Pass Pass N/A
#R kol kol ko TEH

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ21051303

THERERS + SGT-HI21051303

Sampling Collection Date: 14 May 2021

HKAH: 222 -FRF+0A
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Volatile organic

compounds

(voC)

Waste gases of emissions Unit Benzene Toluene Xylene Ean

BRER Bfy 3 BE “RE BRILAY

Waste gas emission exhaust port ko/h 8.310° 6.4X107 2.0X10°* 0.23

from spray painting NN

BAEENERANA

Standard Discharge limit ko/h <0.30 <18 <0.60 Not-Applicable

BEHHRE DF /1N (NA)

TiEA

Results - Pass Pass Pass Pass

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ21051303
SHEREES: « SGT-HI2I051303

Sampling Collection Date: 14 May 2021
BERE: 2 -FERA+MA

Annual Report 3k 2022 59



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - g RERRE

60

Al.2

During the year, a licensed party was outsourced by
the Group to carry out an assessment in May 2022
regarding to the number of discharges of VOCs,
benzene, toluene, xylene, and non-methane
hydrocarbons. In addition, the Group also outsourced
the licensed party to carry out another assessment in
18 May 2022 regarding to the amount of lead and tin
emissions.

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions

As the Paris Agreement sends a clear signal that the
shift to a low-carbon economy is inevitable, and
everyone must play their part as a corporate citizen.
In order to facilitate such transition, the Group has
continued participation to the Carbon Disclosure
Project (CDP) supply chain program which aims to
help CDP highlight and spur meaningful action on
tackling climate change by capturing vital data on
climate change.

This can improve collaboration and encourage
transparency. Our greenhouse gas emission is
reported on the platform in July on an annual basis.
We will strive to meet our air pollutants reduction
target of 2% by 2025.

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 3225 B B2 R EEE R A 7
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The greenhouse gas emission produced by the Group
is mainly arising from indirect emissions (Scope 2)
from purchased electricity for the production factory.
In addition, we also had direct emission (Scope 1)
principally resulted from the consumptions of
liguefied petroleum gas for running the factory
canteens, burning of diesel fuel and vehicles uses. The
GHG scope 1 emission from LPG remained stable for
cooking use in PRC factory canteen during the year.
The decrease in the GHG scope 1 emission from diesel
was mainly attributable to the increased use of diesel-
consuming power generators for staggered power
consumption to tackle with the electricity usage
temporary constraint measure adopted by the
Guangdong Government in 2021 and the drop in
production volume of the EMS segment in 2022.
Owing to the persistent COVID-19 outbreak in 2022,
the reduced vehicle use frequency by the
management and staff led to the reduction of GHG
scope 1 emissions of mobile sources in China. The
decrease in GHG scope 2 emission was mainly due to
the drop in production volume of the EMS segment
and effective implementation of electricity saving
policies during the year.

AEBAAERBEHREE
KEEELIRBEEE IHE
FEHER (EE 2)  fhoh - AP
MEEEHR(BED 2
KA LHEREFR&R(EA®
R MELEHNURFERS
WeNERN FRIKRE
FTEFAR AR ABAR
BERBEE B RERE
o RBEMABEERISE
ENHERUR D - EEHNZF
TN AL h B E
MEIEIEAE  WEHER
E BN K A E G R
BHARNR - —FEFT
BERB D EEZ T - A
RZEZZFCOVID-19%& 1B
BE BEERBIFEAAR
BRAEREE . WS T
FEIR BB ERBEE RS
WENHER - RERBEHE?2
BRI EEHRERNE
FRERYE DM ESH D
AR E R WA ETEBUR -
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The details of GHG emissions during the reporting

RBERA - BEREBHR

period were as follows: BT -
Investment and
real estate
supply chain 2022 2021
services Total Total
Type of GHG emissions! Unit EMS REREHE ZBICE EI-F
RERREHES By ETRERK HEMEERE @5t L
Scope 12 - Stationary combustion tonnes of COz-e 31.55 - 31.55 94.43
HET-ATRER B-gfixg=
Scope 12 - Mobile combustion tonnes of COz-e 419 - 527
HEP-BERER B-E{xEs
Scope 2* tonnes of COz-e 731698 97.11 7,414.09 12,505.38
HEP B-gltikEs
Total GHG emissions tonnes of COz-e 7,352.72 97.11 7,449.83 12,605.08
BERBENGE B-E{xEs
GHG emissions intensity tonnes of COz-e/ 0.01 - EMS: 0.01
BEREHHEE unit of production EFRERE: 0.01
volume Securities: -
M-giigs/ &5 -
EEBf
tonnes of 8.61 313 EMS: 12.59
C0xe/employee BTHERE: 1259

M-SlieE
3

! The calculation of the GHG emission is based on the “Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard” from GHG Protocol published by World Resources Institute and
World Business Council for Sustainable Development.
2 Scope T: Direct emissions from sources that are owned or controlled by the Group.

the Group.
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Scope 2: Indirect emissions from the generation of purchased electricity consumed by

Securities: 2.22
EHn
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A1.3 Hazardous Waste Al3 BEEEEY

The Group is dedicated to managing waste in a
responsible way and strives to optimize the use of
resources. The Guangzhou factory has established a
comprehensive hazardous waste management
system and carries out disposal of hazardous waste
in accordance with relevant PRC laws and
regulations.

Our hazardous waste mainly include waste activated
charcoal with organic matters, waste lubricant and
engine oil, waste emulsion oil, waste paint and paint
residual. There is a separate storage area in the
factory for storing hazardous solid waste. Our factory
also works with institutions which are qualified for
handling disposal of hazardous waste. The amount of
solid hazardous waste generated remained stable as
there was effective implementation of solid
hazardous waste management strategies during the
year. Furthermore, the increase in the amount of
aqueous hazardous waste generated in 2022 was
mainly due to more treatment and handling of waste
organic solvent in 2021. The Group has set
comprehensive reduction target by 5% for reducing
hazardous waste generation by 2025.

AEBYNRUNEEENT
ANEEERY AFRNEL
BIRAA - BINBEEZZ
PEHNEEEEMEER
B WIRBAHETEIAER
EREEBEEED -

BPNEEERNIERR
BHWEYEIER BREER
R R - BEEIL(CH - B
BNOHRIREY - ZBE R
BERREREZTERERY
MERERE - - BEERAE
REBEFEUNREEEER
Yo MNFERNAREE R
BEERREYNERRE &
EEMEREEEENHE
FEERE - M RZF
T CHFEENRBAEEER
MBEEN HDEBHN
T -FRENMEEMNEE
ERARRRZ AKEER
T _Z_HEREEED
EEER 5% 2 EREEER

i)
R
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The details of hazardous waste generated by the AEBNRREBFNEENS
Group during the reporting period were as follows: EEEVFBET :

Investment and
real estate

supply chain 2021

services Total

Hazardous wastes generated Unit EMS REREHE —TZ-f

RELNEERED Bfy STHERE  HEMEERE @it

Circuit board tonnes 0.085 - -
BER WA

Steel bin tonnes 0.242 - 0.050
il i

Active charcoal tonnes 1.399 - 2.355
AR i

Storage battery tonnes - - 0.024
EBH i

Rag tonnes 0.051 - 0.060
B i

Light tube tonnes 0.011 - 0.018
EE i

Waste resin tonnes 0.444 - 0.230
B [

Hazardous waste produced - Solid waste  tonnes 2.232 - 2.737
FEENEEREY - EREEY i3

Waste organic solvent tonnes 2917 - 0.600
BEEBRAT I

Paint tonnes 0.067 - 0.050
AR i

Waste ink tonnes 0.007 - 0.010
BEE i

Hazardous waste produced tonnes 2.991 - 0.660

- Aqueous waste

FEENEEREYN - REEED I

Total hazardous waste generated tonnes 5.223 - 3.397
MEENEERENEE i

Hazardous waste generated intensity tonnes/unit of 0.001 - EMS: 0.001

MEENEZEEENEE production ETRERY

volume 0.001

Wi/ EEEN Securities; -

BHo-
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Al.4 Non-hazardous Waste Al4 EEEEY

Our non-hazardous waste generated from the
Guangzhou factory operation mainly consists of
scrap, wasted packaging materials, waste residual
from sewer and filter tank, as well as other domestic
waste. Wasted packaging materials mainly include
cardboard boxes for product wrap up.

We consider the principle of environmentally friendly
in our packaging design and select more eco-friendly
packaging materials for our packaging process.

In addition, the Group continues to implement paper
saving initiatives, such as double-sided printing,
reminding staff to have environmentally-friendly
photocopying practice, and separate collection of
waste paper for effective recycling. Recycling bins
are placed in office to regularly collect used paper.
Employees are encouraged to read and send files
electronically to reduce printing. With the decrease in
the production volume of the EMS segment during
the reporting period, the amount of non-hazardous
waste generated decreased. The Group targets to
reduce the generation of total non-hazardous waste
of 6% by 2025.

BPIEMBE & EMELERN
BEEEMIZEEER
BEEBEME - THKERE
A0 REE DA R KL b AR BIR
BEEBEMHMIEREEM
BRAMMRME -

BMERRRG; LRFRE
RALHEBEBEFERE
IRRHBEA Y -

BN REBRBEBEITEL
FA®EZ  PlnEREEIT
B iREEIRFRROY
NEERS KRS AEME
WFIRMER - HAEHEE
Bl - LATE BRI Y A A
MR- WEENE TRIE K
EKEBEBFE - BDITEH - B
HRERKN BEEEFRER
BoBEERD  IELER
MEBEEYHENAEER
Lo AEEMNBERRE =T
“ThEREESEEVEER
16% °
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The details of non-hazardous waste generated by the AEBNRREBFNEENE
Group during the reporting period were as follows: EEEVFBET :

Investment and
real estate supply 2021
chain services Total
Non-hazardous waste generated ~ Unit EMS REREHE —Fz-f
FELNEEREY By ETHERE HEUERERL it
Scrap and wasted packaging kg 36,559 - 73,367
materials* A
BERREEREMH
Waste residual from sewer kg 31,000 - 38,000
and filter tank NI3
TKERENEE
Domestic waste kg 137,504 179 137,683 128,822
EENIR A
Total non-hazardous waste generated kg 205,062 179 205,241 240,189
MEENNBEEENLE Af
Non-hazardous waste kg/unit of 0.009 - EMS: 0.006
generated intensity production TP RUERR ¢ 0.006
MEANNEZEENTE volume Securities; -
A/ EREN EH -
kg/employee 0.368 4,475 EMS: 0.373
AT/ BB BTRERS : 0373

Securities: 11194
EH 1194

4 Scrap and wasted packaging materials include the packaging wastes and plastic wastes. 4 B MEEaEMNeEaRBEEYRBREEY -
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A2.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group adheres to the concept of energy conservation
and emission reduction for green production. The major
resources used by the Group are principally attributed to
electricity, water and packaging materials consumed at the
factory in Guangzhou. We aim to improve our energy
utilization efficiency to achieve low-carbon practices and
emission reduction throughout our production and
operation and strive to save the resources.

The Group has implemented guidelines and policies for
energy saving management which include in-house rules
for both office and factory employees to follow. Besides,
we have devised follow-up plan after the third-party
certifications for the ISO-14001 standard. Our
environmental management team helps set up the energy
saving targets, emissions reduction level and
environmental management programmes. Moreover, our
General Affairs Department is responsible for carrying out
the monitoring work for effective uses of energy and
natural resources.

A2.1 Energy Consumption

We have implemented a range of measures designed
to reduce emissions and minimize its consumption of
energy and natural resources. We also promote a
paperless office and encourage staff to reduce
electricity and water usage in their daily work to
maintain a green office.

In order to reduce the electrical energy consumption,
the Group gradually replaces the traditional lighting
tubes with energy-saving tubes which have higher
energy efficiency and longer life cycle by 6-8 times.

We have established a maintenance and conservation
policy for equipment which aims at enhancing the
optimal use of machineries.

A2.

BRI A

AEBEREAERBEIER - B
RgBLE ~AEBEANTIER
REIBHERARBEMNBMERENE
N KEBEME - RABORE
EERKEBEDRSERNB
T BRERRERBEE  XEN
EKIEIR

REBEEBEAEERESI KK
B BENAERIMESYEE
STHIRERAR A o Lok - FRAPIERIZ
ISO-14001E X BISE =T RE
BBl EREFTE - WOIMIRIBEER
B P55 B e E BT AL B AT~ RBEKE
MIREERHE - o HMIR4E
BHAaFHERRBAERNAE R
FIFAEITEE -

A2.1 BEREHE
B E®RZRER §&
PR R BmERD HEER
kBRERBERE - BT #E
TERERAE  SBET
EBEITERRAKERS

B AERERNE -

BBLERBERE  NEEE
THRERBEEERBERE
= EASHER6ESEN

HAPIE 7= 22 1 1 7E M o AR
ERR - AIE SRR & E
BH e
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In addition, a number of energy conservation
promotional banners and posters are post up in
various places to remind workers in production areas.
Through catchy slogan and posters, every worker can
pay high attention to environmental protection and
resource conservation. Moreover, we are engaging in
the periodical reporting on energy consumption
surveys conducted by interested parties like clients
and regional governmental bureau.

The Group has set inclusive total energy reduction
target by 2% by 2025. The decrease in production
volume of the EMS segment and effective
implementation of electricity saving policies led to
the decrease in electricity consumption during the
year. Energy consumption of LPG remained stable for
cooking use in PRC factory canteen during the year.
The significant decrease in the diesel consumption
was mainly attributable to the increased use of diesel-
consuming power generators for staggered power
consumption to tackle with the electricity usage
temporary constraint measure adopted by the
Guangdong Government in 2021 and the drop in
production volume of the EMS segment in 2022.
Owing to the persistent COVID-19 outbreak in 2022,
the reduced vehicle use frequency by the
management and staff led to a slight drop in petrol
consumption during the year.

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 235 B 2B BRI EEE B R A
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The details of energy consumption were as follows: BEJROBFERFIBIT ¢

Investment and
real estate

supply chain 2022 2021

services Total Total

Type of energy Unit EMS REREHE ot S “EI-F

HRER EfY EFHERE  SHEMEERE &t a3

Purchased electricity MWh 877267 129.29 8,901.96 1498716
BEE KRE

Diesel MWh 16.96 - 255.28
g KRE

LPG MWh 2 - 123.36
RILBBR KRB

Petrol MWh 17.09 - 4288
b KR

Total energy consumption MWh 892843 129.29 9,057.72 15,408.68
REREE KEE

Energy consumption intensity MWh/unit of 0.01 - EMS: 0.01

ERERRE production EFEERE 00

volume Securities; -

khk/ESEf -

MWh/ employee 10.45 477 EMS:15.38

KEE/EE BT RERE 1538

Securities: 3.02
FH 302
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A2.2 Water Consumption

Currently, the water supply is mainly from the
municipal water supply. The Group has a strong focus
on the water conservation, and therefore tries to
prevent water pollution which is mainly generated
from workers’ living activities. The Guangzhou factory
uses the sewage bio-chemical treatment facility and
adopts water reuse so as to reduce the water
consumption and ensure water is used sustainably.

We build our own sewage treatment facilities in the
factory to undertake sewage treatment before
discharging, the water from reclaimed water tank is
used for irrigation in staff living quarters. Moreover,
the factory has applied push-button taps instead of
screwdriver faucet in order to reduce water wastage.
The Group targets to achieve the reduction of the
total water consumption by 2% by 2025. The
reduction in water consumption was mainly due to
the decrease in production of volume of the EMS
segment and effective implementation of water
saving policy during the year.

A2.2 AKX

The details of water consumption were as follows:
Investment and
real estate
supply chain
services
Water consumption Unit EMS REREHE
Bk Eil ETUERE  BELREER
Water consumption m’ 75,346 507
Fk ARk
Water consumption intensity m*/unit of 0.01 -
BKEE production
volume
UHK/EREN
m*/employee 8589 16.35
Thn/E8

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited (R 28 Bl BB ERIH R EEGR A
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BRRE - AR NENE
BEABTALEEEHHK
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BMEIMAZELT BN
VEIKER IR B - TE PR RRAT E
EKETEE BEIRS
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FEE 7K BESE - EAVIRBE R K
BEEE LR KRE - KK
EMEZEATENR-Z_-R
FEBRBRAXKERL 2% A
KRPEZEREHRFANET
BERB Y BHEZ R
REHEE AR EIKBUR

FKFHBIT

2021
Total
St
&3

92,663

EMS: 0.01
SFEERH - 001
Securities: -

EMS: 96.21
ETRUERT : %62
Securities: 11.27
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A2.3 Packaging Material A2.3 BEHE

Our packaging materials for finished goods mainly
include label, paper packing materials such as

i'%&u“uﬁ’] BEMHBRER
CHRBERME AR

cardboard box, plastic bag and Styrofoam. The Group Ji BREBRLER KRS
is dedicated to consuming the least packaging Ko AEEHHIRRERE
materials as possible. It is the Group’s practice to HEYRFERHE - KAEEH
implement production planning in a timely basis so as BRI EBESEBEEE

to assess the least amount of packaging materials
needed.

The Group is also committed to sourcing recyclable
packaging materials from suppliers with eco-friendly
practice and engagement. The Group targets to
achieve the reduction of the total packaging material
consumption by 5% by 2025. The decrease in

A BT PR 75 2 AT 9
HE -

REE TN BERRIED
T2 3% 5F (M) 4 B P R B AT 1R 3R
FROBEME - AEEH
BEEA-_T_RAFE iﬁ,ﬁ@’?
KM EERER D% - —F

packaging material amount consumed in 2022 was —FREMRE %%E/)ERQ
mainly attributable to the decrease in production of FEEHRFANEFRER
volume of the EMS segment during the year. BoOIEMESERD -

During the reporting period, the packaging materials RIEEER - BEMEDERE
consumption was shown in the following table: BRI TR

Investment and
real estate
supply chain 2022 2021
services Total Total
Type of packaging material Unit EMS REREHE —E-C %%
ARFHEY Efy ETHERE  HEHEERY ast Bt
Label kg 1755 - 1,755 2,139
2% Tr
Paper packing material kg 628443 - 628,443 944534
JEEME T
Plastic bag kg 15,441 - 23,676
BRE& r
Styrofoam kg 723 - 876
ZRLIERRER r
Total kg 646,362 - 646,362 971225
@it Tr
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A3.  THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group has established a policy of “Environmental and
Safety Objectives, Indices and Plans Control Procedures” to
identify the Group’s environmental targets, implement
environmental plans and validate the achievement results.

The Group acts as a responsible corporate citizen by
complying with all the applicable regional environmental
laws and regulations for our business activities in the PRC.
Besides, the Guangzhou factory has obtained the ISO-
14001 Environmental certification.

It is the Group’s ambition to sustain compliance obligation,
safe production, resources conservation, pollution
mitigation, wastes reduction, accident-free, as well as
packaging materials recycling.

The Group is continuously incorporating environmental
targets into business decision making, we believe that
protecting the environment is always the crucial concerns
for our manufacturing nature business.

A3.1 Significant Impacts of Activities on the Environment
and Natural Resources

Under the rapid pace of industrialization, most of the
provinces and direct-controlled municipalities are
facing with smog in the PRC. This weather would
affect people’s lives and it is not beneficial to the
enhancement of sustainability rationale.

Hence, sustainable development could be boosted if
the corporations allocate the work based on the life
cycles and periods of the renewable resources during
the growth process.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations in relation to environmental protection for
our business activities. Still, the Group has different
measures to save the energy consumption and
emissions, to reduce the impacts of the business
activities to the environment and natural resources.

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 235 B 2B BRI EEE B R A

A3.

RIENBAARER
AEBEHTEREEZZEEZ
EIERGTEIEHITE R | R » LARR
WAEEMNIREEEZ  BEMRIER
B WIRERARE -

AEEES—EAREINEER
R ETHETEBBRRMAREES
HFT B @A R IRROEEBOEM
tESN - FAPIE RN RS 2 17 1SO-
14001 IRIRRE ©

AEENEIELEETE  R24
ESHER  BIESEROR
B TEHEWRERAA QLN -

AEEBFEREBERERAAR
BER BMARSFRERE—HE
BAREXCENERBTER -

A3l ¥EXEEHHRERBEAER
HEARFE

EIREHREERT  F
B & D REETHE
mBEBEEE  ZRETEA
BAE PR ER &

BE-

Eitt - W ERIERBES
RBEAI BEE RS LB
EHROETE - BIBEMR
AR

RER > AEEALFAER
PIMERE BB BIRRN
ERMERNERTERB
Re REBEHENTRAE

B %9 BE JRUH FE R FR IR -
WA EBESEHIRER AR
BROZE -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BRI g MERWE

A4,

CLIMATE CHANGE
Governance

Our Group addresses climate-related risks based on the
nature of the risk to our operations. The physical impacts
of climate change, including extreme weather events, or
damage to facilities have immediate operational impacts
and are treated as operational risks. Long-term challenges,
such as emerging ESG issues and climate-related risks and
opportunities, may be discussed by the Group’s ESG
Working Group.

Supported by our ESG Working Group, our Board oversees
climate-related issues and risks regularly during board
meetings and ensures that they are incorporated into our
strategy.

To ensure our Board to keep up with the latest trend of
climate-related issues, climate competence training will be
provided to ensure it has the necessary expertise and skills
to oversee the management of climate-related issues. Our
Board also seeks professional advice from external experts
when necessary to better support the decision-making
process.

Our ESG Working Group provides effective governance for
integrating and addressing ESG issues, including climate
change, within our business. The ESG Working Group is
responsible for approving operational emissions targets for
the Group and commissioning an ESG benchmarking, as
well as gap analysis exercise to identify gaps in both
disclosure and policy relative to best practice standards.

Moreover, the ESG Working Group works closely with the
Group’s different operation departments, with an aim to
develop consistent and enhanced approaches on
addressing ESG risk issues and report to the management.
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Strategy

Climate change risk forms part of our overall risk profile
through its role in increasing the frequency and intensity of
certain diseases, and the health and mortality impacts
resulting from natural disasters. We assess the overall level
of risk by taking into consideration a range of diverse risk
factors across the many categories in our product or
services range. This diversity of risk is combined with our
business strategy and broad geographic footprint helps us
distribute risk and provide protection against the impacts
of short-term climate change effects.

Our products and services continue to provide protection
for people in our communities against weather and heat-
related disease. Besides, we continue to explore
opportunities to engage our business partners and
encourage them to develop climate resilience and reduce
their operational carbon footprint by taking into
consideration of different climate-related scenarios,
including a “2°C or lower scenario” through the following
steps:

Step I: Set Future Images Assuming Climate Change Effects

As climate change measures proceeds, there is a possibility
that the industry will be exposed to substantial changes,
such as stricter policies including the introduction of and
increases in carbon pricing, as well as advances in
technology and changes in customer awareness.

In light of these climate change effects, based on the
International Energy Agency (“IEA”) scenarios and others,
we developed multiple future images of 2030 as the
external environment that will surround our Group. With
regard to the IEA scenarios, we put focus on the 2°C
scenario (2DS) and pictured future images in case where
climate change measures do not progress and where such
measures progress further (Beyond 2°C scenario).
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Step 2: Consider the Impacts

We considered the impacts on our Group for each of the
future images developed in Step 1. We believe that in such
a society, it will be possible to expand carbon dioxide
reduction effects.

With regard to effects on raw material procurement and
production, introduction of, and increase in carbon pricing
is anticipated in accordance with the global advance of
climate change measures, leading to the possibility of
higher raw material procurement and production costs.

On the other hand, in the case where climate change
measures are not adequate throughout society, production
interruptions and supply chain disruptions are likely to
increase as a result of higher frequency and intensification
of natural disasters such as flooding.

Step 3: Respond to the Strategies

Our Group will begin promoting the reduction of non-
renewable energy during the production. This strategy will
allow for flexible and strategic responses to each demand
for the regions where the emission factors of purchased
electricity consumptions are high. By promoting real
carbon emissions reductions throughout the world through
these types of initiatives, we are working to achieve zero
carbon emission in the life cycle of the product.

We are also working toward zero carbon emission from the
plants in the production stage and reducing carbon
emissions through comprehensive energy-saving and
introduction of renewable energy and hydrogen. With
respect to renewable energy in particular, we have set a
new target to achieve a 10 percent reduction rate for
purchased electricity by 2025. With regard to the ongoing
confirmation of the suitability and progress of the Group’s
strategies, we believe that we will have opportunities for
stable funding and sustainable increases in corporate value
through appropriate information disclosure, dialogue with
institutional investors and other stakeholders.
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Risk Management

Our Group identifies the climate change related risks or to
test the existing risk management strategies under climate
change with the aid of risk assessment. Hence, the areas
where new strategies are needed could be identified.

The risk assessment takes a standard risk-based approach
using national data, local information and expert
knowledge, which can identify how climate change may
compound existing risks or create new ones. The risk
assessment is conducted through the following steps:

Step I: Establish the context

. Objective/goal

. Scale

. Time frame

. Climate change scenario for most climate variables
and sea level

Step 2: Identify existing risk (past and current)

. |[dentify the record of occurrence of climatic hazard in
the pastin the area

. Risk management strategies in place to tackle future
occurrence of the hazard

Step 3. Identify future risk and opportunities

. Explore climate change projections for the selected
time frame(s) and emission scenario(s)

. Identify potential hazards

. Investigate whether any existing risk from Step 2 may
get worse under future projected changes

. Identify new risks that can emerge under future
projected changes

Step 4: Analyse and evaluate risk

. |dentify a set of decision areas or systems (i.e.,
geographical areas, business operation, assets,
ecosystems, etc.) that has the potential to be at risk
in future
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As outlined within the Governance section above, the
Group has robust risk management and business planning
processes that are overseen by the board of directors in
order to identify, assess and manage climate-related risks.
The Group is to engage with government and other
appropriate organisations in order to keep abreast of
expected and potential regulatory and/or fiscal changes.

We continue to raise awareness of climate change in
regard to monitoring of carbon and energy footprint in our
daily operation. However, there remains gaps in
understanding how such climate risks and opportunities
may impact our operations, assets and profits. Our Group
assesses how the business addresses climate change risks
and opportunities and takes the initiative to monitor and
reduce their environmental footprint.

A4.1 Significant Climate-related Issues

During the reporting period, the significant climate-
related physical risks and transition risks, which have
impacted and/or may impact may impact our Group’s
business and strategy in (i) operations, products and
services, (ii) supply chain and value chain, (iii)
adaptation and mitigation activities, (iv) investment
in research and development, and (v) financial
planning, as well as the steps taken to manage these
risks, are as follows:
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Climate-related risk description Financial Impact
AR AR AR By

Steps taken to manage the risks
R EEZZ R RN B i

Physical Risk
ERARE

Acute physical risks
SMEERR

Operating cost
increases

. Increased severity and .
frequency of extreme weather
events such as cyclones and
floods, strong wind. Staffs are
easily being injured. Also,
under the extreme weather
events, the costs of
transportation,
communications and living
increase, which may lead to
financial loss.

- BmARREFH(NEBEAL .
K~ R JEL) B BR EE 1 AN A I
me BEIRSXE - thod - 10
Bim KRBT @ B BE
NATERAGE 5k - AlRE
BEAMBEL -

LEKAIE NN

Expenditures
increase in
monitoring and
execution of the
contingency plan.

. Increased likelihood and .
severity of wildfire, which may
hinder the operations of
factories. Financial loss occurs
due to the interruption of
supply chain, logistics and
transportation.

. %XEIJU\E’JT“’IEE&}EEIEE .
N - RTREPAE TRREE o 1
FEHE - %m& & ) 7 P] B
SIBHBEE -

BN ITR AT
BRI N -
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Adopted scenario analysis to
disclose an organization’s
planning under future
scenarios, most notably one
with in a 2°C scenario to
collect, manage and measure
the climate change impacts
such as emissions and use of
resources etc.

ERABROMAREAR

BEREIRKBROETE
BRI 2°CIERTHIE
HEtaE - AMER - Efiﬂ

AERRZLNZE - 1
PR ERERS

Planned to establish a
natural disasters emergency
plan.
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Climate-related risk description
S5 B8 [ B A A

Financial Impact
Mg

Steps taken to manage the risks
R EEZZ R RN B i

More than a decade,
Guangzhou factory is in the
supply chain of Automotive
Industry. It is mandatory
requirements for the
manufacturing site to have its
contingency plan to satisfy
customer requirements in the
event of an emergency such as
utility interruptions, labour
shortages, key equipment
failure and field returns.
TERER - BNEEEZN A
BITERNHEERES - REBR
BREIHRE  REZBRT
(Pl AAEERE - 587
R BRR AR IR S
RE)  BLETRESIE R
FFEILARRERH R -

. Expenditures
increase in
monitoring and
execution of the

contingency plan.

- ERRHITESE

BRI AN -

Contingency plans were
periodically tested for their
effectiveness. Records were
kept for their compliances.
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Climate-related risk description
KR A RIS (Y FE ak

Financial Impact
Mg

Steps taken to manage the risks
R EEZZ R RN B i

Chro
181

nic physical risks

-
B

Prolonged hot weather may
increase the energy
consumption.

*_J'Z%z%/ﬂ?l%ﬁﬁj //\/ﬁ
FESZ N o

Climate change brings
uncertainties to the
environments of production
and sales. Although direct
losses will not incur by the
enterprises, they may still
affect and limit the sales and
production of the enterprises
significantly.

RIRE L REE MIHERIE
HRIEEN - BERED
SEAEEEBER  BOEH
HE MAEENA X REXR
T NERE -

Revenue reduces
from decreased
production
capacity and the
negative impacts of
workforce.
EﬁuTM&IA
RIMaETE
\ﬁWﬁﬂ9°

Administrative
costs for daily
operations
increase.

AEEZENIT
A HE B o
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Active energy management
and implementation of
various improvement
measures in accordance with
regulations and customer
requirements.
BRIBER L EF 2508
TEHEREBEIEE
FIAMGEREE ©

Engagement with local or
national governments and
local stakeholders on local
resilience.
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o B R BT R 0445
A -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BRI g MERWE

Financial Impact
Mg

Steps taken to manage the risks
R EEZZ R RN B i

Climate-related risk description
RAR AR BR (Y HE ik

Prolonged climate change may
detriment the human’s health.
Continuation of temperature
rise can increase the fatality
rates and incidence rates of
some diseases, especially the
one related to cardiac and
respiratory system; the spread
of some climate-sensitive
diseases such as malaria and
dengue fever may increase.
HENRIEE(LARES
R - RUR TETRA 1Y
DNF LR PR B0 T R A 2R
Ze o JOHL R EL R AT I 3
SRR - lee g Bl
BB RIRGUREV KRR - I
WEIR AN B F A EHE -

Revenue reduces
from decreased
production
capacity and the
negative impacts of
workforce.

BETNRERT A
TR E T E
EEIN R o

i W

Planned improvements,
retrofits, relocations, or other
changes to facilities that
may reduce their
vulnerability to climate
impacts and increase the
climate resilience in long
term.

STEEITRRMEMUE - 2K
i B E A

REMEAUERSH
HRIrFENEE5

7 WIRERIREERE

Ik

Involving in the Carbon
Disclosure Project (CDP) to
have declaration to:
SHBFETE B (COP) LA R
e

1. Reporting Scope 1& 2
emissions,

1 WESE R 28VEEK
=N
EJ/R ’

2. Report an emissions
intensity &/or allocated
emissions,

2. WMEHMEER X
DEEHHERE -

3. Set an emissions
reduction target,

3. RABHEE

4, Report emissions
reduction activities.

4. WERIED -
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Climate-related risk description
KR A RIS (Y FE ak

Financial Impact
Mg

Steps taken to manage the risks
R EEZZ R RN B i

Transitional Risk
I8 R b
Policy risk
R ey

As a result of energy efficiency
requirements, carbon-pricing
mechanisms increase the price
of fossil fuels, or policies to
encourage sustainable land
use, hindering the area of
expansion, which increase the
operation cost.

RRETBEER - Bk E B
HE(CAREIERE - 3k
B+ 3th AT #5548 1 A O B R PR
BRRIEIESR - NS BRI o

Mandates on and regulation of
existing products and services.
Contractors have to spend
much cost (compliance cost)
to update or maintain the
equipment to fulfil the new
regulations.

IR A E o MRS IR K
RE - DBEEBELBEREK
(BN ) Bl ER
i ATEFEARTE °

Operating cost
increases due to
increased insurance
premiums for the
factories.

TR AR B B 38 0
BB AT
o0 e

Administrative
costs for regulation
compliance on
mandatory
equipment
standard.

BT b 1R B
RAERAMRAITTIN
PR o
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Planned to be involved in
carbon trading.

FEIZERR S -

\

Planned to purchase extra
amount of renewable energy
sources and adopt clean
energy in the operations to
reduce the carbon emissions.
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Climate-related risk description
S5 B8 [ B A A

Financial Impact
Mg

Steps taken to manage the risks
R EEZZ R RN B i

Legal risk
EERR

. Exposure to litigation.
Manufacturers have to adapt
the tightened law and
regulations issued by the
government due to climate
change, and they have the risk
of litigation once they failed to
obligate the new rules.

o FEARERE - BRRIRE L - £
EEV/AEERTEMEE
BIBHVERRER - —BK
g A - RIEEREFEA
[B\Bg o

. Enhanced emissions-reporting
obligations. Manufacturers
may have to spend much time
on fulfilling the report
standards to comply the new

obligations.
o IIRHEREETS - £AEE
ARt BB R LR HER

REER] - NBITHRETS -

Operating cost
increases for high
compliance costs
and increased
insurance
premiums for the
Group.

BRRAEE R
AEBERRE
I B A
40 -

Inspection costs
increase for
environmental
emissions.

BRI B8
ANARI R AR

Monitored the updates of
environmental laws and
regulations and
implemented GHG emissions
calculations in advance.

ERRFARIERDN
BB R RAETR
EREBHEHE ©

Environmental emission data
were verified by third-party
laboratories or consultants.

REFHRBEBEARE=T
EREARETZE -
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Climate-related risk description
KR A RIS (Y FE ak

Financial Impact
Mg

Steps taken to manage the risks
R EEZZ R RN B i

Technology risk
B i @ B

. Developing the low carbon
energy-saving products and
energy saving technologies,
the capital investment and
R&D expense increase
consequently.

o FEEIREDREEm KRB
M~ BEXRRERAEERRE
Z &0 e

. More green building strategies
with low-carbon, energy-
saving technologies are
adopted by industry peers.
Lagging behind may weaken
our competitive edges.

- BEZER - ﬁﬁﬁ%?}‘z?ﬁiﬁ?ék
RERBE A RITTERAN ©

W& 12 r] se 2 %%ﬁsz‘ﬂﬁ’]

FES -

Capital investment

in technology
development
increases.

Ao e E R
sa= Pl

Administrative
costs for daily
operations.

A% ETEA
A -
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. Planned to invest in the
innovations of energy saving

products.
« FrEREETREEMBIE

. Examined the feasibility and
efficiency of applying the
latest environmental
technologies.

. BEEASTEREN
B ATTE B o
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Climate-related risk description Financial Impact
FARAA R AR By

Steps taken to manage the risks
R EEZZ R RN B i

Market risk
%Rk

More customers are
considering climate-related
risks and opportunities, which
may lead to changes in
customers’ demand for
products.
EZHNRFPEZERRIFEHER
A&%%' %ﬁﬂgﬁ%

Uncertainty in market signals.
“How environmentally friendly
the product is” becomes one
of the factors to affect the
product selling price.

MSERN T EERER - [E
mARRIZE WA KA E
Fuu mfﬁﬂﬁlﬁz— °

Increased cost of raw
materials. More
environmentally — friendly raw
materials may be much
expensive, which may increase
the cost.
[RMERZAIG AN - FBIRIRAY
RMEREENSE - '
b:) 1'% N

. Revenue decreases
for the change in
revenue mix and
sources.

TN VTS
SEIEL O

E—/J\

. Administrative
costs increase for
compliance and
sales drop for
non-
environmentally
friendly product
design.

© EBRITBRARE
- FERREmMR
ATEEEHE T -

. Production cost
increases due to
changing input
prices and output
requirements.

. &AFV&%&

EEEEERZKiEﬂD °

Tightened the control of the
environmental hazardous
materials in our products
and studied the application
of recycled materials.

A0SR APIEE fn h $3R
BAEME R H KR
KA BEMHAER

Bought and selected
different green materials for
the raw materials of the
products.

BREERT RSN
FHERERBIEMEL o

Reduce and simplify the
packaging of the products,
to lower the unnecessary
costs.

WA N ECEROE
K LR ENBErK
Z’KO
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Climate-related risk description
KR A RIS (Y FE ak

Financial Impact
Mg

Steps taken to manage the risks
R EEZZ R RN B i

Reputational risk
EERR

Unable to fulfil the

expectations of the customers,
damage the Group’s reputation

and image.

REMERFHE  BEX
SENBERER -

Stigmatization of our business

sector, such as more
stakeholder concern or

negative stakeholder feedback

on the product designed in a
less environmentally-friendly
way.

HERMINEFBE ISR -

W AT ERIR 5 2 ARG T Y
ERNEZHOHER IS
HFDEREE -

. Revenue decreases
from decreased
demand for goods
and the decrease in
production
capacity.

- EmBRRAOK
ERE T FEE R
A e

. Operating costs
increases from
negative impacts
on workforce
management and
planning.

. BHHERRA
BMEEY SN
B AN -
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Supported the green
productions.

SRR BEmR °

Corporate sustainability
responsibility policy was
adopted by fulfilling the
social responsibility by
organizing more activities or
executing actions to
demonstrate how we place
importance on climate
change.
RMEEAFERRR
EHER - BBAME %
EEBRARTERAR
M RIERE ERER -
ALBITHEEE -
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During the reporting period, the primary climate- RAREEE - EFENRE

related opportunities and the corresponding financial HEEE RN S E

impacts were as follows: mr

Description of climate-related opportunities Financial Impact

RIZEEEBE N FEAER Mg E

Resource efficiency

BIRBE

. Reduce more packaging material usage . Operating cost reduces through efficiency gains
AR eEM R and cost reductions

. Reduce water usage and consumption i B I 5 PR A D 2 B AR AN

D IKEIREVE A BB RE

Energy source

BEIR PR IIR

. Use of lower-emission fuel sources
1 K HE R SR

. Use of supportive policy incentives
B R ERFF I BUR IE B

. Use of new technologies
15 PR i

Products and services

2 i MR 75

. Development of climate adaptation and
insurance risk solutions
il XE SR 16 3 18 K2 AR B [ B R 5 2R

. Ability to diversify business activities

Z LRI EEHIRE

Markets
Mm%

. Access to new markets
HEAFTTIS

. Operating cost reduces through use of lowest
cost abatement

BB MR AR R A & B AN

. Returns on investment in low- emission
technology
EBERR TR & | )

. Revenue increases through new solutions to

adaptations needs, such as insurance risk
transfer products and services

i B N R B [ B BB 72 o I AR 75 5 S FE 75 SR Y
FRRR T ZRIG A

. Revenue increases through access to new and
emerging markets

3B AT EY BT BT 53 A
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Description of climate-related opportunities

Financial Impact

SRR A BR M IE 1Y AR Mg

Resilience

gE

. Participation in renewable energy programs . Market valuation increases through resilience

and adoption of energy-efficiency measures
L] B AR RAT S| RN BE IS B
. Resource substitution or diversification

BERERIZ T/

Metrics and Target

Our Group adopts the key metrics to assess and
manage climate-related risks and opportunities. The
energy consumption and greenhouse gas (GHG)
emissions indicators are the key metrics used to
assess and manage relevant climate-related risks
where we consider such information is material and
crucial for evaluating the impact of our operation on
global climate change during the year. Our Group
regularly tracks our energy consumption and GHG
emissions indicators to assess the effectiveness of
emission reduction initiatives, as well as set targets to
contribute our effort to have minimal impact on
global warming.

The details of time frames over which the target
applies and base year from which progress is
measured are described in the section AT: “Emissions”
and section A2: “Use of Resources” of this Report.
Our Group adopts absolute target to manage
climate-related risks, opportunities and performance.

planning, such as infrastructure, land and
buildings

FIBIMERE RN - T RAEFEE R EE N
miShE

Reliability of supply chain and ability to operate
under various condition increase

HEEA S RIS RGN T EENE 1558
Revenue increases through new products and
services related to ensuring resiliency

7B HEOR B\ AE BR A0 3 EE o MIRFS S A A

HEZERAR

REBERKBERGEREN
AP h & B I R IR AR B R B
B WERMARSEHEEN
REPEBRFAHEIRR
RECFENFEMEBE
RN Radt - RIBER B FE MoR
EREGHGBERIER T A
IR RT 1 K & 32 AR R SR f1% 4 R
RRHEEREEFRE K&
B EHE MR RBRE SR E
B HE IR IR AT (R BEHE
MEM s UREBR &
BEREHERERNTE

TEHER

EHBERRENRRIERR
AAEERNEEFNHBH
AR E S AVER [BERR ] |
FANETERMNA] - AEH
ERMESH B IR EERIR
HERA R S B DA S R 3R
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B.

SOCIAL ASPECTS

BI.

EMPLOYMENT

Quality talents are the Group’s valuable assets for
maintaining business sustainability. The Group has
implemented practices in accordance to our “Staff
Handbook” with respect to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti- discrimination, and
welfare and other benefits which complied with the Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Labour Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China and other relevant
laws and regulations of Hong Kong.

Equal opportunity

The Group places a high priority on achieving equality of
opportunity for all employees in relation to all personnel
matters including recruitment, training, promotion, transfer,
benefits and dismissal. The dignity and individuality of each
employee is respected, and the privacy and confidentiality
of employee records is safeguarded. The performance of
employee is assessed solely according to their individual
ability to meet job requirements.

Promotion and appraisal

The Group offers internal promotion to employees,
whenever possible, within the Group. Promotion to a higher
grade normally depends on the availability of vacancy,
individual performance and potential to take up the new
position.

The Group provides an open, challenging and participative
environment for all employees. We aim to provide
opportunities for the development of the skills of
employees to the fullest extent possible, consistent with
the needs of the Group. Job performance is reviewed
annually, and this serves as an opportunity for the
supervisor to evaluate employee’s performance in an
objective and open manner, to discuss concerns, strength
and suggestions for further improvement. Employees’
remuneration and pay scale adjustment are made reference
to individual's performance and appraisal results, industrial
standard and market trend.

B.

temm

Bl.

&fE

BEAT RAEERISEBAHE
MNEEEE - AKEERIEINER
TFi) BieA B R - 5B
RAEEF - TIERE - BEY - F5F
e - 2t RIER LB R E
BT A ER - A EMRIE
FHET(REARME S B
E)APEARKNMBESSHER
R REBEMABRAREROR

;'_Eo

FEHE

SBEEM  HEl - & BE -
BHMBEREANNAEREEEES
B ARESEEREREZEES
Henst SREENEEREN
BESEERESNEAZERKE
FLBSEIREE - BB WEAKRRR
BRERSmE TIEZRMENE
TTaHE ©

BARIE
B PEE S 1R AR B R %
BaNBEF - BAEEBMLA
PIBEIRRBAIZ0 « BARR
BB R REERL -

AEESRERERSRHT—ET2
HEAMBFOIRE - HFI5HERH
e FAERNRAREERES
HAREETROREE - TEXRR
RETFERE - Mt AEERM
HeUEB LR A EEEN
RI WA FREHOME - 8
NREZ o BB e H B N S 45
T2REARBEFGEER 175
RERTGBEEHAE -
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Employee welfare

For the Hong Kong subsidiaries, the Group offers special
arrangement to employees to leave work early on
important traditional days which are not public holidays
such as Mid-Autumn Festival, Winter Solstice, Christmas
Eve and Chinese New Year’s Eve. The Group regularly
organises internal events to strengthen the sense of
belonging within the Group and boost the communication
transparency among all levels of employees.

The Group strives to create a fair and inclusive workplace
where all its employees are treated with dignity and
respect. The Group provides equal opportunity in all
aspects of employment and prohibits discrimination or
harassment against any individual on their gender, age,
nationality, marital status, disability, race, colour, religion
and any other characteristics protected by the relevant
laws.

The Group is in strict compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong, including the
Labour Law of the PRC, the Labour Contract Law of the
PRC, the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the
Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 480 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and the Race Discrimination Ordinance
(Chapter 602 of the Laws of Hong Kong). During the
reporting period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with those applicable laws and
regulations.

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 3225 B B2 R EEE R A 7

BEEF

REEBMBARMNE  ARELARE
BERERZH - UERERIIE
BARBYPNEREREAE (F
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Bl1  Total Workforce Bll {EEAE
As at 31 December 2022, the employee compositions RZE_—_F+ZA=1+—
(in percentage of employees) by gender, B BEMAEK(AEEE D
employment type, age group and geographical R ZER - EEER
region were as follows: FER AR N b 22 [ 1 E) 5 4n
T

2021
Employee compositions EEARK —E-—F
By gender B RIE D
—  Male - B 34%
—  Female - T 66%
By age group R E A BB 2
— 30 or below —  30BREIAT 18%
—  31-40 —  31Z40B% 33%
—  41-50 —  41ZE50m% 33%
—  51orabove —  S1pREkBALE 16%
By employment category REBERZ D
—  Senior management - =SRERE 3%
—  Middle management - HEEEE 5%
—  General - —% 91%
—  Contract/short term - A%/ EH 1%
By geographical region R IEEIEE 5
— PRC - Fh 97%
—  Hong Kong - B 3%
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B1.2 Employment Turnover Rate

Our Group’s employee annual turnover rate
breakdown by gender, age group and geographical
region during the reporting period was as follows:

Employee turnover rate EERALL=E

By gender RERI 85D

—  Male - 51

—  Female - T

By age group BRERARE D
— 30 or below —  30RREAT
—  31-40 —  31ZEA405%
—  41-50 —  41E50B%
— 51 orabove —  SIpREMAE
By geographical region BB EIHE 5
— PRC - 7

—  Hong Kong - BE
Overall B
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Bl2 (EERKLHE

REBRHEHAZER
Fi A8 Rl b 38 [& 13 &l 9 19
BESFRALEAAMAT

27%
17%

52%
16%
11%

7%

20%
14%
20%
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B2.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group rigorously complies with the “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Work Safety” ((REARH
ME %24 EE)) and other relevant laws and regulations
of Hong Kong in order to maintain health and safety
working environment. Employment safety rules is included
in the Group’s Staff Handbook for regulating occupational
health and safety and on-the-job training is provided for
the employees in order to minimize the potential risk of
accidents, injuries and exposure in relation to health risks.

The Guangzhou factory obtained Occupational Health and
Safety Certification (ISO-45001) formulated by the
International Organisation for Standardisation (“ISO”).
Thus, there is effective guarantee of a healthy, safe and
stable working environment. Daily operations are inspected
by various departments according to the occupational
health and safety requirements of the respective region.
Any non-compliance will also be identified and rectified on
a timely basis. For the Hong Kong office, we have
implemented the Occupational Health and Safety
Management System, and maintained the operations of the
system to fulfil the requirements of OHSAS45001:2018.

Besides, the Group has established the Environmental
Health and Safety Steering Committee within the
Occupational Safety and Hygiene Management Committee.
The committee provides management support for the
implementation of this policy and sufficient financial
resources.

Furthermore, the Guangzhou factory has implemented
several workplace safety policies so as to avoid fire and
industrial accidents, these include:

. Fire-fighting facilities like fire extinguishers are well
equipped.

. Designated staff conducts inspection from time to
time so as to ensure the exit passageway is clear and

unblocked.

. Fire drills are organized twice per year.

B2.

REBEBREETF(PEARLTEH
TEREEZE)REBEMBREER

KOEA - DR 20 T
RE -AEEETFMEHEER
ZERAA RSB ERRER
Z - HPMTmE B IR EEREI
NREREETEERRZERR L
KRRt R R o

&N B = B ER 15 B BRAZ X (b 48 4%
(flSOJ)%UEE’\JHﬁZ%ﬁJZﬁ%%@%
(ISO-45001) * BfgF - 22 &
EMTIERBREA DORE - B
FIRIER S EPIIR AR R A B 3
REEZ2RTETRE  WRF
A FEBNTETIER - RESW
FRME @ BOMTRERENZ
BIRER  WHHHBEURE
OHSAS45001: 2018 EVRiE °

SN AEEEAERELE REE
ERZEGNBRIBEFERE
RELREE - ZEBEANICR

WEMERHEEREIERTENTH

AN - BMNEE BT Z B TIES

PRREBER  WBRAXRTES

BB

- CEGAXNEZEEHA
HEERT o

. EEAEBTHKEUERE
PREGEER -

© BFABMAKNERE -
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B2.1 Number and Rate of Work-related Fatalities B2.1 EITHMABKLL=E
Below is our Group’s number of work-related injuries AEERBEFSFEE
and fatalities, and the rate of work-related injuries MAIZERILT ABUAR
occurred in each of the past three years: ATZGHERDT
Health and Safety Unit 2021 2020
BEREZE B —E-—F ZETF
Work-related injuries cases 7 17
AIRE 1
Work-related fatalities cases - -
AITik B
Rate of work-related fatalities % - -
AT Tt = %

B2.2 Lost Days due to Work Injury B2.2 HIEELAIHEAH
Below is our Group’s number of lost days due to work AEERBAE=ZFNATLE
injury of the past three years: BATERBHWNT :

Health and Safety Unit 2021 2020
REHEZZ By B —ZEETF
Lost days due to work injury days 254 379

AIEERTERR PN
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B3.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group places strong emphasis on the career
development of individual employees. Employees are
encouraged to keep abreast of the changing world and
pursue continuing educations, so as to cope with the
rapidly changing society and meet the evolving corporate
development needs.

The Group encourages its employees to participate in
individual continuing education programs which are related
to their job duties, with a view to strengthening the
professional career training of its staff teams, promoting
professional expertise of management teams and
stimulating the potential abilities of employees. In addition,
in order to enable new staff to fit into the Group and
comprehend the Group’s policy and corporate culture as
soon as possible.

We provide basic orientation training for all new staff and
provide its management personnel and employees with
on-the-job education, training and other opportunities to
improve their skills and knowledge. The Group continues to
intensify its efforts to promote staff training programmes.
This helps provide the necessary protection for talent
reserves for corporate development.

B3.

R MIE

KEI—EE%WETJI/\E’J%%?&
 WekEhE B 2 HEY# - R

LT%‘ AFE A& B3 A REL

HPERREROFR -

AEE SR8 T2 IR T (FRfE
BB AEERTE - ADN98 B T
heBEE - RABEBRBRNE
FHBS B THERE o thoh -
REMEETEAFTRBARE
C TEASEONBERMEEX
1t -

REBRPAAEHE TIRHABER
Bl YARMNEREABRET
REEBHE Bl kEMKE
PABRTHR BB B A - AR E
FEMEHETE THIIRE - AL
EMBERBFAT FRRHECEN
RIZ o
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B3.1 Percentage of Employees Trained B3.1 ZIIEEF DL
During the reporting period, the percentages of REPRR - & IEEU&EE
employees received training by gender and HREsMZIRER Y
employment category were as follows: N
2021
Training =23 T —F

Percentage of employees trained ZIH|{EEBH DL

By gender BRI &5

—  Male - B

—  Female - XM

By employment category RIEEERZ D

—  Senior management - SgERERE 100%
—  Middle management - HEEREE 78%
—  General - —% 100%
—  Contract/short term — A%/ 60%
Overall St 98%
During the reporting period, the composition of R|EBRA - ZHRRIEE
employees received training by gender and HAE S B ZIIE S K
employment category was as follows: N

Composition of Employees 2021
Received Training FiIEEBK T —F
By gender EHRIE D

. Male . B 36.1%
«  Female . T 63.9%
By employment category RERERNE D

+  Senior management - ERERRE 3.0%
. Middle management . RAAEEE 4.5%
«  General staff . —REE 92.2%
. Contract/short term . B4,/ EH 0.3%
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B4.

B3.2 Average Training Hours Completed per Employees

During the reporting period, the average training
hours by gender and employment categories were as

follows:

Training b

Average training hours EEF I EFE

(hours/employee) (B8 EES)

By gender ZIERIE

—  Male - B

—  Female -

By employment category RERERNS D

—  Senior management - PRERE

—  Middle management — FRERE

—  General - —#%

—  Contract/short term -  AH/EH
LABOUR STANDARDS B4,

The Group strictly complies with International Labour
Standards and the PRC’s “Provision on the Prohibition of
Using Child Labour"{ 2% IF & F§ & T #8 7 ). Besides, no
juveniles under 16 years old are recruited.

In order to maintain harmonious labour relationship, the
Group firmly eradicates any forced labour, employment
discrimination and occupational discrimination. The Group
protects the rights of staff in terms of providing rest and
leave days according to relevant government laws and
regulations. During the year, the Group strictly complied
with laws and regulations relating to employment and
labour practices in the PRC and Hong Kong.

B3.2 BEEETHIZIINFHIE
L
JiS

NIREBA - RIER R ERE
5

&0 1 ¥ 15 5 B Eomn

BN

21.4
16.6

35.5
31.8
16.8
10.8

& 2R

REBEBRE TR S TAR R Hh
BE(EILERETRE) © N -
B BB AR T meEAET

RIRFBMHEHBERE  ARER
RITBERESE BAEGER
BEER - AEESRRETHNE
BARNER - RER TIRE IR
BEVERN - RFER - REEERE
ST B R BB AR R & 55 THE IR
BRERIER -
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The principal raw materials used in Guangzhou factory
production mainly include ICs, PCBs, plastic, motor and
battery. At present, the majorities of manufacturing
materials are purchased domestically. The factory typically
procures raw materials and components upon receipt of
purchase orders from its customers.

In order to ensure that the raw materials and components
procured are of the requisite standards, our Purchasing
Department is responsible for procurement of raw
materials, and managing the sourcing arrangement for our
supply chain. An approved vendor list is maintained for our
principal raw materials and components and the vendor list
is reviewed periodically.

During the reporting period, the breakdown of supplier by
geographic region was as follows:

BS.

Number of suppliers HEBHE
By geographic region ZiEE D
—  Hong Kong - BF
— PRC - 7
—  Taiwan - A&
—  Europe - BUM
—  USA - %HE
—  Australia — RN
—  Canada —  mEX
—  Israel — &7l
—  Japan - BXR
Total HE

R E R

BEMNMEERNEZRTHEEE
FRER - ENRIESEIR - B8 -
WREM - BRI RED EEMH
BEEAN - IR —RREETFPH
KRBT ERRBE RV LA -

RERARBORME RAFTE
RENRE  REBHABRBERY
B E R R AR L - M
ERTREZRERMHRAFEIL
RAfEm R - WE B EETT
B5E -

RIEHA - RpRE D HOHERD
B4R
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To enhance supply chain management, the Group has
formulated management systems and regulates the
supplier selection process to systematically evaluate and
qualify new suppliers. This enables top notch suppliers to
enter its supply system and become its qualified suppliers,
thereby facilitating its stable procurement development.
According to the Group’s “Standard Operating Procedure”
and quality management system relating to the supplier
management process, the Group is to carefully manage
and selects qualified suppliers and carries out regular
evaluations to safeguard the quality of raw materials. Apart
from the quality, the Group selects the suppliers based on
the price, locations and flexibility. After the comparisons
between various aspects, the supervisor of the department
will choose the most suitable supplier and report to the
Operation Director. Once non-compliance of the supplier is
discovered, the supervisor of the department will inform
the supplier to make corrective actions within a time limit.
If no improvement is made, the supervisor of the
department and the Operation Director have the right to
terminate the cooperation.

Besides, we ensure our product delivery schedules are
properly fulfilled, and establish a foundation for providing
quality products to our customers. Customers become
more concerned about environmental issues and stress the
importance of using environmental-friendly materials. We
will continue to communicate these demands with our
suppliers, strengthen our cooperation with suppliers
regarding their ability to deliver environmentally-friendly
materials, coordinate with them in sampling trials, and
work with them to maximize societal benefits.

RNEHEEERE  AEEDHE
EIEHE KRB R TR RIE -
B P EBETEANGERR
] EEFSHHEREEARMRSE
BER RREAERHER NE
AREMNKE - REAKRENGR
REERRIR) LR E I RIZE
BOmEEEGERR  ARER
HEEMRESERMER  ATE
HETEN  UEREMHNO R
H-BREEIN AKETREE
B EAERBEREEERHRE
e P EARLRETEERERE
RAENHER  YFEEAEE
Heo —BERHEEBHITAEL
X ESBAHEERR RN -
IWRBEWE BT ENELRE
BRZIEAE-

AN R EHRERNREH

RARFREEELEERETER
BERPHREMERRBINERRE
RIRRI L - PG RERZFT
KEHEREE  REfEEE
RHEREMBEEN T ENEE - B
AftEmETERAR - BHEER
BFRNEBEREGRERAL -
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B6.
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PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to supplying quality products and
providing quality services that consistently meet or even
exceed our customers’ expectations. The Group has placed
a strong emphasis on quality assurance and adopted
stringent quality assurance procedures at different stages
of its business operation including the pre-production
process, the procurement of raw materials and
components, the monitoring of production processes and
the inspections of finished products to ensure the qualities
meet our standards.

B6.1 Percentage of Total Products Sold or Shipped
subject to Recalls

During the year, neither the products sold nor
shipped (2021 nil) were subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons.

B6.2 Customer Relationship Management

Customer satisfaction is the foundation of an
enterprise’s competitiveness, and the Group is to
continuously strives to improve on this aspect. The
Group has a customer-oriented focus and strives to
provide high quality products and services by
continuously addressing the concerns of customers
are looking for. A policy “Communication and Service
with Customers Manual” (€ B8 & &% 318 M AR 7% 12 )
F2F)) has been set to standardize the procedure for
customers communication in order to promote
operational consistency and faster responsiveness to
customers’ changing needs. The Group collects
customers’ feedbacks relating to its products which
are used as important references in its constant
efforts to improve product quality and promote
customer satisfaction. The Group is always trying to
improve and handle the complaints or feedback
quickly to resolve any issues. A Customer Services
Department has been set up to maintain ongoing
communication with customers and ensure the Group
can provide excellent service. During the year, 11
cases (2021: nil) products-related complaint were
received by the Group.

B6.
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The Group responded to the cases immediately and
explained to the clients. The situation has improved
after the adjustment of the working schedule of
employees and the increase in the consumer service
training.

B6.3 Intellectual Property

Our legal department is in charge of protecting our
intellectual property. In addition to highlighting and
protecting intellectual property and ensuring we
respect the intellectual property of others; we protect
the fair competition environment and comply with
industry standards and criteria. During the year, the
Group had not experienced any infringement of its
intellectual property rights by third parties. In
addition, the Group was not involved in any material
violation, litigation or legal proceedings for violation
of intellectual property rights during the reporting
period.

B6.4 Quality Assurance

The Group’s production facilities had been
successfully transited to the new version of Quality
management systems ISO-9001 and that of IATF-
16949 certified for manufacture of printed circuit
boards assemblies since 2011. Moreover, the updates
of the two certificates have been obtained in
December 2020. In addition, Guangzhou factory was
[SO-13485:2016 certified for Medical Devices during
the year.

B6.3

B6.4

AEBDZEEEZESMH
YREF#EE - ERHBEER
B TR B ) Ko 38 000K B & AR
BiElig - BREBARE

ABERE
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The Guangzhou factory has a team who is
responsible for quality control and quality assurance.
[t also has an independent quality assurance
department that reports directly to the top
management on product quality matters.

Quality assurance functions are performed
throughout the production processes from the raw
materials and components procurement stages to
product delivery stages, with an aim to ensure that
the products can meet the required national
standards and certain industry standards applicable
to such products. Industry standards for products
adopted by the factory mainly include:

(i) IPC-A-610F Acceptability of Electronics
Assemblies for PCBA workmanship
requirements;

(i) RoHS (Restriction of Hazardous Substances
Directives 2002/95/EC); and
(iii) REACH (Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation

and Restriction of Chemical substances).

Our products are also in compliance with various
international safety standards including:

(i)  FCC standards — product standards which are
applicable to telephone and IT;

(i) UL standards — standards for product safety;

(iii)  CSA standards — standards for product safety
and performance;

(iv) China Compulsory Certification — a mandatory
certification system concerning product safety

in China; and

(v) CE — European Union consumer safety, health
or environmental requirements.
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B7.

Most of our products and servicing that provided to
our customers are mainly environmental-friendly and
lesser-impacts-to-climate. In addition, Green
Purchasing Policies adopted for the selection of raw
materials for our manufacturing which are
conforming to legislative requirements of RoHS and
REACH.

B6.5 Consumer Data Protection

The Group is to put great emphasis on protecting
customer privacy and implement stringent internal
management for marketing activities to safeguard
customer information security. Only authorized staff
is allowed to handle the private consumer data, and
consents must be obtained from the Board to provide
the consumer data to the externals. If the consumer
data is leaked, the Group may pursue legal
responsibility for the relevant staffs.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

As corruption is detrimental to fair competition and
corporate integrity, anti-corruption has become one of the
main corporate business ethics principles for many of the
world’s premier enterprises. We advocate honest operation
and fair competition. Besides, we require our staff to
comply with the national laws and regulations, as well as
the Group’s regulations in relate to anti-corruption practice.
To promote compliance in the workplace, we also focus on
anti-corruption and anti-bribery principles for staff.

B7.
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B7.1 Number of Concluded Legal Cases regarding

Corrupt Practices

During the year, the Group did not receive any non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations related
to anti-corruption.

B7.2 Preventive Measures and Whistle-blowing

Procedures

As part of the Group efforts to make anti-corruption
an important corporate management culture, it sets
up whistle blowing channels to help prevent any mis-
conduct, malpractice and irregularities. All staff must
comply with the Group’s business code of conduct,
which aims to prevent corruption from a system
perspective. The Group also continues to improve its
internal control and monitoring system. If problems
are identified, the Group will take immediate
corrective action and have a zero-tolerance approach
to corruption in order to prevent irregularities.
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B7.3 Anti-corruption Training Provided to Directors and

Staff

The Group provided training sessions of anti-
corruption to the directors and staff. At the end of
the reporting period, the number of employees
received anti-corruption training and the training
hours by employment category were as follows:

Anti-corruption training REFEI

Number of employees FZIEEAE
received training

. Board of directors . EEE

. Senior management
. Middle management

- SRERE
- PRERE

. General staff . —mRET
Total employees EEAE
Number of training hours ZHlEg

. Board of directors . EEE

. Senior management
. Middle management

. S EIRE
. FRgEREE

. General staff . —MET
Total training hours #4832 5 BF B

B7.3 BEEREITRHNKRES
b= |

AEBRAEERBTIRHER
BEEEIRE RBREH
R REBEESNES
REGEINEEABEF
FIBFEREL ST
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B8. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

B8.1 Focus Areas of Contribution

B8 #tEIE
B8.1 EXE R

106

In terms of community involvement, the Group
continues to organize a corporate social responsibility
program in order to encourage employees to
participate in community services and contribute to
care needs of the community. For the Shanghai
office, the company places social responsibility on the
importance of business development.

B8.2 Resources Contributed

As part of our efforts to promote education, the
Guangzhou factory has established the “migrant
workers’ child education subsidize program” to
support the education of the worker’s children. The
table below shows the number of migrant workers
benefited from the “migrant workers’ child education
subsidize program” and the total amount subsidized
to them:

Community Investment Unit
HERE By
Number of migrant workers benefited people
SZHRITAHK A

Total amount of subsidy to the workers RMB

T AHERL B EE AR#TT

The Group also supports community development by
cash donation. The table below summarises the cash
donated by the Group to different charities during
the previous reporting period:

EdRSETH  AEEH
BHECEHSEMEFE
HEEEZEMERY B
EPEHR -EXNLERSE
B AREDIEHEREY
EBBRNERN -

B8.2 FTBIAER

RITEHE - BN THAK L
[RIFRHEMBAE ]
NZFHTATFROHE - #
[RIFAHEMUAE] X
SRTABRNMBMEES
NN

y{1y¥] 2021
—E-—F —E-—F

248 196

RMB247,250
AR¥247,250 T QNG RLHe0lob;

RMB98,000

AEBTEBREBEEX
FHRER  TERBARE
B E—HREHARR TR
EHIBREMNEREESFUA -

Donation Amount

BReHE

HK$

Description 3t BT
The Hong Kong Council of the Church PEABYER SRS

of Christin China 250,000

Total et 250,000
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE RE - g RERMERD
REPORTING INDEX
Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages
TEHE - -EFEH —REERBERERES E=4:0] BH
A. Environmental
A. EE
Al: Emissions
Al BERH)
General Disclosure “Emissions” 46
—MRIRER [HER ]
KPI Al The types of emissions and respective emissions  “Emissions — Air Pollutant 48
data Emissions”
R E IR AT PR iR iR K AR B EUE [HER) — ZER5 RBE ]
KPI'Al.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where “Emissions — Greenhouse Gas 58
appropriate, intensity Emission”
FRESIEFEAL2 AERBAERER (WER)TE [HER) — R =R HE R
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where “Emissions — Hazardous Wastes” 60
appropriate, intensity
R E IR AT FEAEEEEDEER (MER)EE [HEY) — BEEED ]
KPI Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, “Emissions — Non-hazardous 62
where appropriate, intensity Wastes”
FAREVIEZEALL FELEEZEEVLER(WER)EE [HEY) — BmEREEY)]
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions “Emissions — Air Pollutant 47, 56-57
and results achieved Emissions”,
“Emissions — Greenhouse Gas
Emission”
BRERIERALS  HURE SR E AR b NPT ISACR [HEY) — RIS FRBEm ] -
[HEY) — RERBEERY ]
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and “Emissions — Hazardous and 59, 61

non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction

initiatives and results achieved
FASRAEBIEIRALG
EENEBEEKE

iR A ENEERREMNITA

Non-hazardous Wastes”

WIEE [BERY) — BEREEEED)
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages

TEHRE - -EEH —REEREARENESR E=1:1] BHH

A2: Use of Resources

A2 - BIRFIA

General Disclosure “Use of Resources” 63

—MRIRER [ &R A ]

KPIA2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by “Use of Resources — Energy 65
type in total and intensity Consumption”

FRERUEIE A2l RELSSHEER SEEEREEER [ERAA —REE]
wnE

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity “Use of Resources — Water 66

Consumption”

BRERIRIZA22 HBEKEREE [ERNA —KiEE]

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives “Use of Resources — Energy 64-64
and results achieved Consumption”

FRERIEIRA2.3 AR E AT 8 R AAER R [ERMA — sERFEE |

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in “Use of Resources — Water 66
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water Consumption”
efficiency initiatives and results achieved

BRERIERA2.4  HHSKEGERKR ERI B ERIEE - UkIE [BRNA —kEE]
FrRKE B R PAERR

KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished “Use of Resources — Packaging 67
products and, if applicable, with reference to  Material”
per unit produced

BRESIEEA2S HEKMAABEMENEER (WER)SE TERMA — 88K
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages

TEHE  EBEE- - —REBERBRENIEE =0 BY

A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

A3 IRIERBARER

General Disclosure “The Environment and Natural 68
Resources”

—RE IR EE RIFELRBAEIR]

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of No significant impacts of 68

activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage

them

FAREBIEIRAZL RAEBEHURELBRERNER
LERDREEBBTENT

A4: Climate Change
A4 RIREE
General Disclosure

— R ER

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken

to manage them

FARAESIEIEALL HABENMARESHBRTAEEZENERX
RIEBEEE  MEXKREEEEEENTT

)

activities on the environment and
natural resources during the year

RER - WEEBEHEIREN
BREREEERNENTE

“Climate Change” 69
ElC3-2A

“Climate Change” 73-84
[RIEE L]
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages

TEHE  EBEE- - —REERBRENIEE =0 BY

B. Social

B. #®

Employment and Labour Practices

EREREIER

B1: Employment

Bl : Ef&

General Disclosure “Employment” 85

— R R [EfE ]

KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, “Employment” 87
age group and geographical region

FRESIEEBRLL RIER - EEEE  FRAJNKMESSH  [ERE]
EEBE

KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group “Employment” 88
and geographical region

FRAMIEIEBL2 MR - FRANRMESISNEERKLL [1EFE]

B2: Health and safety

B2 - @EHEZ SR

General Disclosure “Health and Safety” 89

—MRIKFE [fERREAZ 2 |

KPIB2.1 Number and rate of work — related fatalities  No fatality case occurred in each N/A
occurred in each of the past three years of the past three years including i@ A
including the reporting year the reporting year

BARENIEREB21 BE=F (BRERFE)BFAICHNA RBE=F(BREERFE)RE
= HIRA T THREZR

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury “Health and Safety” 90

FRENIEER2.2 HAIBEXIERHK [EREL 2]

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety  “Health and Safety” 89

FASAE IR B2.3

measures adopted, how they are

implemented and monitored
RPN B E R R 255k - LARIE [RERREZ 2]
BT RER A
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages

TEHE  EBEE- - —REBERBRENIEE =0 BY

B3: Development and Training

B3 : R KIEI

General Disclosure “Development and Training” 91

—MRIRER [ R Eal]

KPIB3.1 The percentage of employee trained by “Development and Training” 92
gender and employee category

BRERIEEBR3L RUMKREBEESHXIEERSLE  [ERKF

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per “Development and Training” 93
employee by gender and employee category

BRERIEREB32 RURREBERE S  BRESETKEI [FERKEF
EORSS]iE3

B4: Labour Standards

B4 : BT AR

General Disclosure “Labour Standards” 93

— AR ER [45 TR

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review “Labour Standards” 93
employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour

BRERIEEBAL s IR EARE AR R E T Roghl [45T 48]
BT

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such “Labour Standards” 93
practices when discovered

FRAENIEEBL2 fHMAEETERBARERB MBI [T ]

Gkag
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages
TEHE  EBEE- - —REERBRENIEE =0 BY
Operating Practices
&EEH
B5: Supply Chain Management
B5 : fAEREE R
General Disclosure “Supply Chain Management” 94
— PR ER [rEsEERE ]
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region  “Supply Chain Management” 94
FRAENIEERS.]l RHEE S EEREE [MtEEEIE ]
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging  “Supply Chain Management” 95
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they
are implemented and monitored
BRERIEEBS.2 M EHEAMERNED  mERTER [HERERE]
BROHEERNEE - UAREERITRERS
)
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify “Supply Chain Management” 95
environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, and how they are implemented
and monitored
FARENIEIEB5.3 ARSI HEEGERANREIEE [HEEEE]
R MBS - A KRBT RERG A
KPI B5.4 Descriptions of practices used to promote “Supply Chain Management” 95

FASR 4 N E1E B5 .4

environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how
they are implemented and monitored

A BRE R R I R (3 2 AR IRE fb SR
BHEH - AKAEBERITRER A

[rEsEE |
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages
TEHE  EBEE- - —REBERBRENIEE =0 BY
B6: Product Responsibility
B6: EmAE
General Disclosure “Product Responsibility” 96
—MRIRER [EmE1E]
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped  No product sold or shipped was 96
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons subject to recall for safety and
health reasons during the year
AR AE IR B6.1 E’iﬁzaitﬁ T %@%{EP R 2 HERIER RNFRRBEEHDEXEMD
EEEE GO ER) I B EIE B m /AR U
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service-related “Product Responsibility — 96-97
complaints received and how they are dealt ~ Customer Relationship
with management”
BRENIEEB6. EEANEMMRBHORFHEURELYS [EmEE - TFPBAEREE]
7
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing  “Product Responsibility — 97
and protecting intellectual property rights Intellectual Property”
FREMIEEBR6.3  HEi B RRR A EE A BB [EmEE - AHBER]
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and  “Product Responsibility — Quality 97-99
recall procedures Assurance”
FRAENIEIREB6.4 B ST B2 K E m B WA Fr [EmEE - E2RE]
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and  “Product Responsibility — 99

BAE AR IR B6.5

privacy policies, how they are implemented
and monitored

U8 B & B RMR IR R LB IBUR
WITRERTE

AR AR

Consumer Data Protection”

[EREE - HEEERRRE]
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages
TEHRE - -EEH —REEREARENESR E=1:1] BHH
B7: Anti-corruption
B7 : RE)S
General Disclosure “Anti-corruption” 99
—MRIRER (&5
KPIB7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding No concluded legal case was 100
corrupt practices brought against the issuer  brought during the year.
or its employees during the reporting period
and the outcomes of the case
BRERIEER7.1 REDPAHBTANEEERHTESESE FANERELEMASEENFA
E)SRAARMME B MafA&ER ESLa
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and “Anti-corruption” 100
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored
FRENIEIEB7.2 b EEEREREF  AEBEERTR TRES
BERITA
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training “Anti-corruption” 101
provided to directors and staff
BRERIEEBR7.3 HlMESEREBIRHORETE [R&E)5]
Community
HE
B8: Community Investment
B8 : H@IEE
General Disclosure “Community Investment” 102
— AR ER [HtEKE ]
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g., education,  “Community Investment” 102
environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport)
FARAERUEIEBRS.l HIEREE(WHE  RREE BIFE [HEERE]
kR Xk - 85)
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g., money or time)  “Community Investment” 102

FASR AR N F515 B8.2

to the focus area

rE

EBIEBEATEAER (e EaFRE)

(@R E ]
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The Board is pleased to present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Overview

Details of (i) business review; (ii) principal risks and uncertainties; (iii)
future development of the Group’s business; (iv) the Company’s
environmental policies and performance; and (v) the Company’s
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Company, are set out respectively in the
“Business overview”, “Key risks and uncertainties”, “Prospects”,
“Environmental, social and corporate responsibility” and “Compliance
with laws and regulations” sections under “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of the annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year using financial
key performance indicators is set out in the Group’s Five-year Financial
Summary on pages 270 to 271 of this annual report.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations in
relation to its business including health and safety, workplace
conditions, employment and the environment. Details of discussion of
the Group’s environmental policies and performance are set out in this
Environmental Social and Governance (ESG) Report.

EFEEMAREEFTERELAKEBE_F
T CFt A=t BUEFENEERERNM
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REKRBE  RWARBRRHARARRELEXN
FENHBERLERNARIBNZFED R
BRAFRIEBEN WA ATEKD
Bl [TEZRREIHARE] - [F1R] [3R
BHEREEREME| M ETERIER] &
#
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The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, including employees,
customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and shareholders. The Group
will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain good
relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

During the year, as far as the Board is aware, there was no material
non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group
that has a significant impact on the Group’s business and operations.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the audited
consolidated financial statements on pages 137 to 140.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements is set out
on pages 270 to 271. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
approximately HK$250,000 (2021: HK$48,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year
are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of the subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution comprise share
premium and accumulated losses/retained profits. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the provisions of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, the
Company’s share premium account may be applied by the Company
in paying distributions or dividend to shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the distribution
or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company shall be able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s distributable reserve was
approximately HK$130.7 million.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Related parties transactions of the Group during the Year are disclosed
in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report. None of such related party transactions constitutes connected
transaction which is subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement and/or shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

BE  BLRHWEARBZ LHES

REBEE_ZT__F+-_A=1+—HLEFE K
REHEEEAMBARMERE  HELER
RRBMER EHRES

fé
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B/REEN - REFEHBQRERANRF
AR M AR RIS - AR BRI E A AR
R ERR - ARAR BRREH 2 IR 30K AR
B EREBEEDRIRNREEBER - &K
RAABRENXNEBXBHEMZET -

NZZE-Z—F+_-_A=+—8 ' xAFAHH
IR #95130,700,000 B TT °
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, total sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 82.0% of the Group’s sales for the Year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to 44.3%.
Total purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 14.4% of the Group’s purchases.

None of Directors, their associates or any substantial shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
listed issuers share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers and customers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was established for reviewing the
Group’s emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, having regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices. The Company has also adopted a share option
scheme to provide additional incentive to its employees. For details,
please see the section headed “Share Option Scheme” below.

T2EFRHERD

RAEER > AEELATF ZBHEREAN
SERARFEHERIL820%  HFHZAE
FZHERIAZ%  NREBRAANHER Z A
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R AHEHLREFPHES T -

FECR

FHZES RIUEERBATEZEER
B EARBRAMELBRZTHED - A
SEZHFHBERMAEEERSREREZH
MZRHE - ARRITMRA T BRERT 8RB TR
HESNAE - FAERFESHAT [BhEs

gl —#ne

118  Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 3R as B[R BRI K EEE AR A )



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWE

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
this report are:

B=
RAFERBEAREEH  ARFEES:

Executive Directors: HITES
Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman) MRS (F/E)
Mr. Wang Guozhen FTERESLE

BINIkE(R=ZFE=ZZF+A+=HFF)
MEMZt (R=F=—F = AMAEZ(E)
BERAE(R-ZFE-_—F+—H—A¥EZT)
FREARE(RZFE_=F = A= HEZ(T)
BNERE(RZFZZF= AMHAFF)

Mr. Duan Chuanhong (resigned on 13 July 2022)
Ms. Lin Xiaoshan (appointed on 4 March 2022)
Mr. Liu Zhiwei (appointed on 1 November 2022)
Mr. Li Yinxiang (appointed on 3 March 2023)
Mr. Xia Xiaobing (resigned on 4 March 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors: B IEMITES ¢
Mr. Li Huiwu TEREE
Mr. Yang Weidong BIERLE
Mr. Chak Chi Shing BEBTE

BARNRABERMAIFE08) &K% TR
B E%14 TR T ST RISE A4 RS RIS - BIREELE
£ FREEERFEREEBNERERRE
FRELWHERT  BRFHNAERIEER
BEREE-

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company and code provision A.4 of the Code under Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules, Mr. Liu Zhiwei, Mr. Li Yinxiang and Mr. Li Huiwu will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

ARREEEFZREL BEREENES
BREBITRR 2B ENERE  RAF
HEHY AREIRAREBBELAL -

The Company has received confirmations of independence from Mr. Li
Huiwu, Mr. Yang Weidong and Mr. Chak Chi Shing, and as at the date
of this annual report, the Company still considers them to be
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Group are set out on pages
39 to 42 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals in the Group are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group subsisted at the
end of the Year or at any time during the Year to which the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

EFREE
AEBEFCBEFBHNANFHREIIEA
=

EERBAH

BREERRBFAS L ERSECEEHE
BEARBFILEFAARRBAER—FAKLEMN
TMEh#E CREMERIN ZRIBEHL -

BEENFIRARRESHAL

ERAEEEENFMETRREHA TN
BERAFRER AP RERMEES F6 ©

BE-ZE-_—_F+-_A=1+—HILFE - #iE
EZCHREXREREEMME -

EEZAKER

EEHENMEMAARR - HERARHEE
L =PNSIEADES = NS IEIRvVE S-S TE 3
BMEBEXN  ARAFEFEARAFELE
MEEAKATFEZANT  BERAHERESR
B

EIBEH
ARG BN 5] S RAFAE A S RAA A2
SEAEABAER EBRITRZAN -

120 Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 3R as B[R BRI EEE AR A )



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWE

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under Article 191 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the
directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices, provided that this indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attached to any of them. Such permitted indemnity
provision is currently in force and was in force throughout the financial
year.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, no interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) were held by the Directors
and chief executives of the Company which are required (i) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); (ii) pursuant to section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (i) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Company contained in
the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

As at 31 December 2022, neither the Directors nor the chief executive
of the Company which has an interest or a short position in the shares
of the Company (the “Shares”) or the underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

T Al 9 (B 153
RIBARBAHBERMANE MR - EFHE
BUAARRREEM G MIERTRERIER - EH
TERBEFXFREFETMA—TRATEE B OB
BB BREBE BRSANATRE MIE
- RIEHERAEMTT R & A BE A
HREW IR - A B BRBE
RELFAXHRZES WZBETSIRE
M BARERNRFLTHRETR/NEER a7
WEMGXEMCER  TEEEAMBRFEE
X o

BEZNT2ITHABRARF LA EH
EB Bty ~ MBI MIES 2 i K

A
IR

R-ZE-_—_F+_A=+—"H SFERAR
Al EEBITHA B WA AR QA ol H A A8
FE(EERBARAEGRD([FFRBERK
Bl 1) EXVED) 2 i - MR RESFF - #
EAOREES KRB KIIEXVBETRSHD
Bl me R e R (BREREESR
BEED 2 BRIE X B IES R AR 2
wmEROKE ) (DIREBEZF REIERHIE XV ED
352G AR GFT I 2 B M A kiR
BLETRAFBARNFEZEFLETESRZHNZ
EFRIMERNA R MR 2 R MRE -
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EXVEE 2RI EBENAR AN R EIRE 2
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On 28 January 2021, total 15,406,140 options are granted to three
executive directors of the Company to subscribe for Shares upon
exercise of such Share Options at an exercise price of HK$0.359 per
Shares with an exercise period of 28 July 2021 to 27 January 2026.

Upon the completion of Right Issue on 23 November 2021 and the
adjustment in relation to the Right Issue, total 10,666,184 options are
granted to two executive directors of the Company and adjusted
exercise price of HK$0.346 per Shares as at 31 December 2022.

RZZFEZ—F—HZ+/\A - #15406401%
BRERTAQATZZBHNITES - URTTHEZ
LRERERSIRITEESRO0.359BITRER D -
TERE-_ZE-_—F+A-+N\BHZ-_ZE =X
F—A=++RH-

RZBZ—F+—AZ+=AHRTEK Rt
RIEE AR  #HE= T::¢+fﬂz+—

HHE MR AW B #31TE S 110,666,184 17
BEARE - HAAREITRERTR0346 BT °

Number of

underlying shares
held/interested
pursuant to Share

Percentage of
issued share

Long or short capital of

Name Capacity Options  position the Company
RIEBRERSE

BEEZNERE NN T
HE 514 BREONEE HFRIKXR BABDEHE
Lin Dailian Beneficial Owner 5,333,092  Long position 0.58%
PN EmEE A e
Wang Guozhen Beneficial Owner 5,333,092  Long position 0.58%
TEE EREEA R
Other than as disclosed above, as at the date of this Annual Report, B EFREEBEEIN  RAEHRBH  HEEE

neither the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company which
has an interest or a short position in the Shares or the underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO.

FARAZ EBITHRABRANR AR 48RS
Bein P A RIBRE 5 R HIE RGIZE XV EBEE 2
K39 BRI ZR AR A R B RS SIOR B
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INTEREST AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO shows the following shareholders had notified the Company of
relevant interests, being 5% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company.

ARRFEBBRNIN LR 2
@M EORR

RZZBZZF+A=+—H BZREEFK
HEGROIEXVEEIBEARBAFEZE
ERRERMALE - THRREMNG KRR
HiAM#EzR (A5 AR R #ITARAR 5% 3k A
E)e

Percentage of Issued
Share Capital of

the Company
EARARBRT
BABD®E
Number of Long or 31 December
Name Capacity shares held short position 2022
—E-CF
wE/ 28 £ RO #E BESKA tT=ZA=t+-H
Mr. Sy Ming Yiu Beneficial Owner 100,000,000 Long 8.3%
HEBRIB S A ERBAA HE
Power Port Holdings Limited Beneficial Owner 75,817,000 Long 6.5%
(“Power Port”) (Note 1) ELHEA e
Power Port Holdings Limited
(Power Port ) (fit:#1)
Ms. Yang Changrong Held by controlled 75,817,000 Long 6.3%
(“Ms. Yang C.”) (Note 1) corporation e
BRARL((BRALZLT])(HH1) REEHEERAE
Notes: /ng :

1. 75,817,000 ordinary shares are held by Power Port, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Yang Zhihui (“Mr.
Yang”). A share purchase agreement was entered into on 8 January 2020 between Mr.
Yang, as the seller and Ms. Yang Changrong (“Ms. Yang C.”). as the purchaser, pursuant
to which Ms. Yang C. agreed to acquire, and Mr. Yang agreed to dispose, the entire
issued share capital of Power Port (the “Transfer”). Following the completion of the
Transfer, Ms. Yang C. became the sole shareholder of Power Port and a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

1. 75,817,000 A% I 38 A% f Power Port 157 + A Bl AR &
BRZESTMKIIZERAR - E2HE#TRAR
MEEEE(MEEDRFE - MEEWERER) BIGR
At (HEAET) (Bt )R-_Z_FF—A/\BT
URMBERE Bl BRXTRBREMMEERE
& Power Port 2 B B /TR ([ ) - BESE T
% LB A Power Port BJME — AR R M AR QAT H) =
DR o
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any Director or their respective associates, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the Year, none of the Directors or controlling shareholders of
the Company nor their respective associates is considered to have
interests in a business that competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group other than
those businesses where the Directors have been appointed or were
appointed as Directors to represent the interests of the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Old Share Option
Scheme”) which was adopted on 31 December 2010, valid and
effective for a period of 10 years until 31 December 2020, subject to
the early termination provisions contained in the Old Share Option
Scheme. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 10 March
2020, the Old Share Option Scheme was terminated, a new share
option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) of the Company
was adopted and approved. Upon termination of the Old Share Option
Scheme, no further options of the Old Share Option Scheme can be
offered thereunder but the provisions of the scheme shall remain in
force to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any
options granted prior to its termination and options granted prior to
such termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable. As at the
date of this report, the Company has no option granted under the Old
Share Option Scheme remained unexercised or outstanding.
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New Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives
and rewards to selected eligible persons for their contributions to the
Group. The New Share Option Scheme will remain valid until 10 March
2030, subject to the early termination provisions contained in the New
Share Option Scheme. The participants of the New Share Option
Scheme may include directors, employees, consultants, professionals,
customers, suppliers, agents, business or joint venture partners,
advisors and contractors of the Group or a company in which the
Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company.

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted within 21 days from
the date on which an option is offered to an eligible participant and a
non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 in favour of the Company as
consideration for the grant thereof. The subscription price for any
share under the New Share Option Scheme will be a price determined
by the Board at its absolute discretion and notified to each grantee
and will be not less than the highest of (i) the closing price of a share
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the relevant option; (ii) an amount equivalent to the average
closing price of the share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the relevant option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share on the date of the grant.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
New Share Option Scheme and any other schemes involving the issue
or grant of options or similar rights over Shares or other securities by
the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the shares in issue
from time to time. Notwithstanding anything contrary to the terms of
the New Share Option Scheme, no options may be granted under any
scheme of the Company (including the New Share Option Scheme) if
this will result in the said 30% limit being exceeded.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options already granted or to be granted to each participant under
the New Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company (including exercised and outstanding share options)
in any 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
should not exceed 1% aggregate of the shares in issue as at the date of
such grant. Any grant of further options above this 1% limit shall be
subject to approval of the shareholders of the Company at general
meetings, with such participant and his associates abstaining from
voting.
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Up to the date of this report, 3,098,279 share options has been
granted by the Company pursuant to New Share Option Scheme
Upon the every ten (10) issued and unissued shares of par value of
HK$0.02 each were consolidated into one (1) consolidated share of
par value of HK$0.2 each on 30 March 2023. The options are unlisted.
Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one share of
HK$0.2 each of the Company.

As at 31 December 2022, the detail movement of the Share Options
are as below:

HEARREBH  ARRIREFBREASZD
ETF3098279MERE - R_T_=F=H
=+H8 ' 81+00)KREREECO2B LA %
TRREBETROEHR—ORSREMBEO2E
TTHEHIRG - BAREBIELMER - BHE
BRERTRHBEABEIABARAGR2ET
B —REARAD ©

N-ZTE-_—F+-_A=+—0 - BIREZET
BT -

Number of share options
BREHE
Lapsed/
Grant Exercised cancelled
Exercise Outstanding during the during the during the Outstanding
price as at year ended year ended year ended as at
Holder of per Share 1January  31December  31December  31December 31 December
Share Options Date of grant Exercise period (note 3) 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022
BE-%-of
W% HE-B--F PECB--F TZAST-B RIBIZE
BRITHE -A-B tZA=t+-B +tZA=t-H L#E +tZA=t+-H
BREREA RiAH yid (M&3) MATE  LEERL  LEEEGHE AM/EH GER i
HKD
A
Executive Directors
HiTES
Lin Dailian 28-Jan-21 2021.7.28-2026.1.27 0.346 5,333,092 - - - 5,333,092
v Z—E-AZt)NH T -ELAZf)\BE
ZEIRE-AZTtA
Xia Xiaobing 28-Jan-21 2021.7.28-2026.1.27 0.346 5,333,092 - - (5,333,092) -
ENE ——%-AZt/NR ZE--%tA-tN\RZE
ZZIRE-AZTtA
Wang Guozhen 28-Jan-21 2021.7.28-2026.1.27 0.346 5,333,092 - - - 5,333,092
TEE ——5-R=+/R ZFZ-FtAZTN\AE
ZEIRE-A-ttA
Employees 28-Jan-21 2022.1.28-2026.1.27 0.346 20,316,607 - - - 20,316,607
EE ——5-A=+/R ZZRZZF-RZN\HE
ZEIRE-A-ttA
Employees 14-Jun-22 2022.6.14-2024.6.13 0.106 - 53,328,000  (53,328,000) - -
E& ZZERATRA “ZF--F RtNAZE
ZEINERATZR
Total 36,315,883 53,328,000  (53,328,000) (5,333,092) 30,982,791
Fh)
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Note :

m The closing price of the Company’s share immediately before the date (28 January
2021) on which the share options were granted was HK$0.35.

(@) The closing price of the Company’s share immediately before the date (14 June 2022)
on which the share options were granted was HK$0.106.

3) The exercise price per share of share options has reflected the adjustment in relation to
the Right Issues which completed on 23 November 2021.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Company has participated in an approved Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all its employees
in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Company in an independently-administered fund. The
Company’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme. The Company’s contributions
to the MPF Scheme are recognised as an expense in the statement of
profit or loss as incurred.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no forfeited contribution to the
retirement benefits scheme was credited to the statement of profit or
loss (2021: nil).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Since the Listing Date,
the Company has complied with the code provisions of the Code, save
for the exceptions explained in the Corporate Governance Report in
this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
annual report as required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.
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TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation to which the
Shareholders are entitled by reason of their holding of the Shares.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 24 February 2023, the Board proposed that every ten (10) shares
in the issued and unissued share capital of the Company be
consolidated into one (1) consolidated share (the “Share
Consolidation”). The Share Consolidation was approved by the
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 28 March 2023 and the same became effective on 30 March
2023,

Details of the Share Consolidation are set out in (i) the announcements
of the Company dated 24 February 2023 and 28 March 2023; and (ii)
the circular of the Company dated 13 March 2023.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 have been audited by McMillan Woods (Hong
Kong) CPA Limited who retires and, being eligible, offers themselves
for re- appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Lin Dailian
Chairman

Hong Kong
31March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Bz AR

McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
LINK-ASIA INTERNATIONAL MEDTECH GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Link-Asia
International MedTech Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 137 to 269, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“"HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BN AR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

PR ER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, RERETEEABBERFINFEEHE - 2A5R
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial B AHREZ GEMEBREABHTHAEE
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed inthe 2 E18 - RIFEE S SRR B ETET
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a W ith ERE REEIBIHLEEE - M itk
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a ZEEHXRBBEER - RFIET @RS
separate opinion on these matters. The key audit matter we identified  EIEA :

is as follows:

Key Audit Matter
REErEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RMETESRNMNEERRESTEE

Impairment of loans to other parties and other
receivables

B HE A 1 H N E R R B KRR R E

Refer to note 28 and note 27 of the consolidated financial
statements.

2B4R A ME IR M L 28 R EE27 ©

Loans to other parties and other receivables represent a
significant portion of the Group’s assets. A loss allowance
for 12-month or lifetime ECL is made on all loans to other
parties and other receivables.
mMEMATEENERREMBYRIEL EXEEE
WEZE D - FTA REAM A T 1EH 89 E 3% H th fE R
EHERFHRRE A HEREEEENEEEE -

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has loans to
independent third parties and individual with outstanding
principal and accrued interest totaling of approximately
HK$8,032,000 (net of allowance of credit losses of
approximately HK$43,231,000). During the year, allowance
for expected credit loss (“ECL”) of approximately
HK$4,118,000 was recognised in profit or loss due to
increase in assessed credit risk.
RZZBZZF+ZA=+—H  EEERBIEF=AK
BAAELENEFNREERE REAMNELBOR
8,032,000 7T (N5 B E BB 4 43,231.000/8 7T ) °
FA - AR EERBIEN  RNERCRRENEES
EB(HEBEERBE]) BEBLN R 4180008 T

Evaluating management’s assessment of whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
or the credit risk of the financial asset has
increased to a point that it is considered credit-
impaired since initial recognition of material
loans.
AEBEREEBHVIRAEAERUAREERR
ERBEEENIEREENEFERREIEME
WRBEERENZEFE

Evaluating the independent external valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectivity.

AHEBII NG ER R B - sE ) MBI

Checking the supporting documents including
loan agreement, repayment agreement and
repayment record on sampling basis;
mERERRBER R - B S R KA
TEREBR M
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Key Audit Matter
ARETSEHE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KMETETRNAEEBRETSE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has other receivables of
approximately HK$57,024,000 (net of allowance of credit
losses of approximately HK$5,971,000). During the year,
allowance for ECL of approximately HK$4,206,000 was
recognised in profit or loss due to increase in assessed
credit risk.

RZZE-_—F+=-A=+—08  EEEHMGEKFIEY
557,024, ooo;‘%fc(mfﬁ?%%féﬂaﬁéﬁ 5,971,000 7T) ©
FR - ARFHEEERBIEN - RNERCERBHEEE
TET%&%%’J%AL,ZO&OOO,%T_E °

With the assistance of an independent external valuer
appointed by the Company, the management is required to
exercise significant judgement in determining whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk or the
credit risk of the financial asset has increased to a point that
it is considered credit-impaired since initial recognition, and
in estimating 12-month and lifetime ECL on the loans to
other parties and other receivables. Accordingly, this area is
considered as a key audit matter.

£ ERRZEMNEINMEERORE T - EERERED
BARAE - NETEBVFBERUAREERR S H IR EEE
meMEENEERBREENEHEREERENIEE
VA Rz Al 5t 1) EAth A 1F B 8 B 3 B B At FE W RRIE 9 1218 A %
S HIFEEEEEE - Bt - W EEER RERERF1E -

Assessing the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure
of the allowance for impairment of loans to other
parties and other receivables and the related
credit risk;

i BEEERREMATERERKEM
EWFIBREREE R EEEEERR 2 HREN
M

With the assistance of our valuation specialists:
assessing the appropriateness of the impairment
models used by management to estimate ECL;
comparing the inputs to the models to external
data; and assessing the appropriateness of any
forward looking adjustments in light of available
information about current and forecast future
economic conditions; and
EHXRMPNEEEROBYT - THEEEARN
HETEHEEBENREERNES M - H1E
A p i A SR EINT SR ETHE R - RIREBA
B8 & A S T8 ORI R 2R A R R B0 AT A & R R A
AT AEAEE T - &

Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s
impairment policy and the understanding of the
Group’s design and implementation of key
internal controls related to impairment
assessment.

TR BESEMREBCE &TEE E5EE#A
AR H Y B NS B 8 R R E M o
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Key Audit Matter
ARETSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KMETETRNAEEBRETSE

Impairment of intangible assets
BREERE

Refer to note 21 of the consolidated financial statements.
2R A M mMERME2 -

Intangible assets, which mainly consist of EAR-1, EAR-2 and
EAR-3 (as defined in note 21), represent a significant portion
of the Group’s assets.

BREAETZOEBRRERE -1 BRAEE 2KBRK
B -Z(ERRME2) 16 BEEEEENEAED -

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of EAR-1,
EAR-2 and EAR-3 are approximately HK$4,320,000,
HK$27,000,000 and HK$35,793,000 respectively. The
management of the Group carried out impairment
assessment of the recoverable amount of EAR-1, EAR-2 and
EAR-3 which is based on estimated future cash flows to be
generated from the respective real estate projects and the
distribution of testing and measuring equipments products
and the provision of after-sale services, respectively. The
Group recognised impairment losses of approximately
HK$3,615,000 on EAR-1 during the year ended 31 December
2022.

RZZZZF+ZA=+—0 BRAE#E -1 BRAREE
2 RBRAIEE 3HNKREED B4 43200008 7T
27,000,000 7T & 35,793,000 - BEEBEEEEH HIR
BEEFRMERR S HARATASREERARRHEER
FRESEEET AR RIREME - EBERAIEE 1 BRRIEE —
RBRRIEE 3B SEETREN G BE-Z
ZZF+TZA=T-HIEFE S BEEERIBRRIERE
B EE X 3,615,000 77T ©

With the assistance of an independent external valuer
appointed by the Company, the management is required to
exercise significant judgement in determining the
recoverable amount of the intangible assets. Accordingly,
this area is considered as a key audit matter.

. BRAEZENEINMEEMNBE T  RETETE
ERRRE SR - BRERELERAE o Bt - tEE
WS ARRRERTEIE -

Assessing the discount cash flow models;
FHHERRIE e RERR

Obtaining the supporting documents to confirm
the validity of the exclusive agency rights of the
real estate project;

NGHRENEIE B BRRIERESRIEATERX
(G3E

Obtaining the external valuation reports and
discussing with the external valuer to challenge
the valuation process, methodologies used and
market evidence to support significant
judgements and assumptions applied in the
valuation model;

RGN ERE - WEINBEEM R - AE
HFRAZEERT  FEARRXFHEERI S
PR 2 BRI R Rk 2 588

With the assistance of our valuation specialists:
reviewing the valuation process, methodologies
used and market evidence to support significant
judgements and assumptions applied in the
valuation model prepared by the external valuer;
ERMHOEESROBET - EHAEKRAZEE
B FAERRZ I ERM AR HERE
R PTA 2 ER A RIRER 2 TI5RE

Checking key assumptions and input data in the
valuation model to supporting evidence;
HRZFRE  mEotERAP 2 FERERRE
ABE

Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation
model; and
wEMERAF 2 BT EmT &

Assessing the disclosure of the fair value
measurement in the intangible assets.
FEEEBEREELAFEFECEEER -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the Other
Information. The Other Information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

ZHE L E R A M B RAARENR
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, regarding among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Chun Sing

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number PO5537
24/F, Siu On Centre,

188 Lockhart Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

31March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

] N\ 7/

AN
YA A . é.\J/]ﬁ_

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;

EE_F+A=+—HILFE

Notes
HiaF

Revenue WA 9
Cost of sales SHE KN
Gross profit ES ]|
Other income EHAblUg A 10
Other gains and losses Hib iz & Eia 11
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAS
Administrative expenses TERER
Impairment losses on loans to mEMATEFREEE -

other parties, net of reversal BR [
Impairment losses on trade JEWE SRR EREE

receivables, net of reversal BR [
Impairment losses on other H b EW G IE R BB 18

receivables, net of reversal BR [
Impairment losses on intangible | EERERE

assets
Research and development expenditure #f7% & B2 H
Loss from operations KEEE
Share of profits of associates JE (LB & R B 7
Finance costs B E R AR 12
Loss before tax BRBIAIES 1B
Income tax expense 8 x 13
Loss for the year FEEIR 14
Attributable to: LTS HE -

Owners of the Company ViN/NCIEZZ N

Non-controlling interests FEIZE AR R 2
Loss per share BRER 18

Basic (HK cents per share) FA (A

Diluted (HK cents per share) g (FIB)

2022
—E_—
HK$°000
FTER
529,251

(427,855)

101,396
9,631
6,690

(29,988)

(105,039)
(4,118)
(606)
(4,206)

(3,615)
(14,511)

(44,366)

(4,051)

(48,417)

(3,592)

(52,009)

(54,042)

2,033

(52,009)

(4.996)

N/A FEA

2021

HK$'000
TR

675,523

(530,635)

144,888
10,827
14,685

(29,232)

(154,230)

(15,378)

965

1,800

(15,0006)

(40,681)

1,098
(4,169)

(43,752)

(3,395)

(47,147)

(46,397)
(750)

(47,147)

(7.794)

N/A i R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e Em MEMRERSE

Far the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

2022
—F=—=
Notes HK$°000
Bt FET
Loss for the year FEEE (52,009)
Other comprehensive expense: Hih2mEAX :

Items that may be reclassified to
profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

B DB EERAAR -

BEBINRT 2B ERE

Other comprehensive expense
for the year, net of tax

FEHM2EMY - HIKRBIE

Total comprehensive expense FE2HEMIHAE
for the year

Attributable to: DT &AE -
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZF =N
Non-controlling interests e e
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2021
—E-—%
HK$°000
FAT

(47,147)

(1,060)

(1,060)

(48,207)

(47,458)

(749)

(48,207)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ra MR

As at 31 December 2022 WZZE_—F+=-_A=+—H

Notes
Bt

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB NEE 19
Right-of-use assets FREEE 20
Intangible assets EmRAE 21
Rental deposits Heke 27
Total non-current assets FRBEEHRE
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 25
Trade receivables R E SRR 26
Prepayments, deposits and TERRIE -~ me R EH A ERGUE

other receivables 27
Loans to other parties mEMATREHER 28
Amount due from a director B — R EERIA 45
Investments at fair value through WA EF AER

profit or loss (“FVTPL") ([BRAFEFABREDKRE 24
Bank and cash balances WITRIRBLER 29
Assets classified as held-for-sale DEBBEHENEE 23
Total current assets RBEEHAE
TOTAL ASSETS EEHAE
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES REREME
Equity s
Equity attributable to owners RAEHER AL

of the Company
Share capital & A 37
Reserves [t 39

Non-controlling interests FEE A RE 25
Total equity ESAE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
21,058 29,636
33,240 54,466
68,380 36,835
1,157 3,215
123,835 124,152
56,799 118,915
115,354 162,232
92,619 106,639
8,032 9,388
536 -

- 1,229
252,209 145,574
525,549 543,977
9,849 9,849
535,398 553,826
659,233 677,978
24,154 18,487
335,708 347,390
359,862 365,877
2,154 121
362,016 365,998
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR AR

As at 31 December 2022 WZZT-_—F+=-_A=+—H

2022 2021
—E-CF T —F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt FET FATT
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Lease liabilities HERE 32 36,514
Bonds payable EfES 34 2,000
Total non-current liabilities kRBEBEEE 38,514
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables B E SRR 30 40,186 58,694
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A M E M A 31 201,832 175,737
Amount due to director R EEIAE 45 149 -
Lease liabilities HERE 32 16,596 22,075
Borrowings gE 33 13,565 614
License rights payable FET R K = 7,789
Product warranty provisions EmRARE 35 1,207 3,584
Current tax liabilities BEARIE & (& 2,768 4,973
Total current liabilities REEEAEE 276,303 273,466
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EELEaEHE 659,233 677,978

Approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2023 and are signed &EEe@pR - E-—=—®#=A=+—BHiLEWHT

on its behalf by: HIATRAEE
Lin Dailian Li Yinxiang
MACER TR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

= N\ /.
T / ~ l|\|:ll|\ @J %

[\\/ AY
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
FATHEAEE
Foreign
Share Share currency Non-
Share  premium option Merger  translation Contributed  Statutory Capital Capital - Accumulated controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve  contribution losses Total interests equity
v FER
A EER BRERE ANEE EXRE SRR ieRE  GREE  EAME ZhER Eh R RESE
(note39  (note39  (note39  (note39  (note3y  (note39  (nofe3y  (note39
(note 38) (0} (b)) (b)) (b)) b)) o) o) i)
(Witzo (W39 (WE%  (W#E (W39 (WY (WEn (B3
(Hit3s) ) (&xiy) (b)) (b)i) ®w) o) o) o)
HKS000  HKS000  HKEO000  HK$000  HKSOOD  HKSO000  HKSO0D  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKE000  HK$000  HKFO00  HK$000
TEr  TEr  TER TR TEAr  TEr  TEx T TEr  TER AR TEr TR
At 1 January 2021 RZF=-5-A-A 8559 669,649 31 15,74 1829 2502 42715 11280 (438016) 295462 o 29593
Total comprehensive expense for the year — FE2ERREE - - - - (1,060) - - (463%8)  (474%9) (49)  (48.200)
Issuance of placing shares (note 37(c)) BORERG (W:370) e 768 - - - - - - B - 9%
Issuance of placing shares (note 37(d)) BARERR (W2 30) 2054 20262 - - - - - 2316 0316
Issuance of shares upon rights issue HRESRAKH370)
(note 37(¢)) 6,162 55,464 - - - - - 61,626 61626
Capital injection from a non-controling FRERTE
interest - - - - - - - 3% 3%8
Recognition of equity-settled BANREEE RN BEEZ AR
share-based payments 4576 - - - - 4576 4576
Changes in equity fo the year FEEEED 908 103369 4576 - (L060) - - 63%9) 70415 (5 70064
At 31 December 2021 and
1 January 2022 18,487 773,018 4576 3 14,684 18,298 2502 4275 11080 (484414) 365877 m 365,998
Total comprehensive expense for the year — FE2EH WSE = (54042) (54,181
Issuance of consideration shares (note 37(3)) ~ EARERIA (K 376) y b - - 37,800
Exercise of shares options (note 37(b) TERRIEWE30) (2,788) - 5,653
Lapse of share options BIRELR (924) 924 -

Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments

BREEEURN ARRZ AR
413

FEEREY

Changes in equity for the year

5,667

40,574 1,001 (139)

At 31 December 2022 S gl o 24,154 813,592 5511 3m 14545 18,298 2,502

11,280

(53,118)

(537,532)

4713

(6,015)

359,862

2033

2,154
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FAERTRER

Far the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

Note
Bt et
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHEERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BrEERTE B
Adjustments for: FEE
Impairment losses on trade JEE SER R EGE
receivables, net of reversal ElE323E
Impairment losses on other Eoph JE W R IE R A A
receivables, net of reversal E[E3qE
Impairment losses on loans mMEMATERZRBE
to other parties, net of reversal E5i8 - HpREME
Impairment losses on intangible ER A EREREIE

assets
Allowance on inventories,
net of reversal
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Early termination of a lease
Finance costs
Share of profits of associates
Gain on disposal of associates
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Interest income on loans to
other parties
Bank interest income and bank
fixed deposit interest income
Provision on product warranty,
net of reversal
Fair value gain on investment
property

Fair value losses (gains) investments

at FVTPL

Equity-settled share-based payment

Waive of license rights payable

FERYE - MEERD

ME - BEMREBITE

EREEENE

AR LS

BE AR
il Nl bl
ek NS 6
HE—HME ARz ¥
HEYME  BELEREZ
BB
mEMALTERZ

A BHA
RITH BIA R RITE
TEsR M B YA
iR AR - HIBREE

REMEN AT ENRE

BAFER ARED
BEZ N HERBER (Ka)

VAR HE 45 B AR ) R BT Y
LS

RN TN
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2022 2021
—E—-=

HK$°000

F&T

HK$'000
THETT

(43,752)

(965)
(1,800)

15,378

501
543

9,584
24,913

4,169
(1,098)
(14,597)

167
(5,727)
(598)
(1,027)
(2,068)
(796)

4,576



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
el nER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

2022
—E=-=
Note HK$°000
Hiat F&T
Operating loss before working ZEECEYHLEEE
capital changes (11,316)
Decrease in license fee payables R BT JE N OB (1,938)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERA Em) 64,083
Decrease in trade receivables FEWE 5 BR 50m 46,272
Decrease (increase) in prepayments,  FEZRIE « 54 M H b fEU
deposits and other receivables SIER A (38 h0) 1,305
Increase in loans to other parties mE A A T EFIE N (2,479)
(Decrease) increase in amount due FENE = 5k IE ORl ) 3 N
from directors (387)
Decrease in trade payables FERTE 5 BRFOR (18,508)
Increase (decrease) in accruals TR E B K E A E N RIE
and other payables 0O ) 36,621
Decrease in product warranty EmIRBEER
provisions (1,525)
Purchase of equity investments at BEZAFEFABEN
FVTPL friERE
Proceeds from disposal of equity HERAFEFTAEBED
investments at FVTPL IR#EIRE < FT1S50R
Cash generated from (used in) KRS (TR Re
operations 113,248
Income tax paid BXATER (5,683)
Finance costs paid BXBERA (975)
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERNE 41(e) (3,076)
Net cash generated from (used in) R TEEFTS (FTRA)
operating activities REF5 103,514

2021
HK$'000
THETT

(12,597)

(26,765)
4,146

(16,986)

450
(28,659)

(13,724)

(6,086)

5,653

(94,568)

(2,310)
(520)
(3,649)

(101,047)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FAERTRER

Far the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

Notes
Hiat
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHESRE
ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BB BT E A A 41(a)
Disposal of associates k=i A YNC]
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHBR R 41(b)
Bank interest received BUERITH &
Loans to other parties mEMALER
Refunded from loans to other parties  iRiE T H A+ &

Refundable deposit paid for exclusive
agency right

Purchases of property, plant and
equipment

Proceed on disposal of properties,
plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

SIBRRERZRER®
BEWME  BEMEE
HEME - BERREZ

PIEE N
BEBLEE

Net cash from investing activities

BREZYMERDIFR
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2022 2021
—E—-=

HK$°000

F&T

HK$'000
THETT

(131)
3,353

(282)
598

(1,225)
20,881

2,000

(20,198)

417
(1,900)

3,513



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

/\‘/ \ Eﬁzi;}zﬁ%%

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issuance of shares
upon exercise of share options
Proceeds from issuance of placing

shares
Proceeds from issuance of shares

MEZDRERE

TR RITIRODAE
IR
BITRERMD TSR

AR I 1T A 4D TS 5008

2022

—E__—F

Notes HK$°000

HtaF FET
37(b)

37(c), 37(d)

upon rights issue 37(e)
Principal elements of lease payments ~ HENREZAS 5D 41(H)
Deposits from the subscriber of share  #FRIFZ#EE T RXD E1TH
issue under specific mandate REAZTR 46(ii)
Borrowings raised E5ER
Repayment of borrowings EEER
Proceeds from issuance of bonds BITEHFSHIE
Repayment of bonds payable BEEMNES
Capital injection from a IR E
non-controlling interest
Net cash from financing activities MEREMEHESFH
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN ReERREESEYEM
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (RA) 358 110,331
Effect of foreign exchange rate (&R B &
changes
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—B—HWERERES
AT 1 JANUARY EEY 145,574
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RT-ZA=1+—HHNEBEER
AT 31 DECEMBER BEZEEY 29 252,209

2021

HK$'000
THETT

51,671

61,626
(23,102)

(18,000)
2,000

398

74,593

(22,941)

858

167,657

145,574
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B mRM

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ =S - +=-A=+—HILFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law as an exempted company with limited liability
on 18 May 2010. The address of its registered office is Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands and principal place of business is Suites 3501 &
3513-14, 35th Floor, Tower 6, The Gateway, Harbour City, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 22 to the

consolidated financial statements.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong
Kong Accounting Standards ("HKAS”); and Interpretations.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange
and with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies

adopted by the Group are disclosed in note 4.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting

periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

— AN
ARABRZZE-ZFRATN\ARER
AEEREREAMKIAEREER
2~ Al e H R % A b 4k & Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands * * &
EEMBBIRBEBNERDEEBHE
XA JE 5 6 BE351 3501 & 3513-14 F © K
NAIBROEBEBEXSMBR QA
(B3R ]) ER 7 o

ARFARERBRAT  EHEATN
EUEBHRGAMREN 22 -

R
RZEFAMBRRDBEEBGA

e ([BERETMAE ) EM2PAER
BV BHmEEN(EBMBREE
DGR FEMBREENBERE
MigmE R (BB BREER]) -
ARG EYN(EBEFEN] k2
B RERAWBHREANNT QMR PTE
Z EmRRIT £ R 1) &9 A 30 R 5
X RBBERAHERD (F622F) M WER
E o AEBRM  EEZ BRIV 4
B

BESMASERME THA LEE
RIEEY B HmEEN  RFEANAE
B AR ERERKAHERK
e tEAKEEHBENEXER
S HTR] MARIERT 2 ZE R P 5l BE A )
BESFTHEIEABRNTAEE
EREEFEMBRRARR - BERE
R RES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ =S -_—F+=-A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(@

()

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning
on or after 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Annual Improvements
Project

Annual Improvements to
HKFRS Standards 2018-2020

Amendments to Accounting
Guideline 5

Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combinations

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not applied any new standard, amendments
to standards and interpretation that have been issued but
are not yet effective for the financial year beginning 1
January 2022. The new standard, amendments to
standards and interpretation include the following which
may be relevant to the Group.

SRR RAT IS ST BB S R

Bl

(a)

(o)

FERFNE] R ERT BB I T s R

AEBCDERERATHEES
fhAg ((BREFMAE])) M
BFEMEREERETA » ZFE
AIABLRBUR A BmERME N =
T F A HSZRRARNF
JZ R 58 Bl A R

SR
%165 (£117%)

nE BERRE

B MR 2 S 50R
FA G5 BRIEAH - BTN
FIFEITA) 2K
BEMBREEL HAERZREL
EXBACHIES)

FEIERE “E-\FEZE-FRF
AREAVBRE LR
ZEEME
SiHESIEST  EREHAHNAMN
CHES) itk

AERERATEMBRELENOE
AIREAREEAFE SBEFER
BBRRARKRBER,RZFEAH
BRRABBELBEARE -

ERME R ARERZ FTA] REERT
BRUBHREER

ANEEWERAITMAEBEME®E
R-ZE-—F—H—BHRBHI K
FEAERWIER - EFT R -
ATRFAER - (EF] R A RLELAR
KEBEH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R MY Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ =S - +=-A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. BRWNFTE] USRI BB SRS 4
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) B (&)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (o) EBMERARER I REIERT
(Continued) BT ERE AR (&)

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

R Bz %
BB E R IEAEX

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
BEBEFENE IR (BEIAR) - Rk ERBEESLE

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
BB EUF IR (EBFIARN) — MERFERERBAE

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 —
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

ERGENB IR REBVBEREENEBRES 295 (BFTAR) —
IR EE

Amendments to HKAS 8 — Definition of Accounting Estimates

BFRGRERIE I (BRIAX) — BFtHEFT 2 ER

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Deferred Tax Related to Assets and
Liabilities Arising from a Single Transaction

BRI ERNE R (BTN - BESEXFELNEEN B EREBNRLEHRE

Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Lease Liability in a Sales and Leaseback
BBV BEHMEERF 65 (BFIA) — EROHEEAE

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

ERMBHREERE 105 REFBSHERE 285 (BFIA) —&RESE
EHBENRNAE X ENEELNERLE

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause

BEAREESH (ZZ_ZF) MBHRKET — B EREERIERD
EHERNERADHE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it

has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have G
a significant impact on the consolidated financial 2 o
statements.

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 225 IR B BRI R EFE AR A A

1 January 2024
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1 January 2024
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1 January 2023
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1 January 2023
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1 January 2023
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1 January 2024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

% AY

e B mRM

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ =S -_—F+=-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise
in the accounting policies below (e.g. investment properties and
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(@) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

;z = u+lB(ﬁ

b F R A M BRI IR IR IE SE A E I

e ETXHEABERAAFHAE (N

REMERRATFEFEZETERT
B)BRIN

REFE BB B HmEER 2 M BWE
RERAETEZEGHME  THEZER
EBREARNEEETEEX CBEPEL
55'“% FREEEIRFIE B 2 &
CRHFEEVBREABER KR
fﬁa‘f’ZﬁBﬂ% AP EES HEER o

REZSEENBRRGAMERACER
= E*B@Eﬁﬂﬁﬂ? °©

(@ #EIKE

RAERBRREBEARRLENE
REBET-_A=t—BLLZ¥#H
WK - MBRRDAKEHEES
EHEZER EAKERBE2MA
E%%%i%ﬁ¢ﬁ§kﬁ%$ﬁ/¥§ﬂ@
W WA BEHEERZENM
% ux}r@#&ﬂﬂ' B AEE‘%EJE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IRA

% AY

Eﬁﬁﬂ#ﬁ&% |§ﬁ nf

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ =S - +=-A=+—HILFE

4.

150

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. BEEEFBUR(E)
(a) Consolidation (Continued) @ #HEKRE((E)
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which MEA 7§T B ARERNH
control is transferred to the Group. They are de- BRRBARARTE o RERNIEHIRE L
consolidated from the date the control ceases. W HEBRTHEREAR -
The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results HEMBAR (CBRAREEHE
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i) EAT) 2BHDNEOEERER
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair FEERRZMB AR ZEMRE
value of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) KE 2 A FEEGARRRDIEZ
the Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary WEArEEFEEREZMEA
plus any remaining goodwill and any accumulated foreign RIE B Z AT ER TR B A RN R
currency translation reserve relating to that subsidiary. FHER FEERERCZ5E -
Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are SEARBIMZR S - e oRE
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the BRFE TN - BRIEFBHERS
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the REEFEEEREEZEE LR
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have B BRIAREHEBEITTAHENE -
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with WE AR Z ST BURE LS ER1E
the policies adopted by the Group. & - MR A AR E BN 2 IR
7§K °
Non-controlling interests represent the equity in AR R IR W I A s B RS
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the RART 2B A A o FEER
Company. Non-controlling interests are presented in the EE“ %—?éﬁﬁkﬂkﬂ%&”/\ﬁé i
consolidated statement of financial position and ~ # BER ANV - NiREER
consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity. xR BR REM 2 E KK
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated A FEERERZENEFE m R
statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of EE R 2R R B RREIEIE R R
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an HARNFEEAZHEHSE o
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between the non-controlling shareholders and
owners of the Company.
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive v M) SR RS 18 N EoAth 2 T U a4 K
income are attributed to owners of the Company and to HnEBRARRES ARIEER
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the R - B BT RE R AR D
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. AL o
Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥R 35 BIFX B BRI EE B AR A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ =S -_—F+=-A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(@) Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions with
owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly

in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
loss, unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for

sale).

(b) Business combination (other than under common control)

and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and any
contingent consideration. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which the costs
are incurred and the services are received. Identifiable
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are

measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as
goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the sum
of the consideration transferred is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase

which is attributed to the Group.

4.

EZgtBRE)

(a)

(b)

maike (&)

ARBRKBAR 2 A ERmEZ
) (T SEEREIEHIE) A%
B2 HARBNEEFA CAREZ
BEANGN)ETRS) - ER I
s 2 REEL A EARBRE
Rz B AR EREER 2 28 - 3F
EhEREAEzeREDSHHD
WREQNFEz Az EAZEER
BN ESEANERL FBN AR R
BA-

RARBZHBARARS - KB
DA 2 B KN RO 1B B 18 5
R EREDBEATIEHE (G
ADBRFBEHE 2 EAR) A
BRI o

X Aot (KREHERN) R

REBERAUYIEEREE G HHF IR
BHEBARNER REHAMHKEE
ENRETIRFIEEEN Y B
Z AR - I T s TR KA
EEZBEAREMBARERT
B WERBKANBRRANELE
R RS AR R R B R ST - MUK
BEHBARZABNEERA
& GIRERWE B8z A FER

=
5= °

rEEREBLAEERENEBR
AR RBIEER BB AFEFE
ZEBTIIERE - ZRAAKED
HAIBEBIEERBBEZ AFEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ =S - +=-A=+—HILFE

4.

152

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Business combination (other than under common control)

and goodwill (Continued)

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the consideration
transferred in a business combination to calculate the

goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s

identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill
impairment reviews are undertaken annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU
containing the goodwill is compared to its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair
value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently

reversed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

©

Foreign currency translation

®

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at the
end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value
in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or 1oss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, EEBEIBHER(E)
(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued) (c) HNEEBE (4E)
(iii) Translation on consolidation (i) HZEREBBRE

The results and financial position of all the Group EAKEMEERZRE

entities that have a functional currency different from BEARNR 2 2HEENE

the Company’s presentation currency are translated B EEB RV TR

into the Company’s presentation currency as follows: THFRBRERBARAZE

HIEHE

—  Assets and liabilities for each statement of - REUBFRAREIZ
financial position presented are translated at BENEBERZVBER
the closing rate at the date of that statement of LR B HR Z W B R
financial position:; &

— Income and expenses are translated at average - WARFEZhEBERF
exchange rates for the period (unless this HfE KB E (K IEITE
average is not a reasonable approximation of FHEW A
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on AR 5 B ER 2 i A TE
the transaction dates, in which case income and R 2Fr2 - ElbB
expenses are translated at the exchange rates ST WA KR BI%
on the transaction dates): and RSGBEZERHHA)

)5

— All resulting exchange differences are FrEREEmMEEZER
recognised in other comprehensive income and EBRIRNEMEERE
accumulated in the foreign currency translation R AELFEZR
reserve. i e

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from NMEARBEE - ABREEK

the translation of monetary items that form part of MBI ERILEFENE

the net investment in foreign entities are recognised BMEBEEBEEAZENZENE

in other comprehensive income and accumulated in @%ﬁuﬁl%ﬁ%&ﬁ’\‘ﬁ)‘%ﬁ%

the foreign currency translation reserve. When a HBEREF - EHEBINET

foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences B ZEEHERNGREIE

are reclassified to consolidated profit or loss as part EAEHOEALEREK

of the gain or loss on disposal. EiEz—5

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the AW GINEREMEEZH

acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets BLNANFERAE  HREZ

and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at BINEBERBCZEEREBE I

the closing rate. BRI THIERBE o
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation

and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the

period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line

basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements

Plant, machinery, moulds and tools

Furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,

and is recognised in profit or loss.

Over the lease term
or 20%-25%
10%-50%

10%-20%
18%-331/:%
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited & o5 5 & &=

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
that use.

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-
lease component(s), the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less. The
lease payments associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, EEBEIHER(E)
(e) Leases (Continued) (e) HME(E)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBEREBA (E)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, and
any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost
of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
except for the right-of-use assets that meet the definition
of investment property are carried at fair value.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets
at the end of the lease term are depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-
of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. BEREABRE)

(e) Leases (Continued) (e) HME(E)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a
lease that is not originally provided for in the lease contract
(“lease modification”) that is not accounted for as a
separate lease. In this case the lease liability is remeasured
based on the revised lease payments and lease term using
a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification. The only exceptions are any rent concessions
which arose as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and which satisfied the conditions set out in
paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16. In such cases, the group took
advantage of the practical expedient set out in paragraph
46A of HKFRS 16 and recognised the change in
consideration as if it were not a lease modification.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If
this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating
lease.

Intangible assets acquired separately

(i) Intangible assets with defined useful lives —
customer relationship

Customer relationship are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Customer relationship 3-6 years
Computer software 3years
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, BEEFBER(E)
() Intangible assets acquired separately (Continued) H  [ERNENEREE (B)
(ii) Intangible assets with defined useful lives — (i) EERUFEAFTFHNERE
exclusive agency rights for real estate projects E-RHEEENBERRE
&

The exclusive agency rights represent exclusive right
to sell certain properties in Thailand within agreed

agency periods:

Exclusive agency rights

BRAERE

BROCEERERHEMNRIE
HANERBEHEETYEN

BISAER -

Agency Period
RIEEH

Number of units

BEuHE

Level Condominium
("EAR-1")

Level Condominium

(BxRREE-1])

LA VIE ("EAR-2")

LAVIE(BRRERE-2])

The exclusive agency rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

The initial cost includes payments made to project
owner or property developer for the acquisition of

exclusive agency rights.

from 1 January 2020 to 17 March 2021,
and further extended from 17 March
2021 to 30 November 2025

R-BE_ZF-—A—-HE_Z_—%F
=A++R RE—FH-_T_—F
“At+tHEREZZE-_RAF
+—A=+H

from 18 August 2020 to 24 November 2021
and further extended from 24 November
2021 to 24 May 2023

RZZE_ZFNAT+N\BEZT=-—F
T—RAZTImABE - RE—FH
T F+—-AF+WHHEERZRE
—E=FRAZ+MA

VIR A B SES
BT TREMEEX

228 apartments
(both furnished and
without decoration)
228ENE
(BHRAHTEEE)

77 villas planned to be
constructed

FEIZERE 77 1R B2

BER AR RIRA AR R 5T 8
R ERRYIRK -

BRAR

WEFREREARIA

Annual Report %k 2022 159



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R MY Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ =S - +=-A=+—HILFE

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, BEESFBER(E)
() Intangible assets acquired separately (Continued) H [ERNENEREE (B)
(ii) Intangible assets with defined useful lives — (i) EERUEAFHNERLE

exclusive agency rights for real estate projects
(Continued)

The amortisation of exclusive agency rights is
calculated by the number of units sold during the
period over the total number of units granted, after
taking into consideration of any residual value. The
residual value of exclusive agency right is the
estimated amount that the Group would currently
obtain from disposal of the asset, after deducting the
estimated costs of disposal, if the assets were already
of the age and in the condition expected at the end
of its useful life.

At each financial reporting period end, the
management will review the forecast of units sold
over the remaining agency period and the estimation
of residual value, and consider whether it is necessary
to adjust the amortised cost shared by each unit.

Intangible assets with defined useful lives —
agency right for testing and measuring equipments
products (“EAR-3")

The agency rights represented (i) exclusive agency
right to distribute a list of testing and measuring
equipments products (the “Products”) and the right
for after-sale service in Hong Kong SAR and in Macau
SAR; and (ii) non-exclusive agency right to distribute
the Products and the right for after-sale service in the
regions of Asia outside the mainland China, except
Hong Kong SAR and Macau SAR, within agreed
agency periods from the date of acquisition to 6
December 2031.

The exclusive agency rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

The initial cost includes payments made to an
assignor for the acquisition of the agency right.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. An internally
generated intangible asset arising from the Group’s
product development activity is recognised only if all of the
following conditions are met:

—  The technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

— Management intends to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

—  There is ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

— It can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will
generate probable future economic benefits;

—  Adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset are available;

—  The expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.

Internally generated intangible assets are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Where no internally generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h

®

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited & o5 5 & &=

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out basis. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of all production overhead expenditure, and
where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ =S -_—F+=-A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
(Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets are measured
subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial
assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, EEBEIHER(E)
()  Financial assets (Continued) G E=BMEEE)

Debt investments BEERE

Debt investments held by the Group are classified into one AEERENERRESERIAT

of the following measurement categories: HEh—Ezr=25
amortised cost, if the investment is held for the BEKRA - MIEERENE
collection of contractual cash flows which represent NAWIRELHRERE - B
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest MEABERA S RF BN
income from the investment is calculated using the Ko WERRBMNEWATIE
effective interest method. RAERFEEFTH -
FVTOCI — recycling, if the contractual cash flows of BAFEAEME2E RS
the investment comprise solely payments of principal — A8 - WIRERNE R
and interest and the investment is held within a EREEBRBREAS KT BN
business model whose objective is achieved by both FBRENREEMNAER
the collection of contractual cash flows and sale. HIREHNReRELTE
Changes in fair value are recognised in other MEFEXFE - 2 TFEE
comprehensive income, except for the recognition in FRHEMEE KRR - M
profit or loss of ECL, interest income (calculated TEEAEEE1E - FIE WA (fE
using the effective interest method) and foreign ﬁﬁ,\ AFRSERTE ) KB H Uk
exchange gains and losses. When the investment is HEREEIRERER &
derecognised, the amount accumulated in other WEWKIETER  REME
comprehensive income is recycled from equity to M BT EBURERS
profit or loss. EEEE o
FVTPL if the investment does not meet the criteria EAFEFABZE  MEE
for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI TRERBHEHN AT EH L
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the NFEFAEMEEWY S (7]
investment (including interest) are recognised in 2)88) WIZE - KEMNRFE
profit or loss. SB(RIEN L) N BEER
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
()  Financial assets (Continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the investment at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where
such an election is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of. At the
time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained earnings.
It is not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit

or loss as other income.

(k)  Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount

is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective

interest method less allowance for credit losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. BEEFBUR(E)

() Cash and cash equivalents O ReRBZEEY
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on RELRSEEYORFRITRTFE
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial BRe - RIT R EM S B 2 & 5
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that FRAREHERBESHNIRE -
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and MRS Y=o ¢
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in ZHEe BEEZ2INERSEAERL
value, having been within three months of maturity at BARDHIHENBEB=EA -
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for iﬁi&iﬁ/\”{ﬂ% FLIEHREESE
ECL. HEATEE o

(m) Non-current assets held for sale m) BEREZIERDEE
Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as held EREEENHEARARMEERE
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered DRBHERZMIEBBIFEMS
principally through a sale transaction rather than through TR - BIDBEABAELE -
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only 1%*“&1’%7%1%7,1&%?&&&
when the sale is highly probable and the asset or disposal 45 Be S IR AR BN H S W15
group is available for immediate sale in its present T ARABFEEAN - ZJSEE/A
condition. The Group must be committed to the sale, which BMALE  AEAARESERH
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a B —FARNEERERETHNEE
completed sale within one year from the date of TR °
classification.
Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held for DEABELNENIERBEEND
sale are measured at the lower of the asset’s or disposal EHRIEEES L EHARISRIRE
group’s previous carrying amount and fair value less costs EHEAFERESMA CRIEEE
to sell. go
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

()

(@

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings and bonds payable

Borrowings and bonds payable are recognised initially at
fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings and bonds payable are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
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4.

168

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. BEEEFBUR(E)
() Revenue and other income n  WAREAMBA

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or Lo AT 22 om 38 AR 745 B0 458 il i b A &2
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of EEHERENNABRESSE
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to (TEERREBEZAFWENERE)E
be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of BERPRKER - WATRIEILE
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other M EMEER @ WEHREMNE
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts. S EIE

(i) Revenue from the sale of electronic products and (i) REEFERMBERMHEH
medical equipment are recognised when control of EHWATIRE fh 2 6l e
the goods has transferred, being when the goods B (AEREERTPIETEH
have been shipped to the customer’s specific location ()RR e R
(delivery). Following delivery, the customer has full B BEAE2ERNBRTE
discretion over the channel and price to sell the oo B H & 1S R B - WA
goods, has the primary responsibility when on selling EEEERMNIEEELY
the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and mELREBERINERR &
loss in relation to the goods. A receivable is BERNERRNEEFEER
recognised by the Group when the goods are FEWFRIE - R AR IR K
delivered to the customer as this represents the point BAREBEFKAEKREN—
in time at which the right to consideration becomes & B fE B - IR EIER AT R
unconditional, as only the passage of time is required AFREBL -
before payment is due.

(i The real estate supply chain services operation (i) REEHEZRMRSE LEH
provides two type of services, the real estate advisory EEBEREMEREN R
service and real estate purchase service. The real EfEERGEBEEK
estate advisory service provides the customer with A BHEZBARK AR
real estate investment advice and help them to REEHERESRITED
source investment opportunities in South East Asia BPYEERMm Mziem
and Pan Asia markets. Real estate purchase service LHWRE#KE FEHERE
provides services for obtaining the legal title of real RGRERTEFESEHE
estate investment on behalf of customer. The KREETCERNRE - BP
customer will negotiate the price of the two services g-—HETWMERENE
together, and the customer usually pay a lump sum B BBE-RAEEZNAEE
fee that represents the sum of the consideration of RAERERESENEE
the two services. B -
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, BEESFBER(E)
() Revenue and other income (Continued) " WAREMBA(E)
(i (Continued) Gy (%)

Real estate advisory service and real estate purchase
service are two distinct performance obligations. The
transaction price is allocated to each performance
obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price basis
estimated using the expected cost plus a margin
approach.

The Group recognises revenue from real estate
advisory service and real estate purchase service at a
point in time upon completion of each service.

According to the related terms of real estate
purchase services, the Group has contracted to
arrange delivery and transfer of legal title to the
customers within a period specified in the service
agreement. If the Group fails to fulfil the obligation on
time, the customer has the unilateral right to cancel
the contract, and recover all the payments made to
the Group, together with the interest determined
based on the formula specified in the service
agreement.

The Group recognises revenue from real estate
advisory service only to the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative
amount of revenue recognised to date will not occur
should the legal title to the subject real estate not be
transferred to the customer within the timeframe
specified in the service agreement.

Management fee, consultancy fee and commission
are recognised when the services are rendered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)  Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost, the effective interest
rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment are
established.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset.

(s) Employee benefits

M

(i)

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 225 IR B BRI R EFE AR A A

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(s) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits, and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the

payment of termination benefits.

(t) Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to

certain directors and employees.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at the fair value (excluding the
effect of non-market based vesting conditions) of the
equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non-

market based vesting conditions.

(u) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Borrowing costs (Continued)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining
a qualifying asset. Any specific borrowing that remain
outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended
use or sale is included in the general borrowing pool for

calculation of capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they are incurred.

(v) Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions

attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them

with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint arrangements, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Taxation (Continued)

174

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited & o5 5 & &=

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to
be recovered through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model of the Group whose business objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred
tax for such investment properties are measured based on
the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. BEREABRE)

(w) Taxation (Continued) (w) THIHE(E)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of
the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(X) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and
where an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.
If this is the case, recoverable amount is determined for the
CGU to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of

disposal of the individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are computed
using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset/CGU whose

impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against the
goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the other
assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the recoverable
amount caused by changes in estimates are credited to
profit or loss to the extent that they reverse the impairment
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as

a revaluation increase.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
investments in debt instruments that are measured at
amortised cost or at FVTOCI, trade receivables and loans
to other parties, as well as on financial guarantee contracts.
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit
risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, EEBEIHER(E)
(y) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (y) S@EEREE)

Significant increase in credit risk GO R

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial REEeR TANEERR B ¥A

instrument has increased significantly since initial R LK ZED NIBIEMNE - RNEE

recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default R REA e T AEARE

occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date LR EN ISR B e

with the risk of a default occurring on the financial TEBAEANRR - REHILE

instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making this Hh REEEEBAIENA Y

assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and MEENTEHEER  BEBTER

qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, REWENNBERAKEZ N TAE

including historical experience and forward-looking RIRTIEMEE R - FTE BRI ATEE

information that is available without undue cost or effort. ERBERELEEERNBRE - &

Forward-looking information considered includes the BT - BUNHERE - BEEEE X

future prospects of the industries in which the Group’s Hafa L B 8ES Eﬁﬁfaﬁﬁlﬁ

debtors operate, obtained from economic expert reports, AN EFTIEITHER AR R A=

financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think- &Eﬁil’iﬁlﬁ%u%f&ﬁ%m,ﬁ%&

tanks and other similar organisations, as well as TERIACE B R B BN E RRR

consideration of various external sources of actual and EERRZE o

forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s

core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account LHR @ B VIAERARE

when assessing whether credit risk has increased ERBELEEL I g8

significantly since initial recognition: TER

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the - BT EAEMINB(UHATER)
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal jZ NIz BT BB o T B
credit rating; FRZREE =

—  significant deterioration in external market indicators - HErEetmIAEERBS
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument; ERTHIZIEIZ AR AR =

—  existing or forecast adverse changes in business, — JEHIBEREBABITEE
financial or economic conditions that are expected to BETMENRE TR
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to % MBS ERRNIRE
meet its debt obligations: S FERI T 8

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the - EBRANEEEEERNIE
operating results of the debtor; HRRRAREE =

—  significant increases in credit risk on other financial - HRAEBEANEMeRHITA
instruments of the same debtor: F{EERRABZEIEM

— an actual or expected significant adverse change in - HBREBKABRTHEBEC
the regulatory, economic, or technological RIBE DRREE TR MBS A BS
environment of the debtor that results in a significant & ,Z%/?iﬁz&?ﬁfﬁiﬁﬁ’lﬁ %
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt S FEHAE KA F &
obligations.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i)  the financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit
risk when the asset has external credit rating of
“investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of “performing”.
Performing means that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there is no past due amounts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, BEESFBER(E)
(y) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (y) S@mEEREE)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) EER M AIFEE M (E)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group RUBERELHME @ pelEE R

becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment is TEREMS  AEBKAETATH

considered to be the date of initial recognition for the AR 2 B AR HERE

purposes of assessing the financial instrument for B REHEEER R B M EERE

impairment. In assessing whether there has been a KVNATER AR S B ARIE 0 -

significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition AEESEEETESAELNRE

of a financial guarantee contract, the Group considers the B F

changes in the risk that the specified debtor will default on

the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the REBETHERAUENEER

criteria used to identify whether there has been a Eﬁ'ﬁ%iﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁT?LﬁE’ﬂﬁxﬁ\E'

significant increase in credit risk and revises them as jﬁ@’]’IEV‘ETL‘M?E{%E%?EE%%@E?X

appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of TH i HR A % 5 s B R KR EF o

identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.

Definition of default EBYNESR

The Group considers the following as constituting an event HRBELRERARE TIIEER

of default for internal credit risk management purposes as FEWERIE AT R E - AEER

historical experience indicates that receivables that meet AR EERREEMS © T3

either of the following criteria are generally not IS RBELIEM -

recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial covenants by the - WRPEFERSBEALN:
counterparty; or sk

— information developed internally or obtained from —  REEK BN RIRES
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely KB R R BB E AT KA 88
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full MEEEA(BREAREE)E
(without taking into account any collaterals held by HER (R R AEEFEEN
the Group). KR R) ©

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that Eim LMD E RN - NEER

default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 RiuesmEEMEBROKX Al

days past due unless the Group has reasonable and BABENEMN  BRIEAEEBREH

supportable information to demonstrate that a more AEERNENZEREREENEG

lagging default criterion is more appropriate. BRI SEE R RIERIGS -
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(y) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes

observable data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

—  the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)

would not otherwise consider;

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for that

financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or
in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over
two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. Any

recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(y) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date;
for financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the
amount drawn down as at the reporting date, together
with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down
in the future by default date determined based on historical
trend, the Group’s understanding of the specific future
financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-

looking information.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the

original effective interest rate.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is required
to make payments only in the event of a default by the
debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument that
is guaranteed, the expected loss allowance is the expected
payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it
incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to receive

from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the
previous reporting period, but determines at the current
reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting
date, except for assets for which simplified approach was

used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or 10ss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss

allowance account.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@

(aa)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

When it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the
higher of:

—  the amount determined in accordance with the ECL
model under HKFRS 9; and

— the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of
HKFRS 15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based
on the present value of the difference in cash flows
between the contractual payments required under the
debt instrument and the payments that would be required
without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would
be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.
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184

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(ab) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events
after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

®

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited & o5 5 & &=

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements (apart from those
involving estimates, which are dealt with below).

(a) Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 4(y), ECL are measured as an
allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets,
or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset
moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does
not define what constitutes a significant increase in
credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an
asset has significantly increased the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and
supportable forward looking information.
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5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(i)  Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

(Continued)

(b) Determining the lease term

In determining the lease term at the commencement
date for leases that include renewal options
exercisable by the Group, the Group evaluates the
likelihood of exercising the renewal options taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive for the Group to
exercise the option, including favourable terms,
leasehold improvements undertaken and the
importance of that underlying asset to the Group’s
operation.

Generally, periods covered by an extension option in
other properties leases have not been included in the
lease liability because the Group could replace the
assets without significant cost or business disruption.
Further information is set out in note 20.

The lease term is reassessed when there is a
significant event or significant change in
circumstance that is within the Group’s control.
During the current financial year, no lease term has
been reassessed.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed

below.

(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and

right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining
whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to
exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or
any indicators that may affect the asset value; (2)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of
value in use, the net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow projections
and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the assets belong. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the
discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present

value used in the impairment test.

The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as at 31 December
2022 was approximately HK$21,058,000 (2021:
HK$29,636,000) and HK$33,240,000 (2021:

HK$54,466,000) respectively.
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5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(b) Impairment of exclusive agency rights EAR-1

The Group paid HK$25,000,000 to a company
("BXG”) in 2019 as prepayment and has reclassified
that prepayment as intangible assets in 2020, which
represents exclusive agency rights (“EAR=-1") for
certain number of apartments (both furnished and

without decoration).

On 1 December 2022, BXG further extended the
appointment of the Group as its exclusive agent to

30 November 2025.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, in view of
impairment indicators, the Group performed
impairment assessment on the carrying amount of
EAR-1. The recoverable amount represented its value
in use determined based on discounted cashflow
forecast prepared by the management of the Group.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including
the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the recoverable

amounts.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, an impairment
loss of approximately HK$3,615,000 was recognised

in profit or loss (2021: nil).
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(c) Amortisation of exclusive agency rights EAR-1 and

EAR-2

The Group determines the amortisation of exclusive
agency rights EAR-1T and EAR-2 based on the
allocation of costs corresponds to the actual number
of units sold during the reporting period over the
total number of units with exclusive agency rights
granted under EAR-1 and EAR-2, respectively. The
Group considered this method is more appropriate to
reflect the usage of the exclusive agency rights as the
customers demand varies from period to period.

Due to the pandemic, the term of exclusive agency
rights EAR-1 were extended and revised and the
economic effects of the pandemic could materially
affects sales forecast. At each financial reporting
period end, management will review the forecast of
the number of units that can be sold before the
expiry of exclusive agency rights, and the estimation
of residual value. Any changes to the forecast may
result in changes in the unit amount of amortisation.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, nil (2021:
approximately HK$543,000) was recognised as
amortisation of exclusive agency right EAR-1in profit

or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no (2021 nil)
amortisation of exclusive agency right EAR-2 was

recognised in profit or loss.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d)

Impairment of exclusive agency rights EAR-2

On 18 August 2020, the Group acquired the exclusive
agency rights (‘EAR-2") (note 21) from
Ratchaphruek Global Group Co., Ltd. (“Vendor”) for
the rights to sell 77 villa units (“Target Properties”)
planned to be constructed under a project (“Project”)
of a developer company (“Developer”). The Group
has the rights to sell the Target Properties for a
remaining term of not less than 12 months from 18
August 2020, and may be extended by another 6
months upon expiration.

On 17 May 2022, the Developer further extended the
appointment of the Group as its exclusive agent to 24
May 2023.

The EAR-2’s carrying amount at 31 December 2022
and 2021 was assessed by management for
impairment and no impairment loss is made. The
recoverable amount of the EAR-2 represents the
higher of the value in use, which depends on the
future economic benefit the EAR-2, and the fair value
less cost of disposal, which is at least equal to the
unamortised amount of EAR-2, since the Developer
promised to transfer to the Group properties of
equivalent amount at the expiration of the exclusive
agency agreement, regardless of the number of
Target Properties sold. The expected future economic
benefits of EAR-2 are dependent on many factors
including whether it is probable that the Developer
can obtain the construction permit for the Project. In
light of the foregoing uncertainty, the management
of the Group will review the sales forecast of the
underlying Project to determine whether any further
impairment on EAR-2 should be made at the end of
every reporting periods.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(i)

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 28 25 B[R 55

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of exclusive agency rights EAR-2
(Continued)

Upon termination or expiration of EAR-2, the Group
would receive the same amount of remaining
consideration from the Developer in terms of the villa
units based on their market value. In the view that
their fair value will not be lower than the carrying
amount of EAR-2, therefore, no impairment loss was
recognised as at 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

Impairment of agency rights EAR-3

The Group settled HK$37,800,000 by the allotment
and issue of 230,000,000 shares of the Company to
a scientific instruments manufacturer (the
“Assignor”) in 2022 for an intangible asset, which
represents (i) the exclusive agency right to distribute
the Products and the right for after-sale service in
Hong Kong SAR and in Macau SAR; and (ii) the non-
exclusive agency right to distribute the Products and
the right for after-sale service in the regions of Asia
outside the mainland China, except Hong Kong SAR
and Macau SAR ("EAR-3").

As at 31 December 2022, in view of impairment
indicators, the Group performed impairment
assessment on the carrying amount of EAR-3. The
recoverable amount represented its value in use
determined based on discounted cashflow forecast
prepared by the management of the Group. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the
discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the recoverable
amounts. For the year ended 31 December 2022, no
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss (2021:
nil).
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5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(f) Impairment of trade receivables, other receivables,

and loans to other parties

The management of the Group estimates the amount
of impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables, other
receivables, and loans to other parties based on their
credit risk. The amount of the impairment loss based
on ECL model is measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition. Where the future cash flows are less than
expected, or being revised downward due to changes
in facts and circumstances, further impairment loss

could be necessary.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of
trade receivables was approximately HK$115,354,000
(net of allowance for trade receivables of
approximately HK$826,000) (2021: HK$162,232,000
(net of allowance for trade receivables of

approximately HK$220,000)).

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of
other receivables was approximately HK$57,024,000
(net of allowance for other receivables of
approximately HK$5,971,000) (2021: HK$62,923,000
(net of allowance for other receivables of

approximately HK$1,765,000).
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(f) Impairment of trade receivables, other receivables,

and loans to other parties (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of
loans to other parties was approximately
HK$8,032,000 (net of allowance for loans to other
parties of approximately HK$43,231,000) (2021:
HK$9,388,000 (net of allowance for loans to other

parties of approximately HK$39,113,000)).

(g) Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made
based on the ageing and estimated net realisable
value of inventories. The assessment of the allowance
amount involves judgement and estimates. Where
the actual outcome in future is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of inventories and allowance charge/
write-back in the period in which such estimate has

been changed.

As at 31 December 2022, accumulated allowance for
slow-moving inventories was approximately

HK$16,944,000 (2021: HK$18,911,000).
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5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(h) Product warranty provisions

Product warranty provisions of the Group is
recognised based on past experience of level of
repairs and returns, discounted to their present value
as appropriate. Movement of the product warranty
provisions during the year is set out in note 35 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The carrying amount of product warranty provisions
as at 31 December 2022 was approximately

HK$1,207,000 (2021: HK$3,584,000).

() Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted is estimated
by independent professional valuer based on the
various assumptions on volatility, life of options,
dividend paid out rate and annual risk-free interest
rate, excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions, which generally represent the best
estimate of the fair value of the share options at the

date of grant.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, approximately
HK$4,713,000 (2021: HK$4,576,000) recognised in
profit or loss and correspondingly to share option

reserve.
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194

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(@) Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as
most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in the functional currencies of the
Group entities. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group’s loss for the year and equity that would have
been arisen if foreign exchange rates to which the Group
has significant exposure at the end of reporting period had
changed at that day, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant.
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Foreign
currency Increase/
strengthened/  (decrease) in
(weakened) consolidated
by loss after tax
BB 2
SNEFHE REER
(B2fE) #m Om2)
HK$000
FABT

Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-—_ZF—_—=%
t=A=t+-BLEE

Renminbi (“RMB”) ARE (AR

Year ended 31 December 2021 HE_ZE_—_—%

TZA=T—HIFE

Renminbi (“‘RMB”) ARE(TAR®E])

5%/(5%)  2,038/(2038)

5%/(5%) 745/(745)
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

®)

©

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly through
its investments in equity securities at FVTPL. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk and return
profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity securities quoted on the Stock
Exchange.

The management of the Group considers that the exposure
to the Group arising from equity price risk is limited and no
sensitivity analysis is therefore prepared.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities (including trade
receivables and loans to other parties) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks and
financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and
other financial instruments.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents is limited because the counterparties are
banks and financial institutions with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies, for which
the Group considers to have low credit risk.
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AEBEEEERRAEEFE G
BABREREAR - EiL I #
EITEREDT

EERR

EERBRDARZHFELBRTE
BT AT A #E MEKM 52
TREENER - AEBEELE
AE (BN E 5 8RR R A E A
ALTRENER) REREREES
(BRBRITAEMCEREB 27
FNEXRZREMERETE) M
EZEERR

BN R ZHF REBREEF RS
ETrsrRERMKEARERSE
BERBREZRITREREE - R
SEEZRERRSESEMIIRZ
EERBRAR -
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Far the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HBRRER(E)

(¢) Credit risk (Continued) (© E=ERE(E)
Trade receivables EWE SRR
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit BEBETEAEBEMERANRER
subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures and FEERREEMBE «  BF REZE
control relating to customer credit risk management. BBET EREFPEERR -G
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all BEAETEESENRFRFBEET
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These EREEFE - ZEFEEFTRE
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making PRI A SR e 8 IR R 1
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take e WEBEEFPHEERNER
into account information specific to the customer as well as REFEBEMELERENERE
pertaining to the economic environment in which the o BIE SRR EH R
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within 30- 0ENORAEE - EEmEI=
120 days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances EANEMEBABEEBRBRE
that are more than 3 months past due are requested to BESHBEREMNER - —%&
settle all outstanding balances before any further credit is ME ' AEBETEEREFREUL
granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral e

from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables REEZBEEREHEREESE
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated MSRETERINE ZEANEER
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit % BEEBEEBESEFERRE
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss HEMEETE - AR ASEERNBEE
patterns for different customer segments, the loss EEELRYERNTRES DI
allowance based on past due status is not further MEBEBEAGFEEARER - WAS
distinguished between the Group’s different customer B fEE— TSRO HETREF AR
bases. 2 [ E HAAR L TE S 1R R 1 -
The following table provides information about the Group’s TR EBAFA KRR =T ==

exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at T+ A=+—BHEENEERR KL
31 December 2022: EWESERTEBREEBEENE

#

2022
—=E——
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHIEEEX RELE EERE
% HK$°000 HK$°000

TFHET FExT
Current (not past due) BNHA (R HA) 0.32% 102,895 332
1-90 days past due #H1E90H 2.57% 10,981 282
91-180 days past due #HNE180H 8.88% 1,536 136

More than 180 days past due BEIS0 B A £ 9.83% 768 76

116,180 826
Credit-impaired (note) EERIE (K1) _ ¥

116,180
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ =S -_—F+=-A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HUEEKREE(E)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) © =ERRE)
Trade receivables (Continued) EWE SRR (&)
2021
T
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance

BHEERE REAE BERRE
% HK$000  HK$'000
TAET TAET

Current (not past due) BNHA (R HA) 0.06% 145,071 94
1-90 days past due #E1Z90H 0.57% 15,427 88
91-180 days past due #HI1 =180 H 0.78% 128 1
More than 180 days past due #H180 HIA + 2.03% 1,826 37

162,452 220
Credit-impaired (note) EERE ) - - -

162,452 220

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

Note: For trade receivables relating to accounts which have known insolvency,
they are assessed individually for impairment allowance in order to
determine credit-impaired.

The Group has certain concentration of credit risk, as the
Group’s largest three debtors account for 73.1% (2021:
71.6%) of trade receivables as at 31 December 2022.

EMERETERBE=FNERE
BRERAE - ZFHLEREBER
FW SRR LB R - EATIOR
RAEER A RYGIRE F 6
RN 2 P R B 2 R AETT 38

B o
=

BisE: SRELAME LGRS BN R 5B R
T SRREREETERFG - UE
EEERE -

AEEAZETEESETRR -

BERERAEE=ZKEBH AN

—E-_F+-RA=1+—HWEYK

BHERBIIN% (T Z—F:

71.6%) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R MY Rt

Far the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HUEEKREE(E)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) © =ERRE)
Trade receivables (Continued) EWE SRR (&)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade FA - REKE ZERHERER

198
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receivables during the year is as follows:

ZET

2022 2021

—=E=-= —E-—F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FBT FET

At 1 January nw—A—H 220 3,811
Impairment losses recognised FNIER R ERE

for the year 58

Amounts written off WiH R (2,626)

Reversal of allowance BER D (1,023)

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—~8” 220

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

All financial assets measured at amortised cost other than
loans to certain other parties and certain other receivables
are considered to have low credit risk, and the loss
allowance recognised during the period was therefore
limited to 12-month expected losses. For loan to certain
other parties and certain other receivables, lifetime
expected losses were recognised if credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition or if they are credit-
impaired.

BRERATENEMEE

AEBILEHKATENME SR
BE(AFEEMALTEREET
H o FE YR IR R 51 ) 348 B E B R
2AK - Bt - BAEERHEIRR
IR BIA+ @A BHIEE - 3L[A
REEMATEREE T EMEK
FRME @ WIEERERBMRTHER
LA B A 1 18 0 =k fist B 3R {5 BB
B AEBETEEIAZHERE

1B
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ =S -_—F+=-A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

©

Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

6. HBERE
© FEERR

2 (8E)

(&)

BRBHERATENTREE (H)

AEE 2z AEEE R R E RS

@

comprises the following categories: FELATHER
Trade receivables/ Other financial assets/
Internal credit rating  Description contract assets other items
ABEETR Fit ELERER AHNEE Httem&ER HiER
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does  Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
not have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
el RHSHFEORRE  TEEMBH PHEBEERE - TZEREHEESE
FR HJME
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but L|fet|me ECL— 12m ECL
usually settle in full not credit-impaired
BRERE EBARERERRETEE  TRF THEHEERE - TZEARREESE
—RBEE BEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk — Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
since initial recognition through information not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
developed internally or external resources
A&k BRNEEE 2 EHIIIREREM - PHREBEERE - HRREERE -
EERk B N ER A RAEE N BEERE BEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit- L|fet|me ECL— Lifetime ECL —
impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
B FEBBTZAECHREERE THEHEERE - P HEBEEEE -
EERE FERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written off Amount is written off
severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery
gz BREBBEREEAGREHN B - IR T AN IR T AN

TEEYEBEFEZBERE
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6.

200

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued)

©

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 3% op B BR B8

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL

assessment:
Internal ~ 12mor
Note credit rating lifetime ECL
I =
M EETR %Hﬁ?ﬂﬁ EER #
HK$000
TER
Financial assets at XM A B
amortised cost ~ MEREE
Deposits 21 Note(ii)  12m
MiEa  t=@A
Other receivables  E Az fElzA 27 Note(ii) 12m
WGy +=f@A
Stage 2 lifetime ECL
F_RB2HRH
BERE
Credit-impaired
25
Loanstoother — AEMATER
parties 28 Note(ii) ~ 12m 2,479
B KEG)  t=AA
Credit-impaired 48,784
SER
Amount due from  FEMRFEIZRRIE
non-controlling ~ #8
interest 27 Note(ii)  12m
7 MG t=@A
Amount due from a J?ELBZ LEEH
director NA _Note(ii) ~ 12m 536
) TER WG TR
Bank balances RTES 29 Note()  12m 247,622
9 WEO @R
Notes:
(i) Bank balances are deposited with financial institutions with high credit

@i

(D)

rating and are considered low credit risk financial assets. The
management considers these assets are short-term in nature and the
probability of default is negligible as they are banks with high-credit
ratings. Therefore, no impairment allowance is made on theses balances

For deposits and amount due from a director, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL. The Group applies internal credit risk
management to assess whether credit risks has increased significantly
since initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The credit risk on deposits and amount due from a director and limited
having considered the credit quality of the counterparties and the
probability of default is negligible. Therefore, no impairment allowance is
made on these balances.

For other receivables, loans to other parties and amounts due from non-
controlling interest, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m
ECL. The Group applies internal credit risk management to assess
whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. Except for other
receivables of HK$40,757,000 (2021: HK$nil) which are under stage 2
lifetime ECL, other receivables of HK$1,765,000 (2021: HK$1,765,000)
and for loans to other parties of HK$48,784,000 (2021: HK$47,124,000)
which are credit-impaired and ECL has been provided amounting of
HK$3,991,000 (2021: HK$nil), HK$1,765,000 (2021: HK$1,765,000) and
HK$43,178,000 (2021: HK$39,113,000), respectively, the credit risk on
remaining other receivables, loans to other parties and amounts due
from non-controlling interest are limited because the counterparties
have no historical default record and the ECL on these items are
considered insignificant.

6.

31 December 2022
Gross carrying amount

HK$000
TER

62,995

54,501

SEMBREEERA

(©

R %5 R
EEH

2B ()
(&)

BBERATENSREE (H)
TRAMIL THFRETEREES

[\ B2

Loss
allowance

ERRkfG
HK$'000
TR

ez -
®

(i)

(i)

BEFEOAREEREENREER

31 December 2021 Loss
Gross carrying amount allowance
ZBo-E{CR= -
RRLE BEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER B THr
32,117 -
62,923 -
1,765 64,688 1,765
1,377 -
47,124 48,501 39,113
142,382 -

B M%TWJE’(T#
LSRR ERE -

MiRe kK- REEFAMS @ AEE
}R$E#EA+1 E?}W*EEE?EZ%EE?

2 - LA.:HEE%J]?EE RARGEERRER
BESE - TUER T - AEERER L
BHEEER - ZEERSHF2EEHR
= RENME A REE - 2% RAEW—
REFRAZEERBER - Al WHE
RS REHEHRRE R -

BEMEYGRIE « [ EMA TERRER
SRR FIAM 5 - AEBREERN
T EAEREEEE A AR
o REERAABEERRELR - LART
HENFTEBUAREERR T EEERL
e ERERT - AKERER S HESE
BEE - RNE IR HITES DEEﬁa
) H b & YR 3K I8 40,757,000 T ( = &
Z—F:FTH) HMEKRR
1765000/ L (=& = — 4 1765000,%
7C) B le) E A+ B3R 48,784,000 T (=
T——E 4712400078 70) IMEERIEA
E\Juﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ &5 8 18 44 3,991,000
f‘im( : BT ~ 1765000
(= — F: 1765000/’571)
43178000,%71(_ T — — 4 : 39113000
BTN MR ZHT U EENOEL L
$EEMIER MEHEEBIERATA
ka8 T ALY ~ | H A AT ER
RN S IR EE R AR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ =S -_—F+=-A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

©

6. MBEEBREEGE)

Credit risk (Continued) © FERR(E)
Financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued) REBERATENSREE (F)
Movement in the loss allowance for financial assets FA - RBEEN AT ENESREE
measured at amortised cost during the year is as follows: EEEE BT
Other receivables Loans to other parties
HipEW A mEMEALER
Not credit Credit Credit
Not credit  impaired  impaired Notcredit  impaired
impaired  (Lifetime  (Lifetime  impaired  (Lifetime
(12m) ECL) ECL) (12m) ECL)
EEENE FERE ZERE
BEERE (2HRES (2UEH ECEHE (2HES
(tZfER) FEEFR) FEFR) (+=@A) EFEER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET FTET TET FET
At 1 January 2021 NZZ-_—%—f—H N N 18,165 - 23,735
Impairment losses recognised FREDRERE
for the year - - - - 19,037
Amounts written off e - - (14,600) - -
Reversal of allowance BERD - - (1,800) - (3,659)
At 31 December 2021 and R-ZE-—%
1 January 2022 +-A=+—-Hk
—E--_%—HF—H - - 1,765 - 39,113
Impairment losses recognised FRBAREEE
for the year 215 3,991 - 53 4,005
At 31 December 2022 i ——c
+-A=t+—"H 215 3991 1,765 53 43178

Certain cash deposits and investments at FVTPL

The Group has investment at FVTPL and certain cash
deposit placed in the margin accounts of brokerage firms.
The brokerage firms are subsidiaries of Hong Kong listed
companies hence the directors consider the credit-rating is
acceptable. The margin account enables the brokerage
firm to re-pledge the Group’s securities collateral (if any) in
the margin account and use it as collateral to secure
borrowings for the brokerage firm’s use. If the brokerage
firm becomes insolvent, the banks may liquidate the
securities collateral re-pledged to it by the brokerage firm
in order to discharge the brokerage firm’s indebtedness. As
a result, the Group may not be able to recover all the
securities in the margin account. This is commonly known
as “pooling risk” associated with the margin account. As at
the end of reporting period, the Group is not exposed to
any pooling risk as the Group’s investment securities and
cash deposits held by the brokerage firms have not been
re-pledged.

ETHEEERRELFES AR
HERE

AEEBRERITRESRPFER
NHEFABERNRERETRE
K e RELITREABLTRAZ
MELR AHEZRAEFEE
MBRIER - RERPELLT
BEARZSHRPANEREZE S
Ef o (W) RIAZ VR AR
WEE - HERITER - WMERLT
EAEE  ROVERLLITAE
BEMAZEFERD  NENEL
TZMETS » Bt - AKE A gEEIX
WEFERRESRP ZMIARES
HEEFRERFAR FHIES
Bl RB|EHR AEBELE
mERETAEERR - REEREL
TARBASEREZ S RREFK
I 4 A

Annual Report %k 2022 201
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Far the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HUEEKREE(E)
(d) Liquidity risk (d) RBELRER

AEBHBR BT RERRR LA
HAORBDELFE - WBERAEE
R AR HBARNER LR
RN EHESTE -

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted AEESRBENEGLNMRRS
cash flows of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows: mE S H

=
BoMfmaT :

202

Weighted Less than
average 1year Between Between Total
interest and on land 2and Over  undiscounted
rate demand 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows
154
RS N¥ ¥ £33
jill; SEFES ZRE 122% 2E5% BBSE BEeRELH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TR T#x TR FHT
At31December2022 ~ RI-Z=Zf
T-A=1-A
Trade payables ERESER
Other payables EthEMTIE
Amount due to a director BN —ZEEZVE -
Lease liabilities fgakE 12,050
Borrowings e -
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-%
t2A=1-
Trade payables ﬁ‘a” ﬁ%ﬁ - 58,604 - - 58,694 58,694
Other payables HENZUE - 29,737 - - 29,737 29,737
Lease liabilities ?ﬁhﬁf 149 23,943 22,317 12,689 8,382 67,331 58,589
Borrowings EE - 614 - 614 614
Bonds payable NS 50 - 2,205 - 2,205 2,000
License rights payable ~ HFEFRIERH - 7,789 - - 7789 7,789
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HBRRER(E)
(e) Interest rate risk (e) FIZEE R
The Group’s loans to other parties, borrowings and bonds REBREMALTER EERE
payable bear interests at fixed interest rates and therefore NEHZEEFMEF L - B EEE
are subject to fair value interest rate risks. NEEFERR
The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its AE B FAK EIRITE R F R R
bank deposits. These deposits bear interests at variable R o REFFIRFEFEGE - F
rates varied with the then prevailing market condition. At RRERMRAME - RNZT==
31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the management +-A=F+-—Bhk -T2 -—F+—
of the Group considers that the exposure to the Group A=+—H X&£EEEERALX
arising from interest rate risk is limited and no sensitivity SEFEENERRZERRE
analysis is therefore prepared. B I B TRURE AT o
(f)  Categories of financial instruments at 31 December H RT+ZA=+—8HLBmTEER
y{\y¥i 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAETT
Financial assets: EMEE :
Financial assets measured HHERAGTENSREE
at amortised cost 459,103 412,234
Investments at FVTPL BAFEFABZNIEE - 1,229
Financial liabilities: EMEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost  IR#EEAR AT RN S B (E 126,387 157,423
(g) Fair values (@ =»¥E
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and REBRGEM B AR S F
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated BELSRHABENEFEFEOEEASZH
statement of financial position approximate their respective A ERE -
fair values.

Annual Report %k 2022 203



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%= H

sRe MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ =S - +=-A=+—HILFE

204

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The following
disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy
that categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
technigues used to measure fair value:

Level Tinputs:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the Group
can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs:  inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3inputs:  unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

ATEHE
AFEATHERE L MR EREA
P 32 57 15 2 7 15 ) o L A
%2 B AEBRAUFATES
SEBRBATFENE  ARARTE
AFEAEERTOBALHD =B

4

FIBBAER  AEERFERAR
BZzHEREEXAR
Z RIS HRE CRE

BE) -

F2BBAEH  R1EMBRZHEMN
Sh MEESKBER
ERSHEEEREGD
ZBANER -

EI/BAEN  BEXAMTIRE
ZHAER o

AEENBRESESHERENEELIS
MEHHARERESZAEENEA
K#Eh -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. AYEFE(E)
Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December; R+ _A=1+—BAFESHIEEHE
2022 —EC-CfF Fair value measurements using: Total

DNREFERANER et
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 2022
E1E E2E %3E —T=-Z
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHERT FTHERT FHERT

Recurring fair value EEMAVETE:
measurements:
Financial assets CREE
Investments at FVTPL BAFESABRNRE
— Equity securities listed — BB LT 2B
in Hong Kong (note 24) B (MiE24)
2021 —E--F Fair value measurements using: Total
REEFEMANER met
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2021
FE F2[E FIE —T-—F
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHT FHET
Recurring fair value EEMATEFE
measurements:
Financial assets CREE
Investments at FVTPL BATESTABRNERE
— Equity securities listed —REB LT ZRAE
in Hong Kong (note 24) E (Hret24) 1,229 - - 1,229
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206

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has five (2021: four) operating segments as follows:

EMS — Electronic manufacturing services

Distribution of —
Communications

Marketing and distribution of
communications products

Products
Securities and Other — Equity investment, property agency
Assets Investment service and other operations

and Others

Real Estate Supply —
Chain Services

Real estate advisory service and
real estate purchase service

Money Lending — Provision of loan services by
licensed corporation

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology
and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as those described in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements. Segment profits or losses do not include interest
expense, depreciation, equity-settled share-based payments and
unallocated expenses. Segment assets do not include
unallocated bank and cash balances, unallocated property, plant
and equipment, unallocated right-of-use assets and unallocated
prepayments, deposits and other receivables. Segment liabilities
do not include unallocated lease liabilities, unallocated
borrowings, bonds payable and unallocated accruals and other
payables.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as if the
sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current market
prices.

AR

ARBAE(CZT=—F  OE) EES
T

BIUERY - ETRERS

DIHBAER — EHEEOHB

BrErLkEM — RERE WERR
BERE R 75 2 ELAth A5
K E A,

%f@gﬁﬁ‘t%% - %imgun uﬁﬂ&j&&}%
PR 7% HhE B B AR TS

& — AEFAARRHEE

R
AEEMBRSE S BREETRE R RR

BORBUERBEML - SOBBLE
B REAZEEBHEETRORMEE
HHERAK o
RED NG BRESEMBRERN
FE4PTE AR - D BRE L T BIEF
BRAX 8 UBEEEARND AE
RN RE RO - DEFEEL T
BREADRRITRASESR  KOED
E F}%&é“ﬁ CAPBEEREEER
AOBEMNKIE - RE K E AR KRR
1B e "*BE\%\IT@%% REESR
B RoREE  BNEFRKRDER
RERKEMENFUA -

AREBIZERNMEBILD LHEHEE MNEE
AR MW E = e g -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8 DEHER(E)
(a) Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets @ BEBRSHITEFNEGE BEXK
and liabilities: aENER

Distribution  Securities
of  andother Real estate
communi- assets supply
cations  investment chain Money

EMS products  and others services lending
BER
ETHE  DHBR  HtEE FihE
FRA% Em RERHEM HEERE & )
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THET THET THRT THRT TR THERT

Year ended 31 December 2022 HZE-B-—%

TZA=t-HLEE

Revenue from external customers K BSMREFEIA 502,606 18,489 679 7,388 89 529,251
Segment profit/(loss) PEEH/ (BB 11,140 (88) (31,354) (15,835) (822) (36,959)
Interest revenue FIBUA 2,679 1,507 2 1 4,189
Interest expense FlERES (2,150 () (51) (484) - (2,689)
Depreciation ik (16,978) (319) (2,502) (3,007) (22,306)
Amortisation B = = (2,007) (2,640)
Other material non-cash items: ~ EtEAFIRLER :
License rights payment SHEADE (1,938) (1,938)
Impairment losses for loansto A A TE R EIRE

other parties, net of reversal BE - IRER (4,065) (4,118)
Impairment losses for trade ENE FETRESSE

receivables, net of reversal MhEE (269) (9]
Impairment losses for other EthEYGEREEE

receivables, net of reversal MBEE (4,206) (4,206)
Impairment losses for BREERESE

intangible assets (3,615) (3,615)
Additions to segment non-current A & 3EREI B E LR

assets 4,163 40,417 1176 45,756
As at 31 December 2022 RZBZZE+ZA=+-H
Segment assets NEEE 470,098 ; LYWLY) 109,850 3,172 670,273
Segment liabilities NEWERE 237,289 ! 17,790 19,904 24 301,496
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H=

8.

208

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited & o5 5 & &=

B —F+-A=+—RAItFEE

8. IEEHGE)

Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets @) BAEREDIWMEFHEE BEK
and liabilities: (Continued) BEMNEE (&)
Distribution  Securities
of  andother Realestate
communi- assets supply
cations  investment chain
EMS products  and others services Total
STEE HHER  AtEE FiE
R Em H®ERHM HEERS w5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THET THET
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-ZT=—-%
TZA=+—-BLEE
Revenue from external customers R ESMREF YA 629,958 40,274 689 4,602 675,523
Segment profit/(loss) AEEF(EE) 26,916 4,034 (44,054) (11,307) (24,411)
Interest revenue MEKA 571 170 5,584 6,325
Interest expense FISFAY (2,554) (18) (1,169) - (3,741)
Depreciation wE (17,497) (373) (4,821) 113 (22,804
Amortisation BN - - - (543) (543)
Other material non-cash items: ~ HiEAFELER
Fair value gain on investment BEMENATEYRR
property - - 2,068 - 2,068
Impairment losses for loans to REMATETNRE
other parties, net of reversal B - mREE - - (15,378) - (15,378)
Impairment losses for trade B E ZERFURERE -
receivables, net of reversal illG3 e 965 - - - 965
Impairment losses for other HioEWFIERESSE
receivables, net of reversal kAR - - 1,800 - 1,800
Additions to segment non-current 9 EIER BN A EIL R
assets 5,950 - 3,016 496 9,462
As at 31 December 2021 R-B--$+ZA=t-H
Segment assets NHEE 485,602 8,216 60,737 96,383 650,938
Segment liabilities DHBEE 262,830 30,320 10,660 9,230 313,040
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

»EPER ()

(b) D EBULA B s A S B R R BR

2022
—E-=

HK$°000

FET

529,251

2022
—=E-=

HK$°000

F&T

(36,959)

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8.
(b) Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or loss:
Revenue WA
Total revenue of reportable segments ¥R 5 ZpUL A 4258
Profit or loss BRI EE
Total loss of reportable segments WE DI EEETE
Intersegment elimination 7 EB K 8
Unallocated amounts: AOBLEEE
Interest expense FEMAZ
Depreciation e
Equity-settled share-based LARR S E AR D &
payments EEMR
Other unallocated head office Bt RDRAHER &
and corporate expenses NAEIFX
Consolidated loss before tax BRI RIAR & 18

2021

HK$'000
TR

675,523

2021
—E-—%
HK$'000
FAT

(24,411)
(1,831)

(428)
(11,693)

(4,576)

(813)

(43,752)
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Far the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

8.

210

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

8.

Reconciliations of segment assets and liabilities:

»EPER ()

(© PDHREBEIBEMNHE:

2022
—E-=

HK$°000

FET

670,273
(22,983)

7
6,179
4,600

1,157

659,233

2022
—E—-=

HK$°000

FET

Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments  $REHEPEELL(E
Elimination of intersegment assets DEPEE EE
Unallocated amounts: RAOMSHE -
Bank and cash balances RITRIBSER
Property, plant and equipment VI R KRG
Right-of-use assets ERAEAE
Prepayments, deposits and TR ek
other receivables H At FEURIE
Consolidated total assets mEEERE
Liabilities =R
Total liabilities of reportable HENHaEeE
segments

Elimination of intersegment liabilities
Unallocated amounts:
Accruals and other payables
Borrowing
Lease liabilities
Bonds payable

7 BB B A
ADBEERE

EIRER REAMEN TR

tBE
HERE
FERHEZ

301,496
(22,983)

431
13,000
5,273

Consolidated total liabilities

RARERR

297,217
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2021

HK$'000
TR

650,938
(21,045)

58
12,368
16,561

19,098

677,978

2021

HK$'000
THETT

313,040
(21,045)

499

17,486
2,000

311,980



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. DEER(E)
(d) Geographical information: @ HEER:
The Group’s revenue from external customers by location REE R B INRE PR ER T
of operations and information about its non-current assets 3 U RARZFTE & 95 2 FE
by location are detailed below: MEVEEMBER AT

2022 2021
—=E-= —E-—4F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
F&T FET
Revenue ON
The People’s Republic of China R AREME ([E])

(the “PRC”) (including Hong Kong) (BIEEHE) 57,186 78,004
United States of America (“U.S.A.”) ENRERE([ER]) 102,579 81,807
Switzerland mt 94,436 177,027
France B 78,898 123,202
Poland B - 825
United Kingdom HE 14 16
Belgium Rl 54,978 47,772
Russia B 28 5 9,749 14,693
Thailand = 15,946 18,566
Malaysia R itk 22,773 21,617
Brazil ] 10,826 15,688
Others Efb 81,866 96,306
Consolidated total e 529,251 675,523

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FHT

Non-current assets IRBEE
The PRC (including Hong Kong) FE(BEEE) 123,835 124,152
Consolidated total RAIBER 123,835 124,152
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Far the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8 DEHER(E)
(e) Revenue from major customers: (e) RBEXTEEFFHUA :
An analysis of revenue from major customers which RAREBRAINSHA FHTFER
account for 10 percent or more of the Group’s revenue is as FPRADITWT -
follows:
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FATT
EMS segment B RERE DI
Customer A BEA 234,176 278,260
Customer B ZFEB 85,418 137,821
Customer C (Note) =P C(MzE) 55,114 N/A AN
Note: Revenue from this customer is less than 10% of the Group’s revenue for Wit : REZEFHNBAGALEHZ T
the year ended 31 December 2021. ——F+—A=t+—BHLEEHNKRAD
#R10% °
9. REVENUE 9. WA
Disaggregation of revenue WA D
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by RNREERBEPLANWMAIZEEE Rk
major products or service line for the year is as follows: RIGIEE DIFLOT -
2022 2021
—E-= —ET-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Revenue from contracts with customers EB& & BHREERE155E
within the scope of HKFRS 15 BEERNNEFSLNKBA
Disaggregated by major products BEBERIRBIEE DK
or service lines
— Sales of goods —HEEM 521,750 670,232
— Provision of real estate supply — IR E b E RS
chain service 7,388 4,602
529,138 674,834
Revenue from other sources kB H AR A
Rental income He WA 24 689
Loan interest income BERF BMA 89 -
529,251 675,523
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

9. REVENUE (Continued) 9. WA(E)
Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) WA (E)
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and AEERTIEZERGMIIE @ FE
services and at a point in time in the following major product R—HHMEEE R ERBEEWA

lines and geographical regions:

Marketing and
distribution of
Electronic communications Securities and other Real estate supply
manufacturing services products assets investment and others chain services Money Lending Total
ETHERE BURAHEAER REREMEEREREL  EHEGEERE g 3t

202 2071 202 2071 2022 211 2022 2011 2022 2071 2022 2071
CEoCE bl CECF Beblbuil E-CF Eeblbdll —2--F Eablasrdll —E--F Eablabuidl “E- -5 Eabsaiyd
HK$'000 EEECYUOON  HK$'000 [GISOODR  HK$'000 JGISYN  HKS'000 ECISYUNON  HKS$'000 EGICINEIN  HK$'000 JGTEINA)
Thn PR  TEL R TEr YoM TET R TEL EEEYM T R

Primary geographical markets ~ TEBETS

—ThePRC - g 113 - 689 4602 57,186 78,004
-USA. - %@ 47184 162 102,579 81,807
- Switzerland -kt 1m0 94,436 IR
— France -4l 123,202 X 12300
~ Poland il - 85 . 85
~United Kingdom -58 14 16 i’} 16
- Belgium - [l 54,978 47m 54,978 4m
— Russia - il 9,749 14,693 9,749 14,693
— Thailand - % 15,946 18,566 15,946 18,566
— Malaysia - 5RES 2,773 2,773 Iy
= Brazl -Ef 10,826 15,688 - 10,826 15,688
- Others -£f 81,368 90,65 5,651 81,866 9,306
Segment revenue HHRA 502,606 [EYREE 40,274 689 4602 529,251 IYERYE
Revenue from external customers RESMREFMA 502,606 VK 20074 689 4602 529,251 IYERYA

Timing of revenue recognition ~ WAEZZES

Products transferred at NE-EHRGERNER
apoint intime 502,606 [EOYARR

Products and services REREVOERRER

transferred over time

40274 4602 AR 674834

689 113 689

Total 5t 502,606 629,958 40,274 089 4602 529,251 675,523
The transfer goods and services are for periods of one year or EEERMREOERAE—FHIUAT -
less. The Group elected to apply the practical expedient. As AREEZEEBAERET L - REH
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to VRS ER BRI B TFZ
these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed. ERBITEONR F BRI REE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;

10.

214

OTHER INCOME

=

FH_A=+—HLFE

10, EAmWA

2022 2021
—E-= T —%F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FHIT
Interest income on: FA T BIEAASHR EWA -
Bank deposits RITIER 479
Bank fixed deposits RITEBRFER 119
Loan to Individual D (note 28(iii)) MR A D B (K3t 28¢i) 2,291
Loan to Independent Third BB E=BEMR
Party B (note 28(7) (HizF280)) 937
Loan to Independent Third Party C BN EZFCER
(note 28(ii)) (Bt aE28¢i0)) 2,347
Loan to Independent Third Party F ABYE=AFER
(note 28(iv)) (KizF28¢v)) 152
Total interest income MBI ARLE 6,325
Government subsidy (note) AR (F13E) 404
Sale of scrap materials SHE BER 285
Reimbursement from suppliers i R S IR EE SR Y R B
for testing defective products 504
Other Hith 3,309
10,827
Note: The amount mainly represents Employment Support Scheme under the Anti- Biat - ZETEF EREEERIITRE BT s &

epidemic Fund of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. The Group had to commit to spending the assistance on payroll
expenses, and not reduce employee head count below prescribed levels for a
specified period of time. The directors of the Company confirmed that the Group
did not have any unfulfilled conditions relating to the grant during the year
ended 31 December 2022. During the year ended 31 December 2022, such
government subsidies of HK$1,313,000 (2021: HK$nil) was recognised as other
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

M. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES N Ealzs Kk EE
2022 2021
—=E—_— —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Fair value gain on investment property KEE 2 AN EYE - 2,068
Gain on disposal of associates HEBE ARz S = 14,597
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 41(c)) HE—FEWBRATZ Kz
(Ktat 41c)) -
Fair value (losses) gains on the BAFEFABEHNREZ
investment at FVTPL AFAEEE () 796
Net foreign exchange gains (losses) b 5 Wes (B518) 558 (2,609
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BELEEZEE
equipment (167)
14,685
12. FINANCE COSTS 12. BEAK
2022 2021
—=E-— —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HERBZAEMY 3,076 3,649
Interest on borrowings BEZHE 924 456
Interest on bonds payable ERHERZF B 51 64
4,169
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Far the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

13.

216

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as follows:

PSR X
BRMSHERBRERNT ¢

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
Provision for the year
Under/(over)-provision in prior years

FREE

BIEATHIE — BAFIEH

BEFERET R GRERHE)

Current tax — Overseas BNEA®IIE — 8 5h

Provision for the year FEREE
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBERE

2022 2021
=== —E-—4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
3,474 3,855

133 (460)
3,607 3,395
3,395

Under the two-tiered profits tax regime, profits tax rate for the
first HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits of qualifying
corporations established in Hong Kong will be lowered to 8.25%
(2021: 8.25%), and profits above that amount will be subject to
the tax rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%). For the other Hong Kong
established subsidiaries, Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
provided at a rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates, based on existing legislation, interpretation and
practices in respect thereof.

REBEMRSIFIEBHE - REBKIH
B B E 2,000,000 7T &R B
AR S EZRAERESL%(ZF
= —%F 1 8.25%) + MR AL TR T
181216.5% (=T — —4F : 16.5%) HY i =&
B EMB AR E A R
T ABNEHIRMGEERY G
16.5% (ZF = —1F : 16.5% ) T He &t o

Hp i J7 ER DG AR IBE B IHEA
SEEEMERRENRE  REE
BITED - 2ERIEPIFE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MF SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 13.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
product of loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate is as follows:

FS BRI ()

PRSH R X LR TR AT B B RIA B B FIS
BB R PRt B B R ERIT ¢

2022 2021
—=-—= —E——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAETT

Loss before tax MR ATE 1B

(48,417) (43,752)

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of & & & FIESH % 16.5%

16.5% (2021: 16.5%) T —F 1 165%)TE
IR (7,219)

Tax effect of income that is not taxable — HERH KA NTH KT L (6,291)
Tax effect of expenses that are AR B RS2

not deductible 8,740
Tax effect of temporary differences AERLRFEZENTHISTE

not recognised (1,059)
Tax effect of tax concession BERENORBEZE (2,079
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BEFEEETR GBEEE) (460)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses B RBTRERTSEED

not previously recognised Mg B (3,564)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIER BB RN G 2 14,316
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries MiB A EIHH & E= BT E 1,011
Income tax expense FriS i 3,395
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14.

218

FH_A=+—HLFE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR 4. FEEE
The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) AEBEZFEBEAEMRGEA)AT
the followings: FIBEHEINMOT
2022 2021
—sE=-= B4
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FHET
Auditor's remuneration ZE BN &
— audit services — BZARTE 2,150 2,080
— other services — AR 372 920
2,522 3,000
Cost of sales (note (1) SHERKA (ML D))
Cost of inventories sold BEGFERAR 428,794 527,285
Allowance on inventories FERE 12,628 11,141
Reversal of allowance on inventories FEBERD (B d))
(note (1)) (14,595) (11,642)
426,827 526,784
Amortisation on exclusive agency right BRAREE(BRREE-DZ
(EAR-I) BEiH - 543
Amortisation on agency right (EAR-3) RIBRE CBRARIERE-3) 2 #H 2,007 -
Amortisation on computer software BIS B B SE 633 -
Depreciation on property, ME - BEREETE
plant and equipment 9,909 9,584
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREEENE 17,756 24,913
Research and development expenditure %t K%
(note (i) (B &% i) 14,511 15,006
Impairment losses on loans to mEMATEZREERE
other parties, net of reversal HBr ¥ 4,118 15,378
Impairment losses on trade receivables,  FEUE 5B FOREEE
net of reversal IR E 606 (965)
Impairment losses on other receivables, — H i e W R IE B E 1S
net of reversal B E 4,206 (1,800)
Impairment losses on intangible assets EEERMERR 3,615 -
Expense relating to short-term lease EEHEMRBERX 1,176 1,970
Equity-settled share-based payments DA 45 & LA R 19 A B RE RO S 3R 4,713 4,576
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;

=

FHZA=+t—HILFE

14.  LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued) 4. FEBHEE)

Notes: Mzt -

0] During the year ended 31 December 2022, cost of sales includes approximately 0) HE-Z-—"4F+-F=1+—HBILFE  #HEK
HK$74,308,000 (2021: HK$79,796,000) relating to employee benefits expense ABIEE R B &R R E 474,308,000
and depreciation, amounts of which are also included in the respective total BT (ZT=—% :79796,00087T) ' 2ELH
amounts disclosed separately above and note 15 for each of these types of et A EX RS ERIEE S AR MEE
expenses. During the year, the Group recognised a write-back of licence right oo REFER - RIFRAIARRHFAIRE - AEER
payables of HK$5,851,000 (2021: HK$nil) in cost of sales upon the waiver of S AR AN HE AR R MR JE < 3R J8 215,851,000 7 7T
licensing fee by the licensor. (ZZ=—F THI) °

(i) The Group makes allowance on inventories under respective aged criteria in (i) AEEHERASABERNRRENNTEED
different segments. The reversal of such allowance represents the amount of B BEREEEEAREEREENTEES
inventories subsequently used in production or sold. o

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2022, research and development (iy BEZ--—F+-A=t+—HILEE WHER
expenditure includes approximately HK$14,151,000 (2021: HK$14,983,000) B X H B 15 G BE B 18 FIF X 914,151,000 7%
relating to employee benefits expense, amounts of which are set out in note 15 JL(ZZT=—F 1149830008 70) * ZE &
to the consolidated financial statements. RERE IS IRRMIEES5 o

15.  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 5. EERMAX
2022 2021
—E__ T —F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FATT
Employee benefits expense BEE@mAIF X
(including directors’ emoluments): (BIEESHE) -
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e AL NOZAL 140,210 177,908
Equity-settled share-based payments LARGHE 45 B LARRAD A BT Y
INES 4,713 4,576
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  RRIEFIEH B 2 13,689 12,854
158,612 195,338
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Far the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

5. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Continued) 5. EERMNAXZ(E)
Five highest paid individuals: hEmEEFAL:
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year KFEE AEBRATRFATPHRE
included none (2021: none) directors whose emoluments are —E—F:\EBE AT
reflected in the analysis presented in note 16(a). The emoluments B@EINH DT R - R THHZ(Z
of the remaining five (2021: five) individuals are set out below: T——F: 5H) ATHEIEHNIOT ¢
2022 2021
—=E-= —E-—4F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
TET FAT
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e - B4 NERL 17,236 41,917
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R AiEFIET 2|43k 279 269
17,515 42,186
The emoluments fell within the following band: MEeBRTEE :
Number of individuals
2021
—E-—%F
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001%8 75 2 3,000,000 87T -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T & 3,500,000 /& 7T 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T 2 4,000,000 7% 7T 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7C £ 5,000,000 7T -
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 7,500,001 7T & 8,000,000 /& 7T 1
HK$11,500,001 to HK$12,000,000 11,500,001 7T 2 12,000,000 /5 7T 1
HK$15,000,001 to HK$15,500,000 15,000,001 7£ £ 15,500,000 8 7T 1
5
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no HE_ZT-_—_Fk-_F=_—F+=A

emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

=+—BLEFE AKESERTAR
AEREHFMALTNSEHH  EAMAR
S B INARE B 12 6 S B KA /S RER
E -
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AR B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 6. EERANLED
(a) Directors’ emoluments (@) EEH
The remuneration of every director is set out below: BEEFMNEWOT ¢

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a
director, whether of the Company or
its subsidiary undertaking
BERES (BRMALNAREKBARER)
LA RS C 15 S I
Employer’s
contribution Equity-
toa settled
retirement share-
Discretionary benefit based
Salaries LT scheme  payments
EEEHK NURELE
BRGE  URGA
EA e BERA R ERNAR oh
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$°000  HK$'000  HK$°000
TR TR TiEn THER TR TET

Name of directors i
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman) WL (LE)
Mr. Duan Chuanhong Bllass ()
Ms. Lin Xiaoshan R T (i)
Mr. Liu Zhiwe SRS (i)
Mr. Xia Xiaobing BENERE (iv)
Mr. Wang Guozhen TEELE
Independent non-executive BUHRTEE

directors
Mr. Chak Chi Shing BEbrA
Mr. Li Huiwu FEREE
Mr. Yang Weidong BEREE
Total for 2022 “ECCFA
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ =S - +=-A=+—HILFE

16.  BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)  16.

222

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration of every director is set out below:

BEEEN RS (E)

(@ EBEZRFHMGE)

BEEFHMEIIT

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a
director, whether of the Company or
its subsidiary undertaking
FERES (BERNARAENBARER)
WEARBD N E M

Employer’s
contribution Equity-
toa settled
retirement share-
Discretionary benefit based
Fees Salaries bonus scheme  payments Total
BERK NRELE
BHEE URRA
R ¥ BB #HH ERNER @&
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
FHL FEL T T FHT FEL
Name of directors EEHS
Executive directors HITEZE
Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman) WREEE(FE) - 2,000 - 18 855 2873
Mr. Duan Chuanhong Bllass - 700 - - - 700
Mr. Xia Xiaobing BEpEES (iv) - 240 - - 855 1095
Mr. Wang Guozhen THERE - 2,000 - 18 855 2873
Independent non-executive BUHRTEE
directors
Mr. Li Huiwu TEREE 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Yang Weidong BRREAE 240 - - - - 240
Dr. Sun Xiaohu RiRRET (v) 104 - - - - 104
Mr. Chak Chi Shing BEEEE (i) 136 - - - - 136
Total for 2021 “EC--E@ 720 4,940 - 36 2565 8261
Notes: Hiat -
() Resigned on 13 July 2022. ) NoZ——&t A+ = BEE -
(i Appointed on 4 March 2022. (i) R-E-_—_F=-ANHEZT-
(i) Appointed on 1 November 2022. (i) R-ZT-_—F+—A—AEZT-
(iv)  Resigned on 4 March 2022. vy R-Z-——F=HAHBEIT-
W) Appointed on 6 January 2021 and resigned on 19 April 2021. ) N —F—AXNARZSEIRR T
Z—FWMATNBEHE -
(vi)  Appointed on 7 June 2021. i) RZBE-—FXALHEZRFE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B mRM

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

16.  BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(a)

®)

©

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

None of the directors waived any emoluments during the
year (2021: Nil).

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate and
connected entities

The information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings entered into by the Company or subsidiary
undertaking of the Company in favour of directors is as
follows:

16.

BEEEN RS (E)

Outstanding Maximum
Total amountatthe  Outstanding  outstanding
amount  beginning of amount at the amount during
Name of director 32 payable the year end of the year the year
FzHk  FRZHA FRRE
ERERE Libe] HERE HARENE
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
TER THT ThRL TER
As at 31 December 2022 RIBZZF
+=B=1+-H
Quasi-loans o ERFAEERS
credit transactions:
Mr. Lin Dailian LS (149) Nil &
Mr. Wang GuoZhen THEERE Nil & Nil &
As at 31 December 2021 RZBz-f
tZB=+-8
Quasi-loans or EERREERS
credit transactions:
Mr. Lin Dailian WRES & Nil & 450 Nil & 450

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts

So far disclosed in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company and the director’s connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

@) EZEBHM(E)
FERMESEERETOHE (=
T —F )
BE_Z_—_FR-_F-_—F+=
A=+—HILFE  AEEBER
FAESEAHEHH - tERIARE
B s i ARNE B E R B S E AR
B -

by BHMESR- ZEHEBELEEE

Amount due
but not paid
BB A
AR
HK$000

47

Nil £

©

BHANER EEFLHEMESR
M AR

ABAATEHBATINES
REBAZER  ERRREME
B2 AR :

Provision
for doubtful
debts made

fit

RERE

HK$'000
ThRL

Term Interest rate

#R
HK$°000
7

A%
HK$000
Tz

Nil & Nil & Ni & Nil &

Ny
pay

T

BARE M IS MR M L A5 PR BR -
BERERRFANEMERFER
ARBREFIINT RARAES
REEZENERREERGE
REDNEREAREEFNEGBE
AR5 BFEREN -

RHHB N B A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B mRM

Far the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

17.  DIVIDENDS 7. &R
No dividends have been paid or proposed during the year ended BE_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HBILFE
31 December 2022, nor has any dividend been proposed since BED REFIRERS - HEREH
the end of the reporting period (2021: NiD). RARMEERETABRE(ZE=—
FE) e
18.  LOSS PER SHARE 18. =FMEE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is based FRERNEEEELR T ARFE
on the following:
2022 2021
—=-= —E-—%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FAETT
Loss E5E
Loss attributable to owners of ARETESREARAREEEBEZ
the Company for the purpose of RARHE AELEE
basic and diluted loss per share (46,397)
2021
—E-—F

Number of shares BHEE

Weighted average number of ordinary AR ESRERNNEEEE

shares for the purpose of calculating TR IR 1 E
basic and dilutive loss per share

1,081,681,554 595,327,745

No diluted loss per share for years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021 as the outstanding share options do not have any dilutive
effect.

BE_Z-_—_Fr=-_F=-_—F+=A
—TBUHFEYTESREEEE It
T R BA 18 A 17165 B PR WE 0 48 (T (] B 3
EEE\O
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ =S -_—F+=-A=+—HILFE

19.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. M - WENMEKE
Plant,
machinery, Furniture
Leasehold moulds and and Motor
improvements tools equipment vehicles Total
B - #Es -
HEXEIR EARIE GHERRE "E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET T T
Cost B
At 1 January 2021 —E-—%—f—H 29,685 109,548 8,008 1,772 149,013
Additions E%E 5,263 5,674 8,765 496 20,198
Disposal & - - (50) (779) (829)
Written off gz - (4,680) (142) - (4,822)
Exchange differences ERESR 480 2,064 135 6 2,685
At 31 December 2021 and RZEZ—5+-A=1—H
1 January 2022 _giii A—H 35,428 112,606 16,716 1,495 166,245
Additions BE 4,118 3,240 597 - 7,955
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 41(c)) & — i@ A B (Hfzt 41c)) (4,685) - (264) - (4,949
Disposal & - (2,289) - - (2,289)
Written off s (475) (10,339) (245) - (11,059)
Exchange differences 0 5 =% (1,546) (6,112) (458) (18) (8,134)
At 31 December 2022 RZZ-—F+-fA=+—H 32,840 97,106 16,346 1,477 147,769
Accumulated depreciation BitiE
At 1 January 2021 RZE-Z—4%—/F—H 27,269 95,906 5,487 1,148 129,810
Charge for the year FEER 2,034 5,570 1,867 113 9,584
Disposal HE - - (50) (195) (245)
Written off H3H - (4,680) (142) - (4,822)
Exchange differences fE 5 =% 485 1,689 102 6 2,282
At 31 December 2021 and RZZZ—F+-A=+—H
1 January 2022 r—Z-—_%—F—H 29,788 98,485 7,264 1,072 136,609
Charge for the year FEEMR 1,898 5,810 2,102 99 9,909
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 41(c))  tHE—HMBRAR(HiF41c)) (195) - 4 - (199)
Disposal & - (1,587) = - (1,587)
Written off g (475) (10,326) (245) - (11,046)
Exchange differences fE 5 =R (1,478) (5,103) (376) (18) (6,975)
At 31 December 2022 RZZE-—#%+=-A=+—H 29,538 87,279 8,741 1,153 126,711
Carrying amount RAEE
At 31 December 2022 RZZZZH+-A=+—H 3,302 9,827 7,605 324 21,058
At 31 December 2021 N\_ZE=—F+=A=+—H 5,640 14,121 9,452 423 29,636
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ =S - +=-A=+—HILFE

20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 20. FAABEE

Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
HE L HEEF et
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000
FAT FAET FET
At 1 January 2021 RN-E=-_—F—F—H 668 48,236 48,904
Additions BE - 28,844 28,844
Depreciation e (675) (24,238) (24,913)
Exchange differences PE H ZXE 7 1,624 1,631

At 31 December 2021 and R-_EBE-—F+-_A=+—H

1 January 2022 ;k—T-—%—A—H - 54,466 54,466
Additions BE - 6,671 6,671
Depreciation e - (17,756) (17,756)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHHREB QR

(note 41(c)) (Ffz 41(c)) - (6.666) (6.666)
Reassessment (note) R (M) - (1,054) (1,054)
Exchange differences bE 5 EHR - (2,421) (2,421)
At 31 December 2022 RZZE-—=—F+=-A=+—H - 33,240 33,240
Note: The amount mainly represents the early termination of a lease of staff quarter faE . ZEeBEEERRENLIEEIBEEMEERCOVID-19

and COVID-19 related rent concessions. HEESRR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B mRM

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

20. EABEEE(E)

2022 2021
—=-= —E-—4F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FAT
Depreciation expenses on FREEEZITERY
right-of-use assets 17,756 24,913
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBE A BEREZ
(included in finance costs) (GFABE K A) 3,076 3,649
Expenses relating to short-term lease FREHEENRT
(included in cost of sales GITABEERARITHRER)
and administrative expenses) 1,176 1,970
COVID-19 Related rent concessions received &2 Y EX#) COVID-19 t8REFE 4 Z iRl 312 299

Lease liabilities of HK$37,510,000 (2021: HK$58,589,000) are
recognised with related right-of-use assets of HK$33,240,000
(2021: HK$54,466,000) as at 31 December 2022. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
puUrposes.

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note 41(f).

For both years, the Group leases various offices, factories and
staff quarters for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into
for fixed term of one to ten years. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

NR_EBE__F+_A=+—H0 B
R E A& E375100008 (=T = —
£ : 58,589,000/ 7T ) & 18 @ # £ A
W& E33240,0008 T(Z T = —F:
54,466,000 7T) c BRI HEAFBEHHE
BETHERERIN  BERHETHEN
EAHEMELY - HEEETSARER
AR o

RER SR BB FITENMEEAD)

RRFEHE - ARERELEREZ[E
MAE IBREIFES HESHR
—E+FENEEFHMFIL - BEGKR
BRI ZEEER - X B2 EET R ERR
Ko fge 7O T TH 23 Mo AF A4 T AT el 28
ARER AEEERANNERLE
TEA KA SR BT TRO AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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% AY

Eﬁﬁﬂ#ﬁ&% Bﬁ nf

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H=

21,

228

B —F+-A=+—RAItFEE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 2. BEEE
Customer Computer
relationship EAR-1 EAR-2 EAR-3 software
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c) (note (d)) (note (e)) Total
EFB% BRAEE- BRAEE-2 BRAEE-3 EEY gt
(Hii @) (B wm) (hEE ) (Bt () (Fisce)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT TR TR TR TR
Cost BA
At 1 January 2021 RZZ-_—4F—/[—H 13,707 25,000 27,000 - - 65,707
Additions BE - - - - 1,900 1,900
At 31 December 2021 and R-E-_—5+-A=+-H
1 January 2022 kZE-—F—-A—H 13,707 25,000 27,000 - 1,900 67,607
Additions BE - - - 37,800 - 37,800
At 31 December 2022 NZ_ZE-_—&%#+-R=1—H 13,707 25,000 27,000 37,800 1,900 105,407
Accumulated amortisation and 2384 R HEKE
impairment losses
At 1 January 2021 —Z-—%—A—H 13,707 16,522 - - - 30,229
Amortisation for the year FIEE - 543 - - - 543
At 31 December 2021 and W-Z-—F+-A=+—-H
1 January 2022 k=E-—-F—-A—H 13,707 17,065 - - - 30,772
Amortisation for the year FEHH - - - 2,007 633 2,640
Impairment loss for the year FERESE - 3,615 - - - 3,615
At 31 December 2022 NZ_ZE-_—_%+-R=1—H 13,707 20,680 - 2,007 633 37,027
Carrying amount WREE
At 31 December 2022 NZE-_—_&+-fA=1+—-H - 4,320 27,000 35,793 1,267 68,380
At 31 December 2021 RZE-_—F+-A=+—H - 7,935 27,000 - 1,900 36,835
Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited (R s IR B BRI EF AR A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;

=

21, INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(@ Customer relationship represents the future economic benefit to the Group
arising from regular contact between individual customer and the business
entity before business combination. The amortising period of customer

relationship was 3-6 years.

(b) The Group paid HK$25,000,000 to BXG in FY2019 as prepayment and has
reclassified that prepayment as intangible assets in FY2020, which represents
EAR-1 for certain number of apartments (both furnished and without
decoration). Due to the effect of the pandemic, the terms of the EAR-1 were
extended and revised. The Group determines the amortisation of EAR-1 based
on the allocation of costs corresponds to the actual number of units sold during
the reporting period over the total number of units with exclusive agency rights
granted under EAR-1. The Group has the rights to sell the apartments from 1
January 2020 to 17 March 2021. On 1 December 2022, BXG further extended the
appointment of the Group as its exclusive agent to 30 November 2025. Further
details of impairment assessment and amortisation of EAR-1 are set out in notes

5(b) & 5(0).

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, due to the poor performance of the real
estate supply chain services segment, the Group performed impairment
assessment on the cash-generating unit of this segment in which EAR-1belongs.
The recoverable amount represented its value in use determined based on
discounted cashflow forecast prepared by the management of the Group. The
Group estimates the value in use of the EAR-1 using a discount rate of 14.7%
(2021: 11.8%). The EAR-1 was impaired to its recoverable amount of
HK$4,320,000 (2021: HK$7,935,000), which is its carrying value at year end and
the impairment of HK$3,615,000 (2021: nil) has been recognised in profit or loss

during the year.

(c) On 18 August 2020, the Group acquired the EAR-2 from Ratchaphruek Global
Group Co., Ltd. (“Vendor”) for the rights to sell 77 villa units (“Target
Properties”) planned to be constructed under a project (“Project”) of a
developer company (“Developer”). The Group determines the amortisation of
EAR-2 based on the allocation of costs corresponds to the actual number of
units sold during the reporting period over the total number of units with
exclusive agency rights granted under EAR-2. The Group has the rights to sell
the Target Properties for a remaining term of not less than 12 months from 18
August 2020, and may be extended by another 6 months upon expiration. On 19
January 2022, the Developer further extended the appointment of the Group as
its exclusive agent from 24 November 2021 to 24 May 2022. On 17 May 2022, the
Developer further extended the appointment of the Group as it exclusive agent

to 24 May 2023.

Further details of impairment assessment and amortisation of EAR-2 are set out

in notes 5(c) & 5(d).

(d) The Group settled HK$37,800,000 by the allotment and issue of 230,000,000
shares of the Company to a scientific instruments manufacturer (the “Assignor”)
in 2022 for an intangible asset, which represents (i) the exclusive agency right to
distribute the Products and the right for after-sale service in Hong Kong SAR
and in Macau SAR; and (ii) the non-exclusive agency right to distribute the
Products and the right for after-sale service in the regions of Asia outside the
mainland China, except Hong Kong SAR and Macau SAR within agreed agency
periods from the date of acquisition to 6 December 2031 under EAR-3. Further

F+-A=+—RHIFE

details of impairment assessment are set out in note 5(e).

(e) Computer software represents software acquired for money lending business
and is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The system software is amortised on a straight-line basis

over a period of 3 years.

21.

B EE (&)

G

@

(b)

©

(@

(e)

EEREEEXRGEMAIEATP RETERE
HEEHARBEL N RTEENZD - FPAE
MBI RIEF -

AEBRZZT— LY BFEABXGCE
25,000,000 TAE AT KB R — T T8
BFEERZENRBEN Y BEABEAE  BS
TRABR(BRMLERE)NERRIZE-1- A
REBTE BRAREE OERKETTERRK
1E5T - AEEIRIBIRRE HANE & B BIRE
SHBEBRARERE 1 REOBRAIDEECE
AL DIERE D B A E BB R IR
HEE  ARBEERA T _TF—A—BE=
T F=A+tHAHERT - RZZTZF
TZA—H  BXGE—FZERKEIEREBR
RE . HREE-"ZE-RE+—A=+H-5H
BRAIERE -URER R E — PR BER
B 5% 5(0) K& 5(c) ©

R ZFR T —F+-A=+—H H
REHEHEERG D BEETE - MAEEYE
ZOWBRRIEE-1FTES ) NREEEBN
VERMERE - AT E S BEREAEEEIEER
HUWUBRRERBAETHEREE - AEEIZ
BRI R147% (2T = —F 1 18%) st BRNAE
E-HEREE BRARERE-UREZ A RE
£ %4,320,0008 7L (= Z = — 4 : 7,935,000/
7T) + Bl AH KR E AR (E3,61500087T(=
To—F  E)DRFRNBHER -

RZZZZTFNA+NE A&EHEHE
Ratchaphruek Global Group Co., Ltd. ([ & 7 1) X
SERREE-2 EREE—HEREAR (8
BE)EE ((ZEBDETHREZEZNT7ER
FE([BEYE]) - FEERRERSHRE
HESNERHMSMRBEBRRER 2B LN
BRI BB E AL BIAEE D B B Rpk A
EHRBRAOBE2OEY - AEEBERE =T
ZZEFNATNBRBERADR2EANFREF
HMEEBEME  YRERSATBERc@EA -
RZFZZF—A+NE  BREE—FEER
EEEAREBRRENSR AT =—F+—
AZ+HmBEZZT-__FHRA-FTWEAE - R=F
—FRA+ER FREE-TSETLAEERE
AEBRAE  HREE-_Z-_=FFA=-1+N
H -

ERABRAERE -2 EFG R EHNE— P
TBEHPIRES(C) R 5(d) °

KRB ARREBA BRI BESRE
7 ((EE|A J) B )2 3217 230,000,000 A A% {7 7L
A EE437,8000008 T - BBV EE
ERWEBEREE—T=—F+-ANENHBTE
REHFARBEBRRIBE-SOETBEIITHR
[ S ORI BT T IR R 73 $H S fh S 5 12 AR T HE A /O
BRREE RO EPEARLASNEMNBE (F
B RITTI R RORPIE BITTIR BRI 2 $HEE dh
RERRGENOIPERAIZHRE - BRARER
AR BB A 5(e)

BB HERRERBBENERME - URARR
HEEREFRREESRSIR - FRRITRE
BOEN SEFHR N -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R MY Rt

Far the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 22. RBRARIRIEE
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022 are as RZBE - —&F+_A=+—HHEBERA
follows: BFEIBIT
Place of incorporation/  Issued and paid up share Percentage of ownership interest/
Name of subsidiary establishment capital/registered capital voting power/profit shating Principal activities
BETRAZRE/ fERRs: REE/
WEARER HMERYL/ RIS ZRER BRAMEEAN TEEK

2022 2021
—g-- e

Dir;ct __Indirect D\re_ct?_ Indirect
EE Rk BE Rk

Charm Year International Limited BV 100 ordinary shares 100% - 100% - Investment holding
SIFEBAR AR RBRLEE of US$1 each REER
100 R EREEIETH
Liatk
China Khan Limited BV 100 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
ERERAT RBRAES of US$1 each REER
00 REREEIETH
Liatk
Natural Perseverance Limited BV 100 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
FRBRAT RBRAES of US$1 each RERR
00 REREEIZTH
Liamk
Powerled Limited BV 100 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
EEERAT) RBRAES 0f US$1 each RERR
100 BRARIETH
Liamk
Sheer Victory Limited BV 100 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
HBRUHE 0f US$1 each RERR
100 BRARIXTH
LER
Dayshine Global Investments Limited BV Tordinary share - 100%  Inactive
HBRUHE of US$1 each LR
\RERAEIETH
Ever Billion Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$ - 100%  Investment holding
EEEXARAR Bk Dn:ok:3 REER
Link-Asia International Cell Technology Hong Kong Ordinary share of HKS! - 100%  Investment holding
Group Limited 5& IETALER RERR
ReARBRNRERER AR
Be Smart Finance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 - 100%  Provision of loan services
0 1BTAE Rk REETRE
Link-Asia International Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 - 100%  Inactive
Electronic Technology Limited Bh 1BTREER EfiEys

RERRETHHERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 22. RBRARINKRE (B)

Place of incorporation/  Issued and paid up share Percentage of ownership interest/

Name of subsidiary establishment capital/registered capital voting power/profit shating Principal activities
BETRAZRE/ fERRs:/ REE/
WEARERE ML,/ RIS afER BRAMEEAL TEER
2022 2021
—E-C 5%
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
EE Rk BE Rk
Keenpro Investments Limited* BV Tordinary share - - - 100%  Investment holding
BREEERAT RBRAES of US$1 each REER
REHRAEEIETH
Liatk
Link-Asia Medtech Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HKS$! - 100%  Inactive
ROBENRREGRARA i IETHEER i)
Sino Achieve Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 100%  Investment holding
PEERAA 5 HK$5,000,000 and trading
5000000 BT M ERER REERRES
Space Wisdom Limited BV Tordinary share of - 100%  Inactive
BERAT RBRLES USS1 each EEEK
1REREEIZTH
LRk
Talent-Asia Holdings Co. Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 100%  Investment holding and
AERGERBERAR 55 HK$1,000,000 provision of real estate
1000000 B TH L BER advisory service and real
estate purchase service
RABRRRERNE
AAREANEE
BERYE
Talent-Asia GC Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 51%  Provision of real
RORBEERAT 5& HK$1,000,000 estate advisory service
1,000,000 A LR EBR and real estate purchase
service
REEFMELARBEN
FHERERY
Telefield Holdings Limited BV 410,000 ordinary shares = 100%  Investment holding
RBRAES of US$1 each RERR
410,000 REREEIET
fEER
Telefield Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of o 100%  Investment holding,
HEBRAT 5 HK$20,000,000 and electronic manufacturing
non-voting deferred services for
shares of HK$5,000,000 telecommunications,
20,000,000 87 AIE ERE security, car electronics,
15,000,000 T4 home appliances,
BRZEELRD other consumer and
industrial electronic
products
RERE 20 R
HEETER KB
EthEERTEET
EmNETEERE
Telefield Medical Devices Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100%  Trading of personal
SREXMNERAR B% HK$1,000 care products
1000 A TAE B EAAEEERES
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Far the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

22.

232

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/  Issued and paid up share
Name of subsidiary establishment capital/registered capital
BETRAZRE/
WEARER ML/ RIS ZRER
Telefield Universal Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of
FERKERAA B HKS$15,600,000
15,600,000 B TR EER
Telefield NA Inc. USA Share capital of
e U5$2,000,000
f&7% 2,000,000 % 7T
Well Dragon Electronics Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of
HERETFERAT e HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 B T & @R
Sota Acoustics Umited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1
BEZZERAT i 1BTH L Rk
Link-Asia International Assisted Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1
Reproductive Technology Group e IETHEER
Limited
ROEBRENEENEERERAR
BMNFEETERAR((EMNFE])  PRC Registered capital of
Guangzhou Telefield Limited (“GTL")* & 1US$8,060,000
FHEK8,060,000% 7T
BNPEETERAA PRC Registered capital of
Guangzhou Zhong Sui Limited* HE US$1,500,000
A R1500000% T
BN EERERERAT PRC Registered capital of
Guangzhou Zhuo Feng Plastics i US$2,000,000
Co, Limited® FHEA2,000000%TT
ZREEZH(FINERA PRC Registered capital of
Huashi Management Consu\tancy HE RMB300,000,000
(Shenzhen) Limited® AMERARE
300,000,0007C
SHERE BN BRA PRC Registered capital of
Ding Cheng Investment HE RMB200,000,000
(Yangzhou) Limited* AMERARE
200,000,0007C

22. RHBRARIMEE (&)

Percentage of ownership interest/
voting power/profit shating
fERRs:/ REE/
BRAMEEAL

2022 2021

—g-- e

—F——

Direct Indirect D\re_ct_ Indirect
EE Rk BE Rk

Principal activities

IEER

= 100% - 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 38 2o BRI 2 Rl R 2 B B PR A 7

Investment holding and
trading of
telecommunication
products

REERRENERES

Trading of business
telephone system

Manufacturing services of
home appliances, other
consumer and industrial
electronic products

75 HMEERIX
B ERMEERSE

Sale of audio equipment

EERBORE

Investment holding

RERR

Manufacture of
telecommunications
and other products

EMRAMERDEE

Manufacture and sale of
consumable electronic
products

HEETEMNEER
#E

Inactive

EEEH

Inactive

TEEH

Investment holding

REBR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B mRM

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Place of incorporation/  Issued and paid up share
Name of subsidiary establishment capital/registered capital
BETRAZRE/
WEARER HEMERL,/ R aMER
ZREESHRI (R BERAT PRC Registered capital of
Huashi Medical Assistive Technology H RMB500,000,000
(Shenzhen) Co, Ltd* AMERARE
500,000,0007C
HERYERRABRAT PRC Registered capital of
Shanghai Fu Mian Management HE RMBI100,000,000
Consultant Limited? AMERARE
100,000,0007c
ROER(HE) EMBEERE PRC Registered capital of
BRAT e RMB20,000,000
Huanya Shengke (Shanghai) AMERARE
Biomedical Technology Co, Ltd* 20,000,0007T
RERR (RN BERAR PRC Registered capital of
Huanya Holdings (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd"* # RMBI10,000,000
FMERARE
10,000,000 7
HEEHE (R EBRAR PRC Registered capital of
Zhongxixin Trading (Shenzhen) Co, Ltd* RMB200,000
AMEFARE
200,0007T

English names are for identification purpose.
Struck off during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Except for Huanya Shengke (Shanghai) Biomedical Technology
Co., Ltd and Huanya Holdings (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd which
established in the PRC in the form of limited liability company, all
subsidiaries established in the PRC are wholly foreign-owned
enterprises.

As at 31 December 2022, the bank balances of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB and deposited with
banks in the PRC were amounted to approximately
HK$45,387,000 (2021: HK$46,967,000). Conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations. However, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

2. RBARIMRE (&)
Percentage of ownership interest/

voting power/profit shating Principal activities

fEERs REE/
BRAMEEAL TEER
2022 2021
—E-- —E-E&
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
EE Rk BE fit
- 100% 100%  Investment holding
REER
- 100%  Provision of consultancy
service
REZHRE

51%  Provision of pre-pregnancy

care and assisted
reproductive services

REZARBREDER
R

Provision of real estate
advisory services and real
estate purchase service

REERHELARBEN
FHERERYE

Manufacturing services of
home appliances, other
consumer and industrial
electronic products

FE HMEERTSR
BT ERMBERTS

HE-Z-_—F+-_A=t—BHILFEEKRE-

BREPEUBREEQFAIFAKINER
SEM(LEB)EMBEMBRERARR
REZERCRIDBERQBSN - AEESR
BRI B AR RINEBERE -

R-ZT-—F+-_A=+—H KEE
B P BB R A A RS FTHE R AF R
B Y SR 1T B SR 1T 45 B4 B 40 45,387,000
BIL(ZF = —%F : 46,967,000/ 0) °
AR H R HNE B F B HME B 1R 5
Pl iE EERNEEERENR
R o A AEBEEAETBBRAET
HNER 5 2 IRITHE A REE SR E &
ﬁlﬂg °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B mRM

Far the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

23, MREHE R RIEIRG

2021
—E-C —E-—%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Unlisted investments in the PRC: FEIIEETIRE
Net assets of associates e NREEFE 11,254 11,254
Impairment losses EEE (1,405) (1,405)
9,849 9,849
Reclassified to assets classified as ENMOBEARBEAHEENEE
held-for-sale (9,849)
Details of the Group’s associates at 31 December 2022 are as REBR-_ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—HBH
follows: B A RRHELE -
Percentage of ownership
interest/voting power/
Place of profit sharing
incorporation/ FrEE#ES REE
Name registration Registered capital A E D Principal activities
2021
2% MR B FmER —T-—F IEBE¥
HERERBEEAERAR([BE]) PRC RMB30,000,000 49% Consultancy service
Shanghai Rongshu Business # (not fully paid up) HARG
Consulting Co., Ltd. (‘Rongshu”)* AR#30,000,0007T
(REHHZ)

English names are for identification purpose.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B mRM

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ =S -_—F+=-A=+—HILFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

On 23 March 2021, the Group entered into a share transfer
agreement to dispose of all its entire 49% equity interest in
Shanghai Zhanju Business Consulting Co., Ltd.* (“Zhanju”) and
its entire 48% in Suzhou Wangguan Venture Capital Co., Ltd.
("Wangquan”)* to the controlling shareholder of the associate
with a consideration of RMB15,300,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$18,398,000). This resulted in a gain of
disposal of HK$14,597,000 recognised in profit or loss during the
year ended 31 December 2021. Through the disposal of 49%
equity interest in Zhanju, equity interest in Wangquan was fully

disposed.

On 23 March 2021, the Group entered into a share transfer
agreement to dispose of all its entire 49% equity interest in
Rongshu to the controlling shareholder of the associate with a
consideration of RMB15,000,000. The transaction was not
completed as the agreement condition has not yet fulfilled as at
31 December 2022. The carrying amount attributable to this
investment was classified as assets held-for-sale at 31 December
2022 with a view that the disposal is expected to be completed

within twelve months.

The Group disposed 49% equity interest in Rongshu on 7 March

2023 as the agreement condition has been fulfilled.

23.

REE R EIHIRE (8)

N-ZE-—F=A=-+=0 KEHI
RO EERE  AHEEREE
RIEEKERAERAG([REDHEI
A% HEF R ENGFINE 2RI EREBR
RAI([EE)HE2HI8%ES THED
A2 AR R - RIEAAR15300,000
7T (FEE 7 4918,398,0008 7T ) © It B
HE-_ET-—F+-A=t—HILEE
& Uk 25 A R #514,597,000 58 TN B 3
R BBHERBIONERZ  RIT2
MWERD e -

i

R-EBE-_—F=A-+=0 K&E®3]
RGO EERE - AEEERRBE
K2 EP49% M m T B & A Bl 2 R ARAR R
RAE & AR 150000007 ° R s
MW ARER  ZXHZR T

TZA=T—BAERTK - ERZEE
BER+ZEAATR R
ZZFF+Z A=+ —ABREREEER
HESHEAFEHEEE -

R-Z-=F=A+tR fARBIET

EmE AREBHEENBREN49% 12
?E?\O
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R MY Rt

Far the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

24. INVESTMENTS AT FVTPL 24, AT EFABZNEE
2022 2021
—E-C T4
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FAETT
Equity securities, at fair value EARFE S - HmAFE
Listed in Hong Kong REEL™ 1,229
The fair values of listed securities are based on current bid prices TR HFCAFEDREREHR R
at the end of the reporting period. All investments at FVTPL are TEAEBME - 2HEAFEFTABR
denominated in HK$. HIREE B TTEHE -
25. INVENTORIES 25. &
2022 2021
—E—-= —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$000
FHET FAETT
Raw materials R4 K 31,458 49,813
Work in progress 5 12,270 20,278
Finished goods 2k 11,387 40,012
Goods in transit TEER 1,684 8,812
56,799 118,915
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES 26. BUE FERR
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
Trade receivables FEWE 5 R FK 116,180 162,452
Allowance for trade receivables (note 6(c)) FEUN Z 5 BR 28 (A1:+6(c)) (826) (220)
115,354 162,232
The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on credit. AEHERPFENEEFNETE
The credit terms generally range from 30 to 120 days. Each EoZEH—MNTI0EROK > FF
customer has a maximum credit limit. For new customers, EEHYAEEREERE IR —MRA
payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks to T TENFRIE o REBE B EH KRR D
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue JEWGRTE T BIREEE - EETHED
balances are reviewed regularly by the directors. mHsE R o
The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice HEHEHBNEWE SR (NREE)
date, and net of allowance, is as follows: RERDITAAT -
2022 2021
—E-= T —F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
0 to 90 days 0Z 90K 96,702 120,666
91 to 180 days 9E180K 17,704 40,655
181 to 365 days 181 % 365K 217 353
Over 365 days 365 KA 731 558
115,354 162,232
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B mRM

Far the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26.

FEY B SR (48)

Reconciliation of allowance for trade receivables:

e 5 BR TR0 B 1B

2022 2021

=== —E-—4F

HK$°000 HK$ 000

FET FAT

At the beginning of year REY] 220 3,811
Impairment losses for the year FEREEE 58
Amounts written off MisHE =R (2,626)
Reversal of allowance RO (1,023)
At the end of year RER 220

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers
that were in financial difficulties or were in default in payments
and the receivables are not expected to be recovered.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

118 511 1L 1B U ‘580 5 P ok 82 T Bl 7 765 R 26
HEREENR TP AR RARELR
Yo [el FE U ROR

AN SR 2 REEER LT
EHEHE -

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAETT

United States dollars (“USD”) En([%Ex]) 99,165 157,572
HK$ BT 9,989 -
RMB AR 6,200 4,660
Total A5t 115,354 162,232
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B mRM

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

27. TANTIR - BE KEMEWGOR

2022
—E-C

HK$’000

TER

10,804
57,024
21,864

4,084

93,776

Prepayments AT RIE
Other receivables H b MR
Purchase and other deposits REREMZE
Amount due from non-controlling JE U FEE R A 25 R IR
interest
Analysis: PHH
Current portion BUERES 5
Non-current portion JEBNHAE 5

2021
—E-—F
HK$ 000
FHET
14,814

62,923
32,117

109,854

106,639
3,215

109,854
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B mRM

Far the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

28. LOANS TO OTHER PARTIES

The Group has engaged external independent valuers to assist
the management to assess the expect credit loss (“ECL”) rates at
end of reporting period.

Principal
balance at
31 December
Name Terms of loan 2022
R-B-Zf
+=B=+-H
#e/ 58 ERBEH ZAEER
HK$°000
TER
Independent Third Party C Unsecured, repayable on (i) 26,000
BUE=HC 31 December 2022 and
bears interest of 10% p.a. ("Loan Z")
BER BR-Z-__#+-A=1-AH
BEREEFEI0%:E (&R
Individual D Unsecured, repayable on (i)
fEAD 30 September 2022 and
bears interest of 16% p.a. ("Loan X”)
af® AR -Z-_—FhA=1H
BEREEFX6%TE([ERX])
Independent Third Party F Unsecured, repayable on (iv)
BUE=ZHF 15 September 2021 and
bears interest of 12% p.a. (“Loan W”)
ERE ER-Z--FNA+HA
BERREFRD%HE([ERW))
Others Unsecured, repayable in August 2023, (v)
Htt and bears interest of 10% p.a.
B/EA BR-Z-=F)\AEER
REFEI0%EE
Total st

240

FEMALTER

AREE D INE BB ER AR EIRE
AHERmERRNFEMEEEE(TES
FEERDE -

28.

Accrued
interest as at
31 December

2022
R-B-ZE
+=A=1+-H BHEE
ZEHHE BAE
HK$°000 %

TER %

Cumulative

ECL rate allowance

A5t
HK$°000
TiEn

Rt
HK$°000

TR
4,610 88.88%

(27,206) 3,404

87.93%

(15,846)

82.89%

2.14%

(43,231)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ =S -_—F+=-A=+—HILFE

28. LOANS TO OTHER PARTIES (Continued)

28. MEMALTEZK(E)

Principal Accrued
balance at interest as at
31 December 31 December Cumulative
Name Terms of loan 2021 2021 ECLrate allowance Total
RZB=— RZZ=—
+ZA=+-B +ZA=1+—-AH EEEE
"E/ER ERRH LRSS ZEETRIS BEX RitAE st
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 % HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TAT FAR % TET AT
Independent Third Party B Unsecured, repayable on 0] - - - - -
BUE=HB 31 December 2020 and
bears interest of 10/n p.a. (‘LoanY”)
mER ER-T-TFT-A
=T -BEERRENEI0%:E
([&XY])
Independent Third Party C Unsecured, repayable on (if) 26,000 4141 83.00% (25,017) 5124
BUE=HC 21 February 2021 and
bears interest of 5% p.a. (“Loan Z”)
BER AR-T--F-A-1-H
BEREFFX% 2 ([ERZ))
Individual D Unsecured, repayable on (i) 13,000 3,983 83.00% (14,096) 2887
fBAD 28 February 2021 and
bears interest of 8% p.a. ("Loan X”)
i3 (s By Y=
BEREEFX8%:TE([EFX])
Independent Third Party F Unsecured, repayable on (iv) 1,225 152 - - 1377
BIR=HF 15 September 2021 and
bears interest of 12% p.a. ("Loan W")
sEE BR-Z--FNATEA
BERREFIED%HE([ERZW])
Total ot 40,225 8276 (39.113) 9,388
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE==ZT=—

F+-A=+—RIFE

28. LOANS TO OTHER PARTIES (Continued)

Notes:

0] Loan Y was originally due on 30 June 2020, but Independent Third Party B failed
to repay the principal and interest on that day. On 20 July 2020, Independent
Third Party B rescheduled payment by monthly instalments and the last
payment date would be 31 December 2020 with all other terms remained
unchanged. During the year ended 31 December 2021, a total amount of principal

and interest of approximately HK$18,881,000 was recovered.

(i Loan Z was originally due on 21 February 2021, but Independent Third Party C
failed to repay the principal and interest on that day. On 27 April 2022,
Independent Third Party C rescheduled payment by monthly instalments and
the last payment date would be 31 December 2022, with interest calculated at
10% p.a. for the extended period, and was secured by personal guarantee given
by the sole director and sole shareholder of Independent Third Party C. The
Group recognised approximately HK$27,206,000 as credit-impaired as an

default event have been observed.

(i) Loan X was originally due on 30 June 2020, but Individual D failed to repay the
principal and interest on that day. On 30 June 2020, Individual D rescheduled
payment by monthly instalments and the last payment date would be 28
February 2021 with all other terms remain unchanged. During the year ended 31
December 2021, an amount of HK$2,000,000 was recovered. On 22 April 2022,
individual D rescheduled payment and the last payment date would be 30
September 2022, with interest calculated at 16% p.a. for the extended period.
The Group recognised approximately HK$15,846,000 as credit-impaired as an

default event have been observed.

(iv) Loan W was originally due on 15 September 2021, but Independent Third Party F
failed to repay the principal and interest on that day. During the year ended 31
December 2022, Independent Third Party F fully repaid the principal amount of
RMBI1,000,000(equivalent to approximately HK$1,225,000). Up to the date of
report, Independent Third Party F did not made any repayment of loan interest
receivables. The Group recognised impairment of approximately HK$53,000 as

they are credit-impaired.

(v) As at 31 December 2022, no amount under “Others” (2021 nil) is past due.
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28. [AH

0]

(i)

(iii)

@iv)

)

i AL ER (&)

ERYRERZZZZTFXA=THEE &%
VE=ZFBRENZAEEASRAE - KT
—EFELAZFR  BUFEZHBEHRI T
AABERNEEE  ERSE—ENFNAH
EA-E-_TFE+-A=+—0  FTAEMIER
BT BE T —F+_/F=+—HILF
E - WeE A4 K F B4R FE4)18,881,000 T

BERZRER T —F_A=+—B58
BUE=F CRENZBEERAS AL - R=
TFNA=+EH BUE=ZHCEHEF]
TERADHERNERE  Hh&E S50
AffEA—Z-_—F+_A=1t—8 EEHH
REFRIO%TE  VABIE=FCHE—%
TR RERMEAERERR - BRNENE
HERE - MAEE 27,206,000 BTLHERA
EERE »

ERXRER_Z_ZFA=THIH EE
ADKRBERZBEERAELFE - RZZB_FF
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—E-—E+-A=+—BLFEE 2kE
2,000,000/ c RZT=Z—FMWA=-+=H "
AADEMHHFT T EAKHEEK - AP &g —ER
FOAEAZ-_—_FENA=1+HE  ERHH
REFEIGRET B - BRBORHEEE - A
£ E#54915846,000 B TER AEERE ©

BUE=ZFFRENZABEERSRAE - HZE
ZEZZFF+ZA=T—HLFE  BIUE=H
FESEEARS AR1,0000007T (HHERD
12250008 7C) - BEARRERH - BULE=F
FaREETMENERFL - AREEEE
B - AN ERERRE 4 53,000 4T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MF SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

29. BANK AND CASH BALANCES 29. RITMIREER

2022 2021
—E-C —E-—%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash on hand EFEE 4,587 3,186

Fixed deposits TEHFR 124,637
Cash at bank RITIRE 122,985 142,382
Cash in margin account of brokerage firms &4/ TRFE®FEF 2R - 6

Cash and cash equivalents in the RiFEREREXRNEE X

consolidated statement of cash flows BeEEY 252,209 145,574

The bank and cash balances of the Group are denominated in the
following currencies:

REBERITMBSHERTDIRATERE
8 :

2022 2021
—=E_— —EF -4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FHET

usD ETT
HK$ BT
RMB AR EE
Others Hith

184,637 59,965
22,113 38,518
45,447 47,063

12 28

252,209 145,574

As at 31 December 2022, the bank balances of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB and deposited with
banks in the PRC were amounted to approximately
HK$45,387,000 (2021: HK$46,967,000). Conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations. However, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

RZZZZF+=ZRA=+—H8 ' ~5H
B BB B A A A R EHE RIF R
f Y SR 1T R SR 1T 45 B2 B 4 45,387,000
BIL(ZF=—% 46,967,000 L) °
AR H B HNE B B B HMNE B 1R 5
B REEE - SERNESERERR -
AT - ANEBE AR B BR AT EITINE
R ZBITIHARE KK E M EHE -
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A B mRM

Far the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

30. TRADE PAYABLES

The aging analysis of trade payables, based on invoice date, is as

30. ENEZEREX

BREZAHNENESRANRE DN

2022
—E_—

HK$°000

FTER

35,777
1,955
2,415

follows: W
0 to 90 days 0E90K

91 to 180 days 91E 180K

181 to 365 days 1812 365K

Over 365 days 365 KM

39

40,186

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are

denominated in the following currencies:

2021
—E- %
HK$'000
FHIT

56,483
1,866

345

58,694

AEBENEZIRRIEEEEMRAT

S -

2022
—E—-=

HK$°000
TR

11,741
24,337
3,906
202

usD ETT
HK$ BT
RMB AR
Others HA
Total &5t

40,186
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

31

32.

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

3.

JRIRE M K ELA N BOR

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FAT
Accrued salaries TERF® 137,923 129,711
Accrued expenses TERA X 28,932 16,225
Accrued borrowing interests TEIREER A = 64
Customer deposits 2EES 25,270 24,065
Other payables H e 0B 9,707 5,672
201,832 175,737
(= (==
LEASE LIABILITIES 2. HERRE
Present value of
minimum lease payments
REEEREZRE
2022 2021
—=-— —E-—4F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
TET FAETT
Lease liabilities payable: ERNEERE
Within one year —FR 16,596 22,075
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEERF(REEEMRT) 6,600 31,409
After five years AEE 14,314 5,105
37,510 58,589
Less: Amount due for settlement within 38 : 12 {8 3 A 2| B FE <) 3008
12 months (shown under current (RARBEETHIR)
liabilities) (16,596) (22,075)
Amount due for settlement after 1218 A 18 B HR B 30R
12 months (shown under non-current (RIERBAETIIR)
liabilities) 36,514

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to
lease liabilities ranged from 2.41% to 9.58% (2021: from 2.41% to

9.58%).

JERRTAE B E/INEEF 28 RF
BAF) N%EIS8%( T —F : 2.41%
Z958%) o
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Far the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

33. BORROWINGS 33 BE
2022 2021
—=-= T —F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FHETT
Loan from an Independent KEBULE=ZFGCHER
Third-Party G (note (i) (BaEm) 614
Loans from financial institutions (note (i) &4 BB E R (ML D)) -
614
Notes: Bt
0) The amount represents loan from an independent third party, which is non- o ZEBERRE—BBUE=TNER - REE
interest bearing, unsecured and repayable on demand. IR R IR B R EENER
(i) The amount represents loan from financial institutions, which carries interest at (ih HEBRRRASEEBHOEN - R120%EFEF
a fixed rate of 12.0% per annum, unsecured and repayable within one year. FIRGTE - EIEFRER —FREE -
Certain borrowings of HK$13,000,000 are arranged at fixed =T EE13,000,00078 JTI% @ & & 5
interest rates. Borrowings are denominated in HK$. The directors B {58 LA/%TESHE ° %%1&%1‘%
estimate the fair value of the Group’s borrowings at 31 December RZE_—_FR-_ET-_—F+=-HA
2022 and 2021 approximate to their carrying amounts. T+ HRNEENAFELEHEEmMER
% o
34. BONDS PAYABLE 34. FERHES
On 10 May 2021, the Company issued unsecured bonds in the AR —FRATH ARFIRA—F
amount of HK$2,000,000 at the rate of 5% which will be due by W = 581728 52,000,000 7T
9 May 2023 to an independent third party. FEASHMER_ZE_=FH A NHEH
FHAREEPES -
The Company has used all of the net proceeds from the bonds AABEBESFMBRIEFRZEAR
for fulfilling working capital and other general corporate MEEBESH KNEM—REERS -
pUrposes.
During the current year, interest expense of approximately RAFE REERMNERAIZY
HK$51,000 (2021: HK$64,000) was recognised in profit or loss. 51,0008 (ZZE =—%F : 64,000/&7T) °
During the current year, the Group has fully repaid the bonds RAFE - AEBDBHEERNES -
payable.
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35.

PRODUCT WARRANTY PROVISIONS

The movement in the Group’s product warranty provisions are
analysed as follows:

35 EmREEE
AEEEQRABEEHHTMOT :

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET

3,584 4,611
(1,525) -

1,207 -
(2,059) (1,027)

At 1 January ®n—H—H
Provisions used EBAEE
Additional provisions REONEEAE
Reversal of provisions B o

At 31 December R+=ZRAR=+—H

1,207 3,584

The Group has committed to repurchase its products from or
offer replacement of its products to certain distributors when
these distributors receive returned goods from unsatisfied
ultimate consumers. Such kind of provision for product
warranties are recognised based on past experience of level of
repairs and returns, discounted to their present value as
appropriate.

EETOHBE TARREFEIURE
B AEREAERZSFDHEBRELEER®
HEHRER - ZEERRABRBREE
BREEKFRBEERER  XITR
EHREER)
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30.

37.

248

DEFERRED TAX 36.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$465,078,000 (2021:
HK$421,979,000) available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset in relation to unused tax losses has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$58,221,000 (2021: HK$49,480,000) that will expire within 5
years. Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

SHARE CAPITAL 37.

2022
oo

— S

Number of

shares
R

Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each BRAEGETLER
At the beginning and the end of the year ~ REFEAMRFR 75,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTRERE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each EBREEBTLER
At the beginning of the year REH] 924,363,855
Issuance of consideration shares (note (a))  E1TRERD (@) 230,000,000
Issuance of shares upon exercise of HEBRER TR (W b))

share options (note (b)) 53,328,000

Issuance of placing shares (note (c)) BIRERD (Wit ) =
Issuance of placing shares (note (c))) BORERD (W (@) -

Issuance of shares upon rights issue HREEIRG (K e)
(note (e))
At the end of the year REXR 1,207,691,855

EAET IR
RBER  AEEESRDARES
B4 54650780008 (=T = —F :

421,979,000 7T ) + AT AR 1R &
) o FRPA AR BE TERI AR s F A - B
EREAABATEBENELHES
Eo ABRVPEBEEERESNTFEANE
R ES 1B 49 458,221,000 T (ZF =
£ 49,480,000 7T) © HALFBIIBEBE]
MR EA 4SS o

N
2021
—E--F

Number of
Amount shares Amount
&8 FRE 8
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx TAL
1,500,000 75,000,000,000 1,500,000
427,958,570 8,559
85,580,000 1,712
102,704,000 2,054
308,121,285 6,162
924,363,855 18,487
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0

(©

(d)

(e)

Assignor to acquire EAR-3 (note 21(d)) at a consideration of HK$37,800,000,
satisfied by allotment and issuance of 230,000,000 consideration shares to the
Assignor with a nominal value of HK$0.02 each. The fair value of the shares of
the Company at the date of agreement is HK$0.164 per share and amounted to
approximately HK$37,800,000, of which HK$4,600,000 and HK$33,200,000
was credited to the Company’s share capital and share premium accounts,
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 53,328,000 share options were
exercised by holders to subscribe for 53,328,000 shares of the Company. The
exercise price of those share options was HK$0.106 per share.

On 11 January 2021, an aggregate of 85,580,000 shares of the Company with a
nominal value of HK$0.02 each has been substantially placed at HK$0.35 per
shares. The proceeds from the placed shares amounted to approximately
HK$29,355,000.

On 30 June 2021, an aggregate of 102,704,000 shares of the Company with a
nominal value of HK$0.02 each has been substantially placed at HK$0.224 per
shares. The proceeds from the placed shares amounted to approximately
HK$22,316,000.

On 1 November 2021, the Company announced a proposed rights issue on the
basis of one rights share for every two shares in issue at a subscription price of
HK$0.2 per rights share to raise up to approximately HK$65,200,000 before
expenses. On 23 November 2021, the Company allotted and issued 308,121,285
ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each by way of rights issue. Proceeds from the rights
issue amounted to approximately HK$61,626,000.

(b)

©

(@)

[©)

37. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 37. BRAR(EE)
Notes: Mzt -
(a) On 18 January 2022, the Company entered into the deed of assignment with the @) REZZZ=F—A+/\B A R HEEE A

HERE - REBRAERE -3 (HE22)
B % 37,800,00078 7T » IREEFK0.02/E T
784 3% A BC 3 & 397 230,000,000 A B M 3
e RRABRORBHERBNAFEERER
01647 7L £ F#) /R37800000% T H
4,600,000 7 7T & 33,200,000 8 7L B 7 Bl 5+ AZK
RARA R EER

HE-Z-—“F+-A=1+—HIEFE HBA
B 17 1£53,328,00017 f& ik # - LAREE A L A
53,328,000 fxf&1h - 2 EMREOITEBAER
0106 7T ©

WZZEZ—F—A+—H8  A%85580,000k%
FREEO0.02B LM AR R M I EA 0358
TERKDESE - BRERDASREBELR
29,355,000 87T ©

RZZE=——FA=+H" 41027040000
SHREEO0.02 B TR AR BN ILEAR 02247
THERKNES BEROABSRENR
22,316,000 % T

RZFB-—F+—A—H ARRESHEERE
FAMBRE TR SE — BRI D B ELEE
THE - RBERSREBRBRM02ET  UE
£ &% #965200,0008 7L (FIBRZAT) - 0 =
Zo—F+—AZ+=H  KARAHEESTHE
3 N B 17308121285 R B IR EE 02 B T L i
[ o HEA% FTS FRIRK) £ 61,626,000 T
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37.

250

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment
of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts,
redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by
adjusted capital. Total debt comprises borrowings (except for
bank overdrafts). Adjusted capital comprises all components of
equity (i.e. share capital, retained profits/accumulated losses and
other reserves) except for non-controlling interests.

During 2022, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
2021, was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at
reasonable level. The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at 31
December 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

37.

e N

AEEEREANBEFEREELAEEN
iﬁ%%%ﬁ WiB@ER(CEE kgD
R BERREREAL R - NEEE
ﬁ%mu,\gt FEML I B o

AEEZARULIIEETEASRE - AK
llf%@#ﬂ%“@&ﬁﬁé?mﬂ
SRMEEEEAGBLFLHE - B
%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%’K%Eﬂﬁ%%%

BT BERD - BEH
F %@ﬁﬁLﬁ%ﬁﬁéﬁuﬂ%°

AEERBEFHEABRERA L RER
B - R RBEHBRALRAEE
AAE - REBEEEE(RITEXRK
5N - RFEBEARBIETA SR (A
BeA  REER,RATHEERE M E)
GRIERAERRFRIN) ©

RZBZZF AEBZRBE_-T
——FRL T EEE ﬁhﬁﬁig?
BERLREENEBAKE - R-F

T FRZFE—F+ZRA=4+— am
EEIEABE R RIT ¢

Total debt
Adjusted capital

BIET
AR

Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B TR E AN =

2022 2021
—E-= T —F
HK$°000 HK$000
F&T FET
13,565 2,614
359,862 365,877
3.8% 0.7%

The only externally imposed capital requirement for the Group
to maintain its listing status on the Stock Exchange is that it has
to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. Based on the
information that is publicly available to the Group and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Group has maintained sufficient
public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2022 as
required under the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited & o5 5 & &=
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 38, KNRBZHBEMRRERMFEEED)
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (@) AREZEBARRER
2022 2021
—=-= T —F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt TFHET FET
ASSETS gE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - 5 L5 826
Right-of-use assets FREEE 9,260
Investments in subsidiaries RSB RRIMIEE 22 138
10,224
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEUYH B A FFIE 38(0) 177,958 192,571
Amount due from a director B —ZEEIE 536 -
Prepayments, deposits, other TERFRIE ~ e - EfbEU
receivables IR 14,077 41,436
Loans to other parties mEMATIREHER 5,580 8,011
Investments at FVTPL BAFEFABZHEE - 1,229
Bank and cash balances IRITRIR e 45 4,956 6,713
Total current assets RBEEHAE 203,107 249,960
Total assets EEHAE 210,209 260,184
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 38, ARBl W BRRAERFEHEED
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued) (%)
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (Continued) @ ARBZEBERRE E)

2022 2021
—=-= —E-—4F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt FET FET
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ExkEaE
Equity R
Equity attributable to owners KARHE ANEGER
of the Company
Share capital [N 24,154 18,487
Reserves HiE 38(b) 150,751 226,659
Total equity SR 174,905 245,146
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Lease liabilities HeEaE 5,963
Bonds payable JERHES 2,000
Total non-current liabilities FRBEBEHEEE 7,963
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A M MR FIE 17,031 2,865
Lease liabilities HeEaE 3,679 4,208
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEH B R R RUA 38(c) - 2
Borrowings BE 13,000 -
Total current liabilities REBAEARE 33,710 7,075
Total equity and liabilities BahkaEH8E 210,209 260,184

Approved by the Board of Directors on and are signed on
31March 2023 its behalf by:

Lin Dailian
MRACEE
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38.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 38, KRB ZHBHRARKEEZS
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued) (#&)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) ARTEZEHEEE
Share Share
premium option Merger  Accumulated Capital
account reserve reserve losses  contribution Total
BoRER  BRERE GG 2itEE EXHE &t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
Tan TAL TAR TAn TARL FAL
At 1 January 2021 W-2-—-f-f-H 669,649 3171 (458,567) 11,280 225,533
Total comprehensive expense for ~ £EZ AR REH
the year (106,819) (106,819)
Recognition of equity-settled AR AL R AER
share-based payments WARE S - 4,576 - 4576
Issuance of placing shares BIRERM 27,643 - 27,643
Issuance of placing shares BIRERM 20,262 - 20,262
Issuance of shares upon rights issue ~ HREZ (TR 55,464 - 55,464
At 31 December 2021 and RZE=-%+-A=1-H
1 January 2022 kZE--%-F-H 773,018 4576 3171 (565,386) 11,280 226,659
Total comprehensive expense for ~ £E2ERZLE
the year (118,407) (118,407)
Recognition of equity-settled TUARELE AR BER
share-based payments PANE S - 4713 4713
Issuance of consideration shares BIRERM 33,200 33,200
Exercise of share options iR 7,374 (2,788) 4586
Lapse of share options BRELY - (924) 94
At 31 December 2022 RZE-=%+-A=1-H 813,592 5577 311 (682,869) 11,280 150,751
(c) The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, © RBU(ER)KBARZEAER
interest free and have no fixed terms of repayments. - REBRERTERSY-
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39. RESERVES

254

(@)

(b)

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 28 25 B[R 55

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves

M

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Share premium account

Share premium represents the amount of the excess
of issue price of the Company’s shares over its par
value.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair value of
the actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for equity-settled share-based payments in
note 4(t) to the consolidated financial statements.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares issued by
the Company in exchange for the nominal value of
the share capital of its subsidiaries arising from the
group reorganisation.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 4(c)(iii) to
the consolidated financial statements.

39.

s
€)

(b)

BRREEAR QA

AEH

$§lﬁﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ“@%mgﬁ
S REMEERER GRS
EIENETIE

EFEEE AR
IR 17 %18 R

B fn i B R AR B B
HITEBAEEEMNTSHE

O]

BRERE

BEREFEEERERSME
BREFIORARESE
VAR A7) 7% B0 22 15 3R P BR 4
VBT BRERAR T AEHE
BEZRITEERSGFTH
BREEEZAFE-

(i)

BptRE

EHREERARESEEAN
N AT R A AR ER
HIBEABBRAEEZ 5 °

(i)

SNEME G

SNER B FERERREEIN
EBMBEHRREENRE S
EER - ZHERESEM
SRR MR 4(o)Cii) PR & & &t
BR B IE °

(iv)
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39. RESERVES (Continued) 39. EE(E)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued) (b) HEEEERE®(E)
(v) Contributed surplus ) HAEER
The contributed surplus of the Group represents the AREBONBARBKERN
difference between the nominal value of shares of the —hNtEFREEEEANK

subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group
reorganisation in 1997, over the nominal value of
shares of Telefield Holdings Limited issued in
exchange therefor.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable, is
appropriated from the profit after taxation of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws
and regulations in the PRC.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents gains/losses directly
reflect in equity resulted from change of equity
interests in subsidiaries without change of control.

(viii) Capital contribution

The amount represents the difference between
inception fair value and proceeds of non-interest
bearing loan from shareholder, which regarded as
capital contribution.

BH B QR RN MEER®
Telefield Holdings Limited A&
BRZERNFETHROE
B2ErERE -

EERE
AERBERTANIK TR
BEPEERZEZRIERAR
SEPENEQRKRBREE
ZAllesk Jbci

AR
BARE AR YL M
RO I B A A 25 B B 3| B
BB ROHE 35 R iR
%A -

(viii) EXHE

ZRRE N A FEERE
PR e B E RS HIR 2
MZERE - WRAEE ©
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40.

256

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants include the any director,
employee, consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent,
business or joint venture partner or adviser of or contractor of
the Company and the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme
became effective on 10 March 2020 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of shares
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors. In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or with
an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s shares
at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21
days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the directors,
and commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a
date which is not later than 10 years from the date of the offer of
the share options or the expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
the offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer, when
applicable.

40. VARRAD RERE 2 K

VAR 4 4 L P P i T 2

ARABET—HBBE S ([ &8 )
AR R R AR REEE 2 RINER
BRlzABER2EE SERSEER
BARBARARAMNBRAR ZEME
= RBE EM -FEXAL EP #
fER - I XA ERBHIEAA
FAEBRE - ZETEN T _TF=A+
AR BRIFESTTURHEIERT &
AR BT FERER -

Rzt MEEER T2 RITES
Bz &xZHER/RBEER —KTE - K
DR B R 2 B AT 210% ° 7Y
E+ @A BE R - &t EARER
TEEAERSEE Z BB A 1T
ZEREBDE B TR AR R AR
RE TR Z21% X TEMMBBLR
BB REGERNRR RS L1t
)fE ©

BYRAREIZES - TETHRABSE
TRHEXBEZ2EMBEA LT ZER
W BTEEBS B IENITE =L
UESh - EARFARAR EBRESRIE L
INTESAWEZEMBHBALZE
R+ — 8 A HIM R 2 (T B R - R
BARNBBEITRGD Z 0.1% KB E (AR
TEBARARAIRHOEWRABER)HEB
5,000,000 7T + ¥97BTE LS B R A I
BAZ EH#E -

AR AR R R B HEARAZARE
AREEHKBT  URKETEREZ
BN ERBREBZTEDNHESE
EYRERBRRFAR RN TERE
HEREZL A AL AE 2 ARER
ZETEIZIHA (N ARR) &

BREZITEEHRESTETE  ETFE
RATZ2&EE  OARARORIED
PR A B HIME R 32 P 2 W (B (i)
ARRABBHNREZRRHBREZN B
A A ERR 5 BB P2 F R HIE :
K (i ARRBM R HEREZG R B
ZEEER) -
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40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends or

to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

B —F+-f=+—HItFE

40. LARRM) REM 2 5K (58)

VARSHE

=)

WA

R 8 ()

BRETHETRHAEAZTAEREINEKR
Re EREZHER -

Share options outstanding at the 31 December 2022 and 2021 RZEBEZ_Z_FR_ZTE_—F+=A
have the following expiry dates and exercise prices: —+—H  BRTEERENERB X
TEEM
Original Adjusted  Number of
exercise  exercise price adjusted
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price (Note) share options
LRBOEE SEER
RUAH GRS fTEsE RiTfE (&) REHA
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 31 December 2022
RZBZZf+ZA=+-H
Directors
-
28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 July 2021 28 July 2021to 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 2,606,546
ZZ--5-AZ+N\B ZEZ-§-AZf/\AE ZEZ-FLAZFN\RE
St o I ] ZEINE-AZTtA
28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 January 2022 28 January 2022 to 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 2,666,546
ZZZ-5-AztN\A ZEZ-§-A-f/\HZE ZRZZE-RZN\HE
ZEZZF-ACTtA R RF-RZTA
28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 July 2022 28 July 2022 to 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 2,606,546
ZZ--5-AZ+N\B ZEZ-§-AZf/\AE ZEZZEEAZTN\RE
ZEIZEEAZTHA ZEINE-AZTtA
28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 January 2023 28 January 2023 to 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 2,666,546
ZRZ-5-AztN\A ZEZ-§-A-f/\HZE ZRZ=F-RZFN\HE
I s e Sayivay el Sl
Employees
EE
28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 January 2022 28 January 2022 to 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 4,063,322
ZZZ-5-AZtN\A ZEZ-§-A-f)\AHZE ZRZZE-RZFN\HE
ZEZZF-ACTtA R RF-RZTA
28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 January 2023 28 January 2023 to 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 4,063,322
—E--F-f=t\B ZE--F-F=f/\BZ :2:’ —AZ+N\RZE
ZEZZE-A-TtA T-AE-A-TtA
28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 January 2024 28 January 2024 to 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 6,094,982
ZRZ-5-AZtN\A ZEZ-§-A-f/\HZE ZRIRE-AZTN\HE
I UF-A=TtA R RF-RZTtA
28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 January 2025 28 January 2025 to 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 6,094,981
ZE--5-AZ+N\B ZEZ-§-A=f/\AE ZoRE-AZT/\BE
ZZZRF-A=+4A ZRINE-AZTtA
30,982,791
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ =S - +=-A=+—HILFE

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 40. AR BER 2 (E)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) LARS B BB AR ST 8 (4B)
Number of
Original Adjusted Original adjusted
exercise exercise price number of  share options
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price (Note) share options (Note)
e
BERTHE RERE BREZA
RUAH GRS TEsE RiTfE () 88 (W)
HK$ HKS
BT BT
At 31 December 2021
RZBZ-F+ZA=+-H
Directors
Bz
28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 July 2021 28 July 2021t 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 3,851,535 3,999,819
ZE--5-AZ+N\B ZEZ-§-A=f/\AE ZE--F+AZT\RE
“E-FtA-TtA IRt
28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 January 2022 28 January 2022 to 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 3851535 3999819
“E--Ff-A-t\B ZE--F5-A-tN\HE :.\,::E AZT/N\AZ
_T__E AZt+tH S F-AZTtH
28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 July 2022 28 July 2022 to 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 3,851,535 3999819
“E-—f-B=+\B —BE--F-B=f)\BZ ZEZZELAZT\RE
ZEIZEEAZTHA IRt
28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 January 2023 28 January 2023 to 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 3851535 3999819
“E--Ff-A-t\B ZE--F5-A-tN\BHE ’“’—¢ AZT/N\AZ
:T:_E AZt+tH “E-RF-A=TtH
Employees
EE
28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 January 2022 28 January 2022 to 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 4053142 4,063,322
“E--F-f-t\B ZE--F-A-tNHE “E--F-f=t/\RZE
_i__ﬁ AZttH “E-RF-A=TtH
28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 January 2023 28 January 2023 to 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 4,053,142 4,063,322
“F--#-f-+)\B Z—E--F-A-1/\RE —F-=#-f-1+)N\BZE
“E-=F-A-14H —Z- /\E AZt+H
28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 January 2024 28 January 2024 to 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 6,079,713 6,094,982
“E--F-f-t\B ZE--F-A-tNHE “ZoNE-AZ1\BZE
‘?‘@ﬁ AZ++tA ZZCRE-AZTtA
28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 January 2025 28 January 2025 to 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 6,079,713 6,094,981
“F--#-f-+)\B ZE--F-f-1/\RE ZE-RE-AZ/\RE
_q_ﬁﬁ AZftA IRt
35,671,850 36,315,883
Note: The number of share options granted and the relevant exercise price are ffat . BERHAOERESE RERTEESELEE
adjusted to reflect the effect of rights issue on as defined in note 37(e). LA BB 5 37(e) FT R TE MR S22 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 40. LARRMD REM 2 5K (58)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Details of the movement of share options during the year are as

follows:
Number of
share options
ERERE
HK$1000
BT
Outstanding at the beginning of REERITE
the year 36,315,883
Granted during the year RERRH 53,328,000
Adjustment upon right issue NG EY iR
during the year =
Lapsed during the year RERKEK (5,333,092)
Exercise of share options RERTEEERE
during the year (53,328,000)
Outstanding at the end of the year RERBRITE 30,982,791
Exercisable at the end of the year RERA{TE 12,062,960

The options outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 3.08 years (2021: 4.08
years) and the adjusted exercise prices of HK$0.346 (2021:
HK$0.346). The estimated fair value of the options granted in
2022 is HK$2,788,000 (2021: HK$8,253,000). During the year,
approximately HK$4,713,000 (2021: HK$4,576,000) recognised in
profit or loss and correspondingly to share option reserve. During
the year ended 31 December 2021, the financial impact of 713,807
lapsed share option had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current year.

VAR HE i B A iR 81 (4R)
RENBREZSFHEHRALT

2021
—E-—fF
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average

Y CICHEN (B share options  exercise price

ik S22 IR
THEE et 1TE(E
HK$’000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TERT TAT TAT

35,671,850 0.359
1,357,840 0.346
(713,807) 0.352

36,315,883 0.346
3,999,819 0.346

P R M R 1T B AR M & e S 19 TRl 64
BHFHARISF(ZT = —4F 408
F) KABRTFEER0MEL(ZE
T :0346870) c ZEZ_FRT
BEAEMERT A TFE A2,788,000/8 T (=
T — 4 82530008 L) c RER -
#4,713000% w( = T = — F:
4576ooo,%mmammﬁﬂ’%ﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬂé
HETER B2 -_—F+=A
=+ —BLIEFE - 71380710 KRB HE
RS R ARNEBRAFEE NI Bk
MEERRBESATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B mRM

Far the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

These fair values were calculated using the binomial option
pricing model. The inputs into the model are as follows:

40.

PAR AR IR 2R 2 (5K (4R

VAR #E A B iRt 81 (4R
ZERNFERA B EERAG
B BRHABENT

2022 2021
—E=-= —ET-—F

Weighted average share price IR (B
Weighted average exercise price hnkEFHITEE
Expected volatility TEHRRE 8
Expected life T8 HAF HA

Risk free rate 1 [ B 7
Expected dividend yield TE HAfR B =

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price in the relevant periods
matching expected time to exercise prior to the dates of grant.
The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
the Group’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

0.106 0.345
0.106 0.359
137.21% 103.77%

2 years 5 years &
2.87% 0.33%

0% 0%

EHIR IR B B At E AR A R ER R
HIMME LRI ETE @ ZOKRER TR
HA R e TR RR TR B AR U B - AL R ER
RrEMFE RO REASBENREMR
LA ITERF LT REER
EMTEELHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B mRM

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ =S -_—F+=-A=+—HILFE

41, NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 41, #Z&eWens XMz
FLOWS
(@ Acquisition of a subsidiary — Be Smart Finance Limited (@ Wi —MEMEB~RF — BeSmart
Finance Limited
On 18 August 2021, the Group acquired the entire equity N-ZE-—FN\A+/\H K&EH
interests in Be Smart Finance Limited at a consideration of B — & E =75 WHEBe Smart
approximately HK$131,000 from an Independent Third Finance Limited ) 2 &l 2= - X(B
Party. Be Smart Finance Limited is principally engaged in 51310007 JT ° Be Smart Finance
the money lending business and was acquired with the Limted T ERERNEER &3
objective of developing the Group’s business. The fair value BN & E 7% Uk B o Be Smart
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Be Smart Finance Finance Limited Z Al & B EE KX &
Limited as at the date of acquisition were as follows: ERERB 2 AFENT ¢
HK$'000
FAETT
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFRIE ~ e R EAEKGE 131
Consideration to be satisfied by cash UIRS&EMHRE 131
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: AU EEEERMIRE M F5E
Cash consideration paid BENRERE 131
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BER e MNIREEEY -
131

Transaction costs related to the acquisition amounting to
approximately HK$1,000, being stamp duty for the transfer,
had been recognised in the “Administrative expenses” line
item in the Group’s profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2021. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
Be Smart Finance Limited did not commence business and
contributed no revenue to the Group.

The prepayments, deposits and other receivables acquired
with a fair value of approximately HK$131,000.

BB X 5K A#1,000#E 7T
(BNEZEER) ERAREHEZZ
T-—F+_-_A=+—HILFEHN
BT TR I EE R ER -
HE-Z-—F+=-A=+—HI
F & - Be Smart Finance Limited I
REAEET - DEEREBRALE
HEE -

LA 2 1B £9131,000 7 7t Uk B 78 +F
RIE -~ e REMEKGIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R MY Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ =S - +=-A=+—HILFE

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 41, #HZelRaen=sxMaF (8)
FLOWS (Continued)

A

(b) Disposal of Power Trump Investments Limited (b)  HEPower Trump Investments Limited
On 31 December 2021, the Company entered into a sale and RZEZ_—4F+=_A=+—H8"
purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Company ARARBT—HEEWHSE &
agreed to sell its 100% equity interests in Power Trump gt + AR & [ E #§Power Trump
Investments Limited to an individual third party at a total Investments Limited 7 & #F # 2%
consideration of HK$3,500,000. The disposal was HEFE=ZFEA EREAH
completed on 31 December 2021. Net assets of Power 3500,000 e HEEBE R
Trump Investments Limited at the date of disposal were as 2 —F+ZRA=+—H%
follows: e B H & H H o Power Trump

Investments Limited 2 & & /% & 41
T
HK$'000
FAETT
Investment properties "EME 32,068
Bank and cash balances RIT RN % 282
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — FEfTFIE - 24 & H qth fE k8 16
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A R E A RIR (229)
Amount due to the Company JE AR R BIFRIB (28,637)
Net assets disposed of BHEEEFE 3,500
Consideration receivable to be satisfied by cash  LAIR & &~ el (R (B 3,500
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: AHEEENRES R F5E
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BEHERSNESEEY (282)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ =S -_—F+=-A=+—HILFE

41, NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH ~ 41.

FLOWS (Continued)

(©

A
o

A

Disposal of a subsidiary — Link-Asia Medtech Investment (©)

Limited

On 31 January 2022, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to sell its 100% equity interests in Link-Asia
Medtech Investment to an individual third party at a total
consideration of HK$1. The disposal was completed on 31
January 2022. Net liabilities of Link-Asia Medtech
Investment Limited at the date of disposal were as follows:

R nERME(E)

HEMBAR —
BABAF

RZEZZF—A=+—H0 &2
AEF T —HEERSE B K
ARIRAEBREBERIEEBR
AR EELETE=FE
A BRERBT - HEFHEE
RZEZ_F—A=+—HZK -
REERH ROBENERESR

RTBEEMER

[RARZBEFBUT
HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB L&A 4,750
Right-of-use-assets FREEE 6,666
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR FOE ~ e REMEURIE 2,028
Accruals and other payables TEIR B A K H AL A 3108 (66)
Lease liabilities HEBE (7,007)
Amount due to the Company JERF AN B FRIE (8,151)
Net liabilities disposed of BEHEaEFEsE (1,780)
Gain of disposal the subsidiary: HEMTB A R
Consideration received by cash BUIR S RE =
Net liabilities disposed of BEHEaEFsE (1,780)
Gain on disposal k== 1,780
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEAMRSRAFEE :
Cash consideration received BUIRERE ="

The consideration was HK$1, which was fully settled during the year

ended 31 December 2022.

RERET BERBEE_ZT-__F+=
A=+—HIEFELS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B mRM

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ =S - +=-A=+—HILFE

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH  41. #4&
FLOWS (Continued)

A

(d) Major non-cash transactions (d)

Additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities during
the year of approximately HK$6,671,000 (2021:
HK$28,844,000) were financed by lease liabilities of new
lease agreements.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
disposed of its entire 49% equity interest in Zhanju and its
entire 48% in Wangquan, for a consideration of
RMB15,300,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$18,398,000) of which RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,353,000 was received during the year
ended 31 December 2021. The remaining consideration of
RMB12,300,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$13,745,000) had not been received as at 31 December
2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
disposed of its entire equity interest in of Power Trump
Investments Limited for a consideration of HK$3,500,000.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
consideration was fully settled.

During the ended 31 December 2022, the Company issued
230,000,000 shares of approximately HK$37,800,000 to
the Assignor as the consideration of intangible asset of
EAR-3.
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R nERME(E)

FTEFRERH
FANEFTAREERHEGED
6,671,000 T (=ZF = — &F :

28,844,000 L) A FHE R
SNHEEAGEEN -

BE_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HL
FE - ANEEARE5300,000
7t (A8 7 4918,398,000 8 7T ) 91K
BHERBEEIB49% M m KT
22 E48%MiER HP AR
3,000,000 7T ( #8 & 7 #93,353,000
BL)RBE-_ZT=-_—F+=A
=t+t—HALtFEKI -BE=Z
—=—F+=—RA=+—8 " mErKE
T B A R #12,300,000 7T (48
EHN4913,745,00087T) e

HE-_ZT-_—F+-A=+—HIt
FE - KK EH EPower Trump
Investments Limited & #B#E 25 © 18
8 /3500000 L B E ZF
——HF+-_A=+—B8IEFE R

BEES -

BHE-_Z-_—_F+-_HA=+—H1t
FE AR AEZEANZET
230,000,000 f% 42 & 37,800,000 7
TTERD - ERBRRIERE 32
BEAENNRE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ =S -_—F+=-A=+—HILFE

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 41, #HZelRaen=sxMaF (8)
FLOWS (Continued)

A

(e) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (e) RMEEHELBEHE
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities AEBREBEESMEEA BEMN
arising from financing activities, including both cash and 9 BRACKIEERSEE B
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing FHIIRT R - HBEEHEENE
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future & AAZABEREASIHRNER
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated mE RASEMNGEHRESRER
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing PoBEARELZBCHSRE -
activities.
Lease Bonds
liabilities  Borrowings payable
HEEE BE BAES
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET FAT FAT
As at 1 January 2021 R—ZE-_—F—H—H 51,599 18,595 -
Addition BE 28,844 - -
Cashflows REeEnE (26,751) (18,000) 2,000
Interest expenses B 3,649 - -
Exchange difference P& =58 1,248 19 -

As at 31 December 2021 and R-ZT=-—F+—A

1 January 2022 —t+t—RAR-—E-_—F
—H—H 58,589 614 2,000
Addition BE 6,671 - -
Cashflows Bean= (20,046) 13,000 (2,000)
Disposal of a subsidiary LS B A E (M aE41(c))

(note 41(c)) (7,007) - S
Interest expenses FEMRX 3,076 = =
Reassessment (note 20) EHRE (B 20) (1,069) = -
Exchange difference PE =R (2,704) (49) =
As at 31 December 2022 R-ZEZZF+=H

=+—H 37,510 13,565 S
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Far the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 41, #HZelRaen=sxMaF (8)
FLOWS (Continued)

(f)  Amounts included in the cash flow statements for leases (Hh MHERSRERFTHESBEENUT
comprise the following: I -

A

2022 2021
—s-= T —F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F&T FAT
Within operating cash flows WERPREN 4,252 5,619
Within financing cash flows RMEREREA 23,102
28,721
These amounts relate to the following; ZESTHUATRBERR :
2021
T
HK$°000 HK$000
FHET FET
Lease rental paid ENEERS 21,222 28,721
42. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 42. HREE
The Group and the Company did not have any significant NEFRANTWEIRERSAEE ©
contingent liabilities.
43. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 43, BARIE
The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting AEBRBEHRAKROENRENT
period are as follows:
2022 2021
—==-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Plant and machinery R N 25
Contracted but not yet incurred BRTHBERESE 418
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ =S -_—F+=-A=+—HILFE

44. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had an outstanding
guarantee (the “Guarantee”) with one of the suppliers of an
overseas subsidiary (the “Disposed Subsidiary”), which was
disposed on 7 October 2015, for payment in relation to a sum of
US$2,600,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$20,300,000),
which represents a trade balance under dispute between the
Disposed Subsidiary and the supplier. The supplier subsequently

sold the trade balance to a third party.

During 2017, the Disposed Subsidiary agreed with the third party
for a final settlement by instalment of US$650,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$5,100,000). In this regards, as at 31
December 2021, the Group had an outstanding guarantee of the
sum limited to US$650,000 subject to the full payment of the

final settlement effected by the Disposed Subsidiary.

The Disposed Subsidiary had issued a counter guarantee to
indemnify the Group for any loss in relation to the Guarantee.
The management of the Group after taking legal advise are of
the opinion that it is highly unlikely that liabilities will be brought

against the Group on the above matter.

44,

G TERE K
RZEBEZZ_FR_ZF-_—F+ZA
=t+—H AEEHERZZE—RF+
AtBREZEINMBEAT(E HEH
BaEl) zER—2HERE RKRER
EROIZER) HEBITE& K
2,600,000 2 7T, (48 & 4 920,300,000 /5
TO)ZFIE - B EWE AR M
e FREFEH BREERE D
EEOERTE=F -

— ==
= EKREMEE - 5 BT R0650,000
7T (FEE 7 #75100,00087T) © Btk
T RZE_—4F+ZHA=1+—H K
EEBEAMKRENERESELRA
650,000 7T RFELHEMBARE
PRABH SRR MBFIEmE -

EHEMBRAREMARRELRE
- AR ER ZERBR /A RERE
HRMERE - AREZEEBRIEIUA
RERERR  AEBEAKA R Lt
SEAIEERRE -
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Far the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

45, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45, BERR S
In addition to those related party transactions and balances BRI EMBERREM A HENBES
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the RGREERIN  REBRFRNERBER
Group had the following transactions with its related parties BUTRS -

during the year:

Amount due from a director (note) FEU — R T EHIE (M)
Amount due to a director (note) P —RZEE B (KEE)
Note: The amounts represent a balance, which is unsecured, interest-free bearing and Bzt o &

repayment on demand.

2022 2021
=== —E-—4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT

The details of remuneration of key management personnel, FEEREXENTMNEIARFTEER
represents the emoluments of directors of the Company paid FRNES NS ) FFERHFE6 -

during the year and set out in note 16.

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 46. WE

(i)  The Group disposed 49% equity interest in Rongshu on 7 ©)
March 2023 as the agreement condition has been fulfilled.

(i)  Completion of subscription of new shares under specific (i
mandate

On 13 September 2022, the Company entered into the
subscription agreement with the subscriber, pursuant to
which the subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for and the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and
issue 517,600,000 new shares at the subscription price of
approximately HK$0.1855 per shares under specific
mandate. The total consideration is approximately
HK$96,015,000. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group received HK$5,000,000 from the subscriber as
customer deposit. The subscription of new shares
completed on 6 February 2023. The details of the
subscription are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 13 September 2022, 14 September 2022,
10 January 2023 and 6 February 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ =S -_—F+=-A=+—HILFE

TR

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Continued) 46, $w&EHIR E1H (£

(i) Proposed share consolidation (i) BERHE6H

)

/

The management proposes to implement the share
consolidation on the basis that every ten (10) issued and
unissued shares of HK$0.02 each will be consolidated into
one (1) consolidated share of HK$0.2 each on 24 February
2023. The proposed share consolidation was approved on
extraordinary general meeting on 28 March 2023 and the
share consolidation was effective on 30 March 2023. As at
31 December 2022, there are 30,982,791 outstanding share
options. Upon the share consolidation becoming effective,
the outstanding share options granted under the share
option scheme will be adjusted to 3,098,279 share options.
The details of the proposed share consolidation are set out
in the announcements of the Company dated 24 February
2023, 13 March 2023 and 28 March 2023.

RZEZ=F_H=_+WMA - B
BREZBEEBITERBETRAFTE
+(0) B &I E{E 0.02 & o B %
EMAE—ORESREE2ETH
AP - BERME FHERER
ZE ===+ N\BETHR
RERIAS EibE - ARHEHE
RIE_=F=A=THEK - &
BT HFFA=+—H #
H30,982,79117 5 MR AE 18 RATFE ©
‘DA fHERE - RIBBRETS
BENERTEERESAZER
3,098,279 1D BEARE - BRI E OF
MFBERAARBEE T =

F-A-+MWBE - —T-=4=A8
+=AR-_ZE-_=F#=HA_-+/\H

MR -

47. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

47. HELRE B HmR

The consolidated financial statements were approved and EFFedN - E-_=F=A=+—H#t

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2023. R ARG B IS HRaE -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFEMBEHE

The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 and the consolidated assets, liabilities and equity of the Group as
at 31 December 2022 are those set out in the audited financial
statements.

The summary below does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

AEEEE T -_—F+-_fA=+—HLFE
MEEEBERAEER _Z-_-F+=A
Z+—HOGRAEE AERERIHREEZX
BTSSR A o

ATEEZ Y TERERZYBRERAEND

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
et Sbet: ol — T —F —“T-TF —T-NF —ZT)\F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx FET THET FET T
RESULTS £
Revenue WA 529,251 675,523 595,023 629,948 681,482
Cost of sales HERA (CVEI39)  (530,635)  (440,311)  (494,106)  (534,208)
Gross profit EY] 101,396 144,888 154,712 135,842 147,274
Other income, other gains and losses EAU A « E bz
LB 16,321 25,512 9,642 16,327 24,878

Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (29,988) (29,232) (56,317) (28,829) (27,527)
Administrative expenses THER (105,039) (154,230) (178,158) (179,414) (182,509)
Other operating expenses Hithis e &R (27,056) (27,619) (82,076)  (100,405) (25,095)
Loss from operations REER (44,366) (40,681)  (152,197)  (156,479) (62,979)
Share of profits (losses) of associates JE{LEEE A 7% 7| (E518) - 1,098 (12,622) - -
Finance costs BERAK (4,051) (4,169) (4,928) (6,809) (2,778)
Loss before tax BRi A0 B 18 (48,417) (43,752)  (169,747)  (163,288) (65,757)
Income tax (expense) credit R (A Ee (3,592) (3,395) (3,323) (1,300) 566
Loss for the year from BEREEK Y

continuing operation FEBR (52,009) (47,147)  (173,070)  (164,588) (65,191)
(Loss) profit for the year from BRIEREEK 2

discontinued operations FE(BR)&H - - - (14,739) 15,891
Loss for the year FEBR (52,009) (47,147)  (173,070)  (179,327) (49,300)
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

HFMBHE

2022
—E-=
HK$°000
TERT
Attributable to: BT &AL
Owners of the Company RAREB A (CLELY))
Non-controlling interests IR 2,033
(52,009)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-  BE - 8ERFERKRER
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Total assets BEHE 659,233
Total liabilities BEGE (297,217)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R (2,154)

359,862

Note:

above.

The Group disposed of certain subsidiaries and associates during the year ended 31
December 2019. The results of the disposed subsidiaries and associates for the year
presented have been reclassified for separate disclosure as discontinued operations

2021 2020 2019 2018
—T-—F —T-TF —“T-NF —Z-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FTET FAT TET
(46,397)  (173,052)  (171,735) (57,984)
(750) (18) (7,592) 8,684
(47,147)  (173,070)  (179,327) (49,300)
677,978 657,405 734,840 930,862
(311,980)  (361,471)  (323,827)  (348,030)
(121) (472) - (10,028)
365,877 295,462 411,013 572,804
Mg AEERBE-T-NE+- A=t B EEHEE

THBRRRBERR - CHEMBARREERRAR
2IFENEECENOR MR EXBIKBERER
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XBEEER

LISTING INFORMATION

Listing: Hong Kong Stock Exchange
Stock code: 1143
Ticker Symbol
Reuters: 143.HK
Bloomberg: 1143 HK Equity
KEY DATES
27 January 2011

Listed on Hong Kong Stock Exchange

28 April 2023

Announcement of 2022 Annual Results

REGISTRAR & TRANSFER OFFICES

Principal:

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman)

Limited

Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3, Building D
P.O. Box 1586, Gardenia Court, Camana Bay

Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch:

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17th Floor

Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.link-asia.com.hk

ETER

il BAEME XS
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M= TE
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ZiE - 1143 HK Equity

B2HF

—F——%—-A=+<tH
REBBERSMH LT

—E-=FPA -+ \H
AE_E_—EEEEE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited

Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586, Gardenia Court, Camana Bay

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

BESR
BEBRAFERERAR
BB

BB 165
RREEAF D

171

bl

www.link-asia.com.hk
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